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City of San Leandro

Civic Center, 835 E. 14th Street
San Leandro, California 94577

December 22, 2021

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of San Leandro
San Leandro, CA 94577

Dear Mayor and Members of the City Council:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of San Leandro is hereby
submitted for the year ended June 30, 2021. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed information is accurate in all material respects and is
reported in a manner designed to fairly present the City’s financial position and results of operations
of all funds. All disclosures necessary to understand the City’s financial activities are included.

Section 555 of the City Charter requires an annual independent audit of the City’s fiscal affairs. This
report is published to fulfill this requirement for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City. To
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management established a
comprehensive internal control framework designed to both protect the City’s assets from loss, theft,
or misuse, compiled sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial
statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), and complied
with applicable laws and regulations.

The City contracted with Maze & Associates, a public accounting firm licensed to perform local
government audits in California, to complete the annual audit. Maze concluded that the financial
statements present fairly the respective financial position of the government activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, and the
respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows for the year ended June 30,
2021, in accordance with GAAP. This is a favorable conclusion and is commonly referred to as an
unmodified opinion.

The audit involved examining on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In addition to the CAFR, the City prepares a mandated Single Audit designed to meet requirements
related to major program expenditures of Federal funds. The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require the independent auditor to report on the audited government’s internal controls
and compliance with legal requirements, emphasizing administration of Federal awards. These
reports are available in the City’s separately issued Single Audit Report.



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statement in the form of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). The MD&A complements this transmittal letter and should be read in conjunction with it.

CITY PROFILE

The City was incorporated in 1872 and is one of the older communities in the San Francisco Bay
Area. The City occupies fifteen square miles between the cities of Oakland and Hayward and is
bordered on the west by the San Francisco Bay. San Leandro offers its 87,300 residents the charm
and character of a community that has been established for 149 years. Once an agricultural
community, the City has been successful in attracting significant residential, industrial,
manufacturing, and retail development.

City Structure

The City functions under a council-manager form of government and is governed by a seven-
member council elected by City residents. Municipal services include public safety, streets and
roads, recreation and cultural services, library, health services, public infrastructure improvements,
planning and zoning, and general administrative services. The scope of the City Council’s power
and influence includes the following:

« Authority to set policy and enact legislation that facilitates those policies,
o Authority to establish and modify operating and capital budgets,

o Power to appoint voting members to other governing authorities,

« Power to appoint the City Manager and City Attorney, and

o Authority to veto, modify, and overrule decisions previously enacted.

Component Units

The City’s blended component units include operations of the San Leandro Parking Authority and
the San Leandro Public Financing Authority. As of June 30, 2021, there were no discrete reportable
component units.

The CAFR for the year ending June 30, 2021, provides a financial account of these units,
organizational elements, and the City functions for which the City Council provides policy direction
and general oversight. It presents financial information on the activities of the City itself and the
component units of the City upon which the City Council is authorized to impose its will. The
operating nature of the City’s component units determines how they are reported in the financial
statements. The activities of component units that provide financial benefit or create financial burden
for the City are blended within the City’s general financial statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION OF THE CITY

The City has a diverse business community, which is comprised of varied businesses ranging from
neighborhood coffee houses and fine restaurants, large food processing centers, regional shopping
opportunities, to cutting edge technology. While the economic base has dramatically changed from
its agricultural early years, San Leandro continues to expand on its sound business base with the
ongoing development of such projects as a multi-family housing development, high-rise offices, and
the continuing revitalization of downtown.
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Scarcely any aspect of life in San Leandro remained untouched by the Coronavirus pandemic. Every
resident and business owner has been affected by COVID-19. Devastating health impacts, business
and school closures, elimination of jobs, essential workers faithfully carrying-on, remote work,
requirements to wear masks and socially distance, and the struggle to pay basic bills, including food
and rent, all became a normal part of life and helped define this unprecedented time.

Among the impacts to the City, many projects experienced slowdowns as attention was diverted
toward mitigating the effects of the pandemic and then eventually transitioning to recovery efforts.
Relevant and timely actions included an eviction moratorium, rental assistance, a grocery worker
premium pay ordinance, public assistance in the forms of food distribution, mental health, domestic
violence services, and small business grants.

With the rollout of vaccines and the stimulus funds provided by the Federal government, the City has
begun returning to normal. Fortunately, the economic outlook for San Leandro is expected to be
positive in the upcoming years. Due to low housing inventory, home prices continued to appreciate
even during the pandemic. The City’s median home price was $862,000, a 24% increase from the
prior year. San Leandro’s unemployment rate was 10.8%. This unemployment rate is a significant
improvement since the shutdown of economic activities last year.

The City’s General Fund supports basic municipal services, such as public safety, human services,
library and parks and recreation. Revenue to this critical fund, generated largely from sales and
property taxes, has grown to higher levels due to recent voter-approved tax measures.

Sales tax revenue increased by 11% after declining in 2019-20 reflecting the beginning months of
COVID-19. Revenues rose as the recovery occurred more quickly, businesses delaying payments
caught-up more quickly, and several sales tax categories realized extraordinary growth. Real
property transfer tax revenue increased by $5.8 million in 2020-21. Some of the variance stems from
the voter approved tax rate increase impacting the last half of the year. In addition, an unprecedented
number of high value commercial and industrial properties sold in 2020-21. The City achieved
positive financial results by extraordinary growth in sales tax and property transfer tax revenues, and
early imposition of strategies to control costs considering the COVID-19 pandemic.

City operations are also supported by other funds, including major and non-major enterprise
(proprietary) funds. Major enterprise funds include the Water Pollution Control Plant and Shoreline
Enterprise Funds. Both funds experienced higher revenues over the prior fiscal year despite the
COVID-19 pandemic. The Water Pollution Control Plant Enterprise fund was established to account
for the City’s sewers, which protect public health and preserve water quality through collection,
treatment, and disposal of the community’s wastewater. Program revenues to this fund in 2020-21
totaled $16.4 million, a 20% increase over the prior fiscal year due largely to one time connection
fees paid by high value commercial and industrial properties. The Shoreline Enterprise Fund was
established by combining the Marina and the Golf Course Funds. Program revenues to this fund in
2020-21 totaled $6.7 million, a $4.9 million increase over the prior fiscal year mainly due to the
increase in golf activities.

Like many other cities in California, the City faces increases in operating expenses partly due to
rising pension costs. The City continues to implement strategies to control costs and identify viable
revenue options. The City is also committed to funding its unfunded pension and other post-
employment benefits (OPEB) liabilities. Authorized by the City Council, the City continues to set
aside funds in the Prioritization Unfunded Liability Liquidation (PULL) Plan to reduce its unfunded
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liabilities. In June 2021, the City Council authorized the establishment of a Section 115 Pension
Trust to buy down the City’s unfunded pension liability. $6.5 million in contributions will be
transferred to the trust account in fiscal year 2021-22. At the end of fiscal year 2020-21, the City’s
OPEB plan was 89% funded — a healthy funded status.

Long-term Perspective

The City adopts a biennial budget employing long-term planning as the framework for fiscal
decisions. While San Leandro’s underlying economy is viewed as positive in the long-term, today’s
economic challenges, notably in the General Fund, must be dealt with now to ensure long-term fiscal
sustainability. The City Council has implemented on-going cost cutting measures after staffing
peaked in 2008-09, producing recurring budget savings to address its financial challenges. Passage
of Measure Z in November 2010, Measure HH in 2014, and Measures OO, PP, NN in 2016, and
Measure VV in 2020 have improved revenues enough to restore and maintain services. The City has
also implemented strategies to control costs such as soft hiring freeze to mitigate the impact from the
COVID-19 pandemic.

City Council unrestricted reserves total $66.5 million in the General Fund on June 30, 2021. The
restricted reserves total $17.2 million.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The City is committed to providing innovative and responsive services to the community. In its role
of providing policy direction and general oversight, the City Council establishes major goals for City
service delivery. The City initiated and completed a list of major programs/projects during 2020-21
that helped achieve the City’s mission of serving the public and enhancing the quality of life in San
Leandro. Certain programs were created in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, which helped to
reduce the combined health, social, and economic impacts of the pandemic. Some of these major
initiatives and accomplishments include:

e Street Rehabilitation and Sealing — The City completed design and advertised bidding
for construction of a $6.0 million street sealing project. This is the largest street sealing
project that the City has undertaken in the past 25 years and will cover 28 lane miles of
city roadways. The City also awarded and started construction on $12.0 million of street
reconstruction and rehabilitation (7.6 miles).

e Boys and Girls Club Pool Resurfacing Project & Farrelly Pool Replacement Project
— The City completed a $1.4 million Boys and Girls Club Pool Resurfacing Project and
the $8.6 million Farrelly Pool Replacement Project. At the Farrelly site, the City
completed the construction of a new swimming pool facility to replace the aged existing
complex.

e Crosstown Class IV Corridors Study — The City awarded a consulting agreement with
Fehr & Peers to complete the Crosstown Class IV Corridors Study. This $447,000 study
funded with Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Planning Sustainable Communities
Grant will seek to review and identify how to improve safety, access, and mobility for all
roadway users along Bancroft Avenue and Williams Street.
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Public Library COVID-19 Recovery — Following a thorough process ensuring health
and safety, the Library Department reopened the Main Library for onsite, in-person
services in May 2021. Reopening the Main Library after a fourteen-month closure due
to the pandemic provided community members access to vital, free resources such as
computers and printers as well as staff technical assistance.

Monarch Bay Shoreline Development — The public-private partnership with the
developer includes up to 500 new housing units, hotel, restaurants, small retail space,
new open space and an extension of the San Francisco Bay Trail. The project is now in
the entitlements phase, and the developer submitted project designs and plans in 2021.

Loro Landing Apartments — The 62-unit apartment building is expected to be
completed and leased by the end of 2021. The project is 100% affordable units.

Bay Fair TOD Specific Plan Housing — The City approved in the second Senate Bill
(SB) 35 streamlined housing approval project on the former King Parcel adjacent to the
Bay Fair Mall. The development is the first housing project approved pursuant to the
Bay Fair TOD Specific Plan with 497 units, 50% affordable and 50% market rate.

Climate Action Plan Update — The City completed a comprehensive update of the
Climate Action Plan with City Council adoption in July of 2021.

Battery Storage/Energy-Efficiency Project — The City received a $420,000 grant from
PG&E for constructing the battery storage/energy-efficiency project at the Water Pollution
Control Plant.

Measure VV — City Council placed Measure VV on the November 2020 municipal
election ballot. Voters approved the measure increasing the real property transfer tax rate
to $11 per thousand dollars in valuation.

Civilian Police Oversight Board — Based on policy direction from the City Council, the
City launched exploratory efforts related to the creation of a new community police
oversight board and independent police auditor program.

Cannabis Business Operations — The City successfully shepherded the opening of
previously permitted cannabis businesses, which are now operating safely in the
community and generating over $1.0 million in annual General Fund revenue.

Enhancements of Network and Computer Server Security — Information Technology

division implemented new software platforms ensuring protection against cyber-related
threats and attacks.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
City Budget & Budgetary Controls

The City Council is required to adopt a final budget by passing a budget resolution no later than June
30th, following a public hearing process. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s
financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund, function (Public Safety), and
department (Police). The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level. The City Manager is
authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments and line items within any fund. Any
revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.
Transfers between funds must be approved by the City Council. At the end of the fiscal year,
encumbered appropriations are carried forward and become part of the following year’s budget while
appropriations that have not been encumbered lapse, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council
and the City Manager.

Accounting System

The City’s accounting records for general government operations are maintained on a modified
accrual basis, with revenues recorded when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded
when the services or goods are received and the liabilities incurred. Accounting records for the
City’s proprietary activities are maintained on the full accrual basis, with revenues recorded
when earned and expenses when incurred.

In maintaining the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal
controls. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
safeguarding of assets and to ensure the reliability of financial records and maintaining
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived. The evaluation of costs and benefits requires
continuing estimates and judgments by City management. The City’s system of internal
accounting controls continues to adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance
that financial transactions are properly recorded.

Risk Management

The City maintains commercial insurance combined with self-insurance for all its governmental
operations. The City is a member of the Local Agency Workers” Compensation Excess Joint Powers
Authority (LAWCX). The City is also a member of California Joint Powers Risk Management
Authority (CJPRMA), providing general liability coverage in an aggregate up to $40 million.
Additional information on the City’s risk management activity can be found in Note 11 to the basic
financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION
Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its CAFR for the year ended June 30, 2020. The
City received this award for 24™ consecutive years - because of staffing transitions, the City did not
apply for the GFOA award for the fiscal year 2018-19 CAFR. The City is planning to apply for the
award for the fiscal year 2020-21 CAFR.



To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements. The current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.
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IM\MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Members of City Council
City of San Leandro, California

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of San Leandro (City),
California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2021 and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

T 925.930.0802

Accountancy Corporation F 925.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 E maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com



Emphasis of Matter

Management adopted the provisions of the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement, which became effective during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The adoption had an effect
on the financial statements as discussed in Note 1P to the financial statements:

Statement No. 84 — Fiduciary Activities
The emphasis of this matter does not constitute a modification to our opinion.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in the Table of Contents be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statement. The Introductory Section, Supplementary Information, and
Statistical Section as listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not required parts of the basic financial statements.

The Supplementary Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Supplementary Information is fairly
stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22,
2021, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

/wlu'je, 4%“‘0@‘

Pleasant Hill, California
December 22, 2021






Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the City of San Leandro’s
financial activities and fiscal performance for the year ended June 30, 2021. Read this discussion and
analysis in conjunction with the accompanying Transmittal Letter and Basic Financial Statements to
obtain a complete picture of the City’s financial condition.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e City’s Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources exceeded its Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of
Resources by $193.1 million (Net Position), a $12.9 million increase from the prior year. Of total net
position, $186.2 million was invested in capital assets, $51.6 million was restricted for other purposes,
and ($44.6) million was unrestricted. While Net Investment in Capital Assets and Restricted Net
Position saw a decrease of $2.8 million and $12.9 million, respectively, Unrestricted Net Position
increased by $28.6 million.

e Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources increased by $43.7 million from the prior fiscal year,
offset by an increase in Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources of $30.7 million. The increase
in Liabilities was partly due to the increase in net pension liability of $15.3 million and a new direct
borrowing lease agreement of $7.6 million offset by the decrease in debt repayment of $6.0 million
and decrease in net OPEB liability of $1.9 million. Unfunded pension liability as of June 30, 2021 was
$204.1 million.

e The City’s total net position increase of $12.9 million is comprised of a $5.9 million increase in
governmental activities and a $7.1 million increase in Business-Type activities.

e In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, governments are obligated to enhance the financial
reporting of the fund balance categories. Fund balances reported in Note 9 detail the classifications
of the City’s fund balance categories. The City’s governmental fund balance, which includes the
General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects funds, increased by $6.3 million for an
ending fund balance of $135.3 million. Ending fund balance classifications include:

a) Nonspendable: $8.1 million of these funds are not available or spendable due to advances and
loans to other funds.

b) Restricted: $54.4 million based on constraints on the use of resources or imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. These include capital projects and
debt service payments.

c) Assigned: $9.5 million including General Fund encumbrances, the Oakland Airport Access
Agreement, and a reserve funding anticipated Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) costs
arising from the City’s contract for Fire Services with the Alameda County Fire Department.

d) Unassigned: $63.3 million is available for expenditure. Unassigned is further categorized by
Compensated Absences, Major Emergencies, Economic Uncertainties, and offsets from other
fund deficits.



OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The MD&A serves as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial
statements comprise of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The report also contains other supplementary
information

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide readers a broad overview of the City’s finances in a
manner similar to statements of a private-sector business. The Statements are comprised of the Statement
of Net Position and Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as
a useful indicator of changes in the City’s financial reporting.

The Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the
government’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.
Revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes, earned but unused vacation leave, and other compensated
absences).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other functions intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

Both of the above financial statements have separate sections for two different types of programs or
activities. These two types of activities are:

Governmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and charges for
services. The governmental activities of the City include General Government (City Council, City
Manager, City Clerk, Human Resources, Information Technology, and Finance), Public Safety (Police
and Fire), Engineering & Transportation (including Public Works), Recreation and Culture (including the
Library), and Community Development.

Business-Type Activities — These functions normally recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges to external users of goods and services. The business-type activities of the
City include the Water Pollution Control Plant, Environmental Services, Shoreline Enterprise, and Storm
Water.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts maintaining control over resources segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All the funds of the City can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.



Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial capacity.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for government funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation facilitating the comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities. Reconciliations are presented on the page immediately following each
governmental fund financial statement.

The City has 25 governmental funds, of which three are considered a major fund for presentation
purposes. Major funds are presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The City’s three
major funds are the General Fund, Measure BB Special Revenue Fund and the Capital Improvement
Capital Project Fund. Individual fund for each of the non-major governmental funds are provided in the
form of combining statements in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and all other major and non-major
funds. Budgetary comparison statements are elsewhere in this report to demonstrate compliance with the
adopted budget.

Proprietary Funds — The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and
internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the
Water Pollution Control Plant, Shoreline, Storm Water, and Environmental Services. Internal service
funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among various City functions. The City uses
internal service funds to account for the vehicles fleet, building and facilities maintenance, insurance
services, and information systems. Because these services primarily benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, these are included within governmental activities in the governmental-wide
financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, but
in greater detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the City’s
proprietary funds. Internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the
proprietary financial statements. Individual fund data for the proprietary and internal service funds are
provided in the form of combining statements.

Fiduciary Funds — City implemented GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities during fiscal year
2021. As aresult, it was determined that the Agency Funds should be recategorized as Custodial Funds.
As a result, the OPEB Trust fund is no longer reported as of July 1, 2020. The accounting used for these
funds is much like that used for governmental funds. These funds are reported in a separate statement of
fiduciary assets. Please refer to note 1(P) to the financial statement for additional detail information.



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to fully
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements follow the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents required
supplemental information. This information includes budgetary comparison schedules, detailed
information about the City’s agreement with the California Public Employees Retirement System
(CalPERS) for the defined benefit pension plan, more detailed information on the City’s Other Post
Employment Benefit Plan (OPEB), and a detailed description of the City’s Long-Term Debt.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position — As noted, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial
position. In this fiscal year, total assets exceeded liabilities by $193.1 million at the close of fiscal year
2020-21, an increase of 7.2%.

City of San Leandro
Net Assets at June 30, 2021

(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 % change 2021 2020 % change 2021 2020 % change
Current Assets $ 184,137 $ 154,497 19.2% $ 48,786 $ 37,352 30.6% $232,923 $191,849 21.4%
Non-Current Assets 9,184 8,366 9.8% (5,977) (5,204) 14.9% 3,207 3,162 1.4%
Capital Assets 188,650 192,496 -2.0% 81,782 77,972 4.9% 270,432 270,468 0.0%
Total assets 381,971 355,359 7.5% 124,591 110,120 13.1% 506,562 465,479 8.8%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 33,464 31,207 7.2% 2,147 1,810 18.6% 35,611 33,017 7.9%
Current and other liabilities 36,704 19,567 87.6% 3,816 3,029 26.0% 40,520 22,596 79.3%
Long-term liabilities 245,651 237,990 3.2% 57,262 50,057 14.4% 302,913 288,047 5.2%
Total liabilities 282,355 257,557 9.6% 61,078 53,086 15.1% 343,433 310,643 10.6%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,606 7,416 -24.4% - 261 -100.0% 5,606 7,677 -27.0%
Net assets:
Net investment in capital assets 146,228 147,336 -0.8% 39,935 41,645 -4.1% 186,163 188,981 -1.5%
Restricted 51,588 64,473 -20.0% - - N/A 51,588 64,473 -20.0%
Unrestricted (70,342) (90,216) -22.0% 25,724 16,939 51.9% (44,618) (73,277) -39.1%
Total net position $ 127,474 $ 121,593 4.8% 65,659 58,584 12.1% $193,133 $ 180,177 7.2%

The City’s $186.1 million net investment in capital assets such as infrastructure, land, buildings,
machinery, and equipment are the largest portion of the City’s net position. These assets are not available
for future spending because the City currently uses these capital assets to provide services to residents.
Although investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay these investments must be provided from other sources (future income) since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.



Of the City’s total net position, $51.6 million represents resources that are subject to external restrictions.
The remaining balance of ($44.6) million represents an unrestricted net position, which may be used to
meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors within the restrictions set forth by various
funding sources.

Changes in Net Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2021

(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for Services 15,588 $ 17,866 -12.8% $ 24,819 $ 17,163 44.6% $ 40,407 $ 35,029 15.4%
Operating grants and 15,532 7,533 106.2% 350 258 35.7% 15,882 7,791 103.9%
contributions
Capital grants and 7,878 17,774 -55.7% 3,645 473 670.6% 11,523 18,247 -36.8%
contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes 26,664 26,308 1.4% - - 0.0% 26,664 26,308 1.4%
Sales tax 49,575 44,655 11.0% - - 0.0% 49,575 44,655 11.0%
Franchise Fee 5,844 5,649 3.5% - - 0.0% 5,844 5,649 3.5%
Utility users Tax 10,831 10,530 2.9% - - 0.0% 10,831 10,530 2.9%
Property Transfer Tax 9,559 3,788 152.3% - - 0.0% 9,559 3,788 152.3%
911 communication 3,255 3,123 4.2% - - 0.0% 3,255 3,123 4.2%
Access Tax
Other taxes 1,813 1,822 -0.5% 441 661 -33.3% 2,254 2,483 -9.2%
Investment Earnings 1,404 4,484 -68.7% 161 1,215 -86.7% 1,565 5,699 -72.5%
Gain or loss on sale of assets 1,221 2 60950.0% - 0.0% 1,221 2 60950.0%
Miscellaneous 770 878 -12.3% - 0.0% 770 878 -12.3%
Total Revenues 149,934 144,412 3.8% 29,416 19,770 48.8% 179,350 164,182 9.2%
Expenses
General Government 10,695 13,980 -23.5% - - 0.0% 10,695 13,980 -23.5%
Public safety 78,812 73,022 7.9% - - 0.0% 78,812 73,022 7.9%
Engineering & Transportatic 23,380 32,594 -28.3% - - 0.0% 23,380 32,594 -28.3%
Recreation and Culture 11,114 13,337 -16.7% - - 0.0% 11,114 13,337 -16.7%
Community Development 17,850 15,377 16.1% - - 0.0% 17,850 15,377 16.1%
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,202 1,828 20.5% - - 0.0% 2,202 1,828 20.5%
Water Pollution Control - - 0.0% 14,588 15,234 -4.2% 14,588 15,234 -4.2%
Shoreline - - 0.0% 5,393 2,094 157.5% 5,393 2,094 157.5%
Storm Water Utility - - 0.0% 1,552 1,417 9.5% 1,552 1,417 9.5%
Environmental Services - - 0.0% 808 1,082 -25.3% 808 1,082 -25.3%
Total Expenses 144,053 150,138 -4.1% 22,341 19,827 12.7% 166,394 169,965 -2.1%
Excess(deficiency)of revenues
over expenses before transfe 5,881 (5,726) -202.7% 7,075 (57) -12512.3% 12,956 (5,783) -324.0%
Transfer - 112 100.0% - (112) -100.0% 0 0 0.0%
Increase in net position 5,881 (5.614) -204.8% 7,075 (169) -4286.4% 12,956 (5,783) -324.0%
Beginning net position 121,594 127,208 -4.4% 58,584 58,753 -0.3% 180,177 185,961 -3.1%
Ending net position $127,474 $121,594 48% $ 65,659 $ 58,584 12.1%  $193,133 $ 180,178 7.2%




Revenue — Total revenue for fiscal year 2020-21 amounted to $179.4 million, a $15.2 million increase
from the prior fiscal year. Of this amount, revenue from governmental activities increased by $5.5 million
or 3.8% and revenue from business-type activities increased by $9.6 million or 48.8%. The net change in
revenue was due to the following:

Charges for services in Governmental activities are primarily fees for recreation, building, fire,
planning, and engineering services. Revenue from these charges decreased by $2.3 million. Business-
Type Activities increased by $7.7 million most of which is attributed to the Water Pollution Control
Plant and Shoreline.

Operating grants, capital grants, and contributions include Federal and State grants and other
government and private contributions, including impact fees. Operating grants, capital grants and
contributions increased by a net $1.4 million in fiscal year 2020-21.

Property taxes increased by1.4% or $0.4 million when compared to fiscal year 2019-20. This is
consistent with an increase in property taxes levied and assessed valuations provided through the
County Assessor’s Office.

Sales tax revenue increased by 11.0% or $4.9 million when compared to fiscal year 2019-20. The
City’s five largest sales tax producing sectors were General Retail, Business to Business, Construction,
Transportation and Food Services.

Property Transfer Tax increased significantly by 152.3% or $5.8 million when compared to fiscal year
2019-20. The increase is primarily due 1) to the sale of commercial and industrial properties valued
more than $8 million, resulting in additional tax revenue of $1.6 million and 2) a voter approved
Measure VV, which increase the tax from $6 to $11 per $1000.

Gain or loss on sale of assets increased by $0.8 million due to the sale of real property.
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Expenses — Total expenses for both governmental and business-type activities decreased by $3.6 million
compared to the prior fiscal year. Program expenses for governmental activities decreased by $6.1 million
while program expenses for business-type activities increased by $2.5 million. For each governmental and
business-type activity, the total costs are expenses associated with that activity.

Change in expense

(in thousands)

2021 2020 % Change

General Government 10,695 $ 13,980 -23.5%
Public safety 78,812 73,022 7.9%
Engineering & Transportation 23,380 32,594 -28.3%
Recreation and Culture 11,114 13,337 -16.7%
Community Development 17,850 15,377 16.1%
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,202 1,828 20.5%
Governmental Activities 144,053 150,138 -4.1%
Water Pollution Control Plant 14,588 15,234 -4.2%
Shoreline 5,393 2,094 157.5%
Storm Water 1,552 1,417 9.5%
Environmental Services 808 1,082 -25.3%
Business-Type Activities 22,341 19,827 12.7%
Total Expenses $ 166,394 $ 169,965 -2.1%

Within governmental activities, Public Safety has the largest increase in program expenses at $5.8
million greater than the prior fiscal year, a 7.9% increase. The increase was mainly due to an increase
in Safety pension expenses of $4.8 million. Community Development followed with a $2.5 million
increase representing a 16.1% increase over the prior fiscal year. In fiscal year 2020-21, the City
completed the Boys and Girls Club and Farrelly Pool projects. These major expenditures were $1.3
million higher than the capital outlay expenditures incurred in fiscal year 2020-21. In addition, the
City provided rental assistance to impacted residents totaling $0.9 million. Engineering &
Transportation Department’s expenditures decreased by $9.2 million representing a 28.3% decrease
from the prior fiscal year. In fiscal year 2020-21, the City incurred approximately $6.0 million for
rehabilitation and overlay projects compared to $11.0 million in the prior fiscal year. The
capitalization of capital projects and related depreciation costs also partly attributed to the overall
decrease. In fiscal year 2020-21, the City saw a reduction in allocated pension expenses of about $2.0
million due to higher than expected yield in the pension assets.

Business-type activities saw increases in expenses totaling $2.5 million mainly due to the increase in
golf course activities.
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Business-Type Activities — The City’s business-type activities include the Water Pollution Control Plant,
Shoreline, Storm Water, and Environmental Services. Business-Type activities net position increased by
$7.1 million when compared to prior fiscal year. The Water Pollution Control Plant Fund’s net position
increased from $54.6 to $60.1 million.

Expenses by Function — Business-Type Activities Revenues by Source — Business-Type Activities
Environmental Storm Water Capital Grants
. e Other
Services Utility and 2%
4% 7% Contributions °

13%

Shoreline
24%
Operating Grants
and Contributions \
1%

Water Pollution
Control Plant
65%

Charges for
Services
84%

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financial
conditions. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. It should be noted that most of the unassigned
amounts are designated by the City Council for specific uses.

At the end of fiscal year 2020-21, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $135.3 million, an increase of $6.3 million compared to prior year. Approximately 6.0% or $8.1 million
of the fund balance represents Nonspendable; 40.2% or $54.4 million represents Restricted, 7.0% or $9.5
million represents Assigned, and 46.8% or $63.3 million is Unassigned and available for spending at the
City Council’s discretion.

General Fund

The General Fund is a major governmental fund and represents all funds not required to be accounted for
in another fund. The General Fund accounted for 87.6% of the total governmental revenues and 79.0%
of the total expenditures. A number of primary City services are accounted for in the General Fund
including general government, public safety, development services, library and community services, and
maintenance services. At the end of fiscal year 2020-21, the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund
was $66.5 million, while the total fund balance was $83.7 million. As a measure of the General Fund’s
liquidity, it is useful to compare the Unassigned Fund Balance to total of fund expenditures.
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The Unassigned Fund Balance of $66.5 million has been designated for the following purposes:

$0.9 million for Compensated Absences

$5.0 million for Major Emergencies

$24.6 million for Economic Uncertainty

$36.0 million for remaining Unassigned (for liquidity and other purposes)

At the end of fiscal year 2020-21, the General Fund ending balance increased by $19.2 million compared
to the prior fiscal year. General Fund revenues increased by $8.3 million primarily due to a $11.8 million
increase in sales taxes and property transfer tax, offset by a decrease of $2.7 million in use of money and
property. General Fund expenditures (not including Transfers Out) increased by $2.5 million from the
prior fiscal year. The overall increase is largely due to increases in general government and public safety
expenditures for $1.6 million and $0.7 million. The increase for public safety is primarily attributed to
the increase in pension costs.

Measure BB Special Revenue Fund

The Measure BB Special Revenue Fund is a major governmental fund and accounted for 1.6% of the total
governmental revenues and 4.2% of the total expenditures. The fund accounts for the City’s share of
revenues earned and expenditure incurred under the City paratransit, streets and roads, and bike and
pedestrian programs. As of June 30, 2021, the Measure BB Special Revenue Fund had a total fund balance
of ($3.2) million.

Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund is a major governmental fund and accounted for less than
0.1% of the total governmental revenues and 7.1% of the total expenditures (not including other financing
sources such as issuance of debt or interfund transfers). The fund accounts for monies for major capital
improvement projects not provided for in the other special revenue funds such as the Measure B and F
Funds. As of June 30, 2021, the Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund had a total fund balance of
$33.1 million, a decrease of 25.4%. The fund balance including the proceeds from 2018 Lease Revenue
Bonds anticipated to include improvements to the Police and South Office Buildings, the Mulford-Marina
Branch Library, Manor Park Competition Pool, Farrelly Pool, Casa Peralta, and the Boat Harbor.

Non-major Governmental Funds

The City’s non-major funds are presented in the basic financial statements in the aggregate. As of June
30, 2021, non-major funds had a total fund balance of $21.7 million of which all are legally restricted for
specific purposes by external funding. More information about these aggregate non-major funds can be
found in the combining statements immediately following the required supplementary information.

Proprietary Funds
The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements but in greater detail.

The total net position of the Enterprise Funds was $65.6 million at the end on June 30, 2021, an increase

of $7.1 million from the prior fiscal year. The total net position of the Internal Service Funds was $17.1
million at the end on June 30, 2021, an increase of $1.1 million from the prior fiscal year.
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Water Pollution Control Plant Enterprise Fund

The Water Pollution Control Plant Enterprise Fund was established to account for the City’s sewer system,
which protects public health and preserves water quality through collection, treatment, and disposal of
wastewater and wastewater solids. As of June 30, 2021, the Fund’s net position totaled $60.1 million, an
increase of $5.5 million primarily due to the increase in operating revenues and decrease in operating
expenses.

Shoreline Enterprise Fund

The Shoreline Enterprise Fund was established in 2002-03 by combining the Marina Enterprise and the
Golf Course Enterprise Funds. The Fund accounts for the operation of recreational boat berthing, food
service facilities, and the public golf course. As of June 30, 2021, the Fund’s net position totaled $5.0
million, an increase of $1.8 million or 56.8%. Net position for the prior year was $3.2 million.

Non-major Enterprise Funds

The City’s non-major enterprise funds include Storm Water and Environmental Services. As of June 30,
2021, net position for non-major enterprise funds decreased by 33.5%, or $0.2 million, due to decrease in
the Storm Water Fund of $0.5 million and an increase of $0.1 million in the Environment Services Fund.
More information about these aggregate non-major enterprise funds can be found in the combining
statements following the required supplementary information.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The General Fund ended the fiscal year with revenues above final budget projections by 7.3% or $8.6
million. The increase was largely due to improved sales tax and real property transfer tax revenues.
Contrary to the conservative budget projections based on the COVID-19, these revenues reached
historically favorable levels. Expenditures were 6.4% or $7.4 million below final budget projections. A
portion of the unspent budget balance represents open purchase orders and deferred purchases that will
incur in future fiscal years. As shelter-in-place orders were extended, City programs and activities
remained closed, and some programs were deferred.
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REVENUES:

Property taxes and other taxes
Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

Services charges
Intergovernmental

Use of money and property

Interdep artmental charges

Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General government

Public safety

Engineering and transportation
Recreation and culture

Community development

Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fees
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers (in)

Transfers (out)

Proceeds from the sale of property

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year

End of year

(in thousands)

CITY OF SAN LEANDRO
Summary Analysis of General Fund Budget, Fiscal Year 2020-21

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget

Positive
Adopted Final Actual (Negative)
$ 96,348 $ 97,106 $ 107,278 $ 10,172
10,613 10,348 9,449 (899)
1,596 1,347 1,229 (118)
3,156 1,296 1,294 2)
774 1,899 2,356 457
1,532 2,818 1,441 (1,377)
2,000 2,000 2,001 1
2,026 339 662 323
118,045 117,153 125,710 8,557
17,255 13,445 14,745 1,300
68,516 68,119 65,237 (2,882)
11,234 11,558 10,216 (1,342)
11,442 11,800 9,751 (2,049)
6,552 8,302 6,417 (1,885)
2,697 2,697 2,162 (535)
606 606 606 -
118,302 116,527 109,134 (7,393)
257) 626 16,576 15,950
- 4918 4918 -
(5,350) (3,510) (3,510) -
- - 1,221 1,221
(5,350) 1,408 2,629 1,221
$ (5,607) $ 2,034 $ 19,205 $ 17,171
64,514
$ 83,719
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2021 amount to
$270.4 million, net of accumulated depreciation. This represents a decrease of $40 thousand due to the
annual depreciation expense of $17.8 million offset by expenditures for Water Pollution Control Plant and
Sewer Infrastructure, Police Building & South Office Expansion, Farrelly Pool Replacement, and Boys
and Girls Club Pool Resurface projects.

Investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure, and construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable
and of value only to the City such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting
systems, and similar infrastructure.

The following is a summary of the City’s capital assets:

City of San Leandro
Capital Assets (net of depreciation)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Land $ 16,471 $ 16,550 $ 5,234 $ 5,234 $ 21,705 $ 21,784
Construction in progress 22,486 12,945 2,647 1,148 25,133 14,093

Total non-depreciable assets 38,957 29,495 7,881 6,382 46,838 35,877
Depreciable asets (net of depreciation)
Buildings 51,328 52,853 55,470 55,753 106,798 108,606
Improvements other than buildings 5,101 5,037 - - 5,101 5,037
M achinery and equipment 3,253 3,482 4,828 4,926 8,081 8,408
Licensed Vehicles 6,010 6,312 55 49 6,065 6,361
Infrastructure 84,002 95,317 13,548 10,862 97,550 106,179

Total depreciable assets 149,694 163,001 73,901 71,590 223,595 234,591

Total capital assets $ 188,651 $ 192,496 $ 81,782 $ 77,972 $ 270,433 $ 270,468

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the notes to the financial
statements.
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Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s total outstanding long-term debt is $91.3 million, an
increase of $1.4 million from the prior fiscal year due to the direct borrowing lease agreement in the
business-type activities.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s total long-term debt outstanding for governmental activities
is $49.4million, a decrease of $4.1 million from the prior fiscal year. The decrease was due to principal
payments during the year as seen in Note 6 of the notes to the financial statements.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s total long-term debt outstanding for business-type activities
is $41.8 million, an increase of $5.5 million from the prior fiscal year. The increase primarily reflects the
direct borrowing lease agreement ($7.6 million) the City entered with the Banc of America Public Capital
Corporation, decreased by principal payments ($2.1 million) for the State Water Resources Control Board
Loan and Marina Cal Boating Loan.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt obligations can be found in Note 6 of the notes to the
financial statements.

The following is a summary of the City’s outstanding debt:

City of San Leandro
Outstanding Debt
Year Ended June 30, 2021

(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Revenue bonds and notes $ 43941 $ 47,585 $ - $ - $ 43941 $ 47,585
(backed by specific tax and fee revenues)
Certificates of participation - - - - -
Otbher loans 5,482 5,941 41,847 36,327 47,329 42,268
Total $ 49423 $ 53,526 $ 41,847 $ 36,327 $ 91270 $ 89,853

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The economy of the City and major initiative are discussed in the Transmittal Letter located in the
Introductory Section of the CAFR.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all citizens,
taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. Questions concerning any of the information provided in

this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City of San Leandro, Finance
Department, 835 East 14" Street, San Leandro, CA 94577.
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City of San Leandro
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments (Note 2)
Cash and investments with fiscal agent (Note 2)
Receivables:

Accounts

Interest

Special assessments
Inventory and prepaid items

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable (Note 3)
Internal balances (Note 4D)
Land held for resale (Note 10)
Other assets
Capital assets (Note 5):
Non-depreciable
Depreciable
Less accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Related to pension (Note 13)
Related to OPEB (Note 14)

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Interest payable
Other liabilities
Unearned revenue (Note 8)
Compensated absences - Due within one year (Note 7)
Claims and judgments payable - Due within one year (Note 11)
Long- term debt - Due within one year (Note 6)

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Deposits
Compensated absences payable - Due in more than one year (Note 7)
Claims and judgments payable - Due in more than one year (Note 11)
Net pension liability (Note 13)
Net OPEB liability (Note 14)
Long- term debt - Due in more than one year (Note 6)

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Related to pension (Note 13)
Related to OPEB (Note 14)

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION (Note 9)

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service
Engineering and transportation
Recreation and culture
Community Development
Public Safety

Total restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental Business - Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 155,072,177 $ 38,646,451 $ 193,718,628
94,837 7,624,924 7,719,761
28,279,462 2,271,057 30,550,519
331,255 90,506 421,761
49,632 - 49,632
310,118 152,734 462,852
184,137,481 48,785,672 232,923,153
1,996,953 - 1,996,953
5,977,285 (5,977,285) -
382,668 - 382,668
827,061 - 827,061
38,957,575 7,881,087 46,838,662
507,952,463 92,880,807 600,833,270
(358,259,932) (18,980,202) (377,240,134)
188,650,106 81,781,692 270,431,798
197,834,073 75,804,407 273,638,480
381,971,554 124,590,079 506,561,633
31,678,232 2,146,732 33,824,964
1,785,992 - 1,785,992
33,464,224 2,146,732 35,610,956
12,985,815 1,242,053 14,227,368
341,694 9,383 351,077
1,029,609 6,884 1,036,493
13,169,170 - 13,169,170
610,638 140,673 751,311
4,233,746 - 4,233,746
4,334,083 2,416,542 6,750,625
36,704,755 3,815,535 40,520,290
4,696,463 43,584 4,740,047
3,460,279 562,693 4,022,972
2,817,888 - 2,817,388
186,834,266 17,225,544 204,059,810
2,752,343 - 2,752,343
45,089,419 39,430,491 84,519,910
245,650,658 57,262,312 302,912,970
282,355,413 61,077,847 343,433,260
4,315,497 - 4,315,497
1,290,507 - 1,290,507
5,606,004 - 5,606,004
146,227,950 39,934,659 186,162,609
33,119,632 - 33,119,632
423,727 - 423,727
10,463,046 - 10,463,046
673,534 - 673,534
5,803,900 - 5,803,900
1,104,192 - 1,104,192
51,588,031 - 51,588,031
(70,341,620) 25,724,305 (44,617,315)
$ 127,474,361 $ 65,658,964 $ 193,133,325




City of San Leandro

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Total
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 10,695,242 $ 8,151,081 $ 1,171,787 $ 883,944 $ 10,206,812
Public safety 78,812,214 2,770,129 394,454 - 3,164,583
Engineering and transportation 23,380,477 655,211 10,056,695 4,690,273 15,402,179
Recreation and culture 11,113,653 283,313 693,096 2,304,025 3,280,434
Community development 17,849,902 3,728,568 3,216,018 - 6,944,586
Interest on long-term debt 2,201,522 - - - -
Total Governmental Activities 144,053,010 15,588,302 15,532,050 7,878,242 38,998,594
Business-type activities:
Water Pollution Control Plant 14,588,118 16,410,274 - 3,644,686 20,054,960
Shoreline 5,393,167 6,679,050 99,605 - 6,778,655
Storm Water Utility 1,551,666 1,071,874 - - 1,071,874
Environmental Services 807,630 657,670 250,199 - 907,869
Total business-type Activities 22,340,581 24,818,868 349,804 3,644,686 28,813,358
Total primary government $ 166,393,591 $ 40,407,170 $ 15,881,854 $ 11,522,928 $ 67,811,952

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes

Sales tax

Franchise fees

Utility users tax

Property transfer tax

911 communication access tax
Other taxes

Total Taxes

Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Gain on sale of assets

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position - Beginning of year

Net position - End of year
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business- Type
Activities Activities Total
$ (488,430) - $ (488,430)
(75,647,631) - (75,647,631)
(7,978,298) - (7,978,298)
(7,833,219) - (7,833,219)
(10,905,316) - (10,905,316)
(2,201,522) - (2,201,522)
(105,054,416) (105,054,416)
- 5,466,342 5,466,342
- 1,385,488 1,385,488
- (479,792) (479,792)
- 100,239 100,239
- 6,472,777 6,472,777
(105,054,416) 6,472,777 (98,581,639)
26,664,153 - 26,664,153
49,574,497 - 49,574,497
5,844,069 - 5,844,069
10,830,889 - 10,830,889
9,558,694 - 9,558,694
3,255,178 - 3,255,178
1,813,395 441,445 2,254,840
107,540,875 441,445 107,982,320
1,403,560 160,834 1,564,394
769,949 - 769,949
1,221,097 - 1,221,097
110,935,481 602,279 111,537,760
5,881,065 7,075,056 12,956,121
121,593,296 58,583,908 180,177,204
$ 127,474,361 65,658,964 $ 193,133,325







FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements






GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The General Fund — Accounts for all general revenues of the City not specifically levied or collected for
other City funds and the related expenditures. The General Fund accounts for all financial resources of a
governmental unit which are not accounted for in other funds.

Measure BB Special Revenue Fund— This fund accounts for the City's share of revenues earned and
expenditure incurred under the City paratransit, streets and roads, and bike and pedestrian programs.

Capital Improvement Projects Capital Projects Fund — This fund accounts monies for major capital
improvement projects not provided for in the other capital improvement projects fund.
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City of San Leandro
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021

ASSETS

Cash and investments (Note 2)
Cash and investments with fiscal agent (Note 2)
Receivables:

Property taxes

Accounts

Federal, State, and local grants

Interest

Special Assessment

Loans (Note 3)
Due from other funds (Note 4A)
Advances to other funds (Note 4B)
Prepaids
Property held for resale (Note 10)
Other assets

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Due to other funds (Note 4A)
Advances from other funds (Note 4B)
Deposits payable
Unearned revenue (Note 8)

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - grants receivable
Total Deferred Inflow of Resources
Fund Balances: (Note 9)
Nonspendable
Restricted

Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources

and Fund Balances

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Major Funds
Capital
Measure BB Improvement Non-Major
Special Revenue Capital Projects Governmental

General Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 81,819,642 $ 47,982 $ 34,037,096 $ 20,001,493 $ 135,906,213
- - 94,837 - 94,837
18,018,132 5,075,216 - 1,218,564 24,311,912
59,586 - - 3,418,330 3,477,916
241,977 - - 43,446 285,423
49,536 - - 96 49,632
1,349,968 - - 646,985 1,996,953
1,995,077 - - - 1,995,077
6,276,736 - - - 6,276,736
- - - 48,000 48,000
- - - 382,668 382,668
827,061 - - - 827,061
$ 110,637,715 $ 5,123,198 $ 34,131,933 $ 25,759,582 $ 175,652,428
$ 7,348,197 $ 3,580,919 $ 1,025,923 $ 602,919 $ 12,557,958
- - - 589,519 589,519
1,705,009 - - - 1,705,009
4,696,463 - - - 4,696,463
13,169,170 - - - 13,169,170
26,918,839 3,580,919 1,025,923 1,192,438 32,718,119
- 4,711,270 - 2,916,132 7,627,402
- 4,711,270 - 2,916,132 7,627,402
7,626,704 - - 430,668 8,057,372
50,000 - 33,106,010 21,252,736 54,408,746
9,505,953 - - - 9,505,953
66,536,219 (3,168,991) - (32,392) 63,334,836
83,718,876 (3,168,991) 33,106,010 21,651,012 135,306,907
$ 110,637,715 $ 5,123,198 $ 34,131,933 $ 25,759,582 $ 175,652,428
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City of San Leandro

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
with the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

Total fund balances reported on the governmental funds balance sheet $§ 135,306,907

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different from those reported in the Governmental Funds above because of the following:

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current assets or financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds. 182,796,468

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND NET POSITION

Internal service funds are not governmental funds. However, they are used by management to

charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance and central services and maintenance

to individual governmental funds. The net current assets of the Internal Service Funds are therefore

included in Governmental Statement of Activities. 17,087,845

LONG-TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The assets and liabilities below are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the Funds:

Net OPEB liability, related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (2,256,858)
Net pension liability, related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (159,471,531)
Long-term debt (49,423,502)
Interest payable (341,694)
Compensated absences (3,850,676)
Recognition of grants revenue 7,627,402
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 127,474,361

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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City of San Leandro

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES

Property and other taxes
Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures
Service charges
Intergovernmental

Use of money and property
Interdepartmental charges
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government

Public safety

Engineering and transportation

Recreation and culture

Community development
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fees

Total Expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in (Note 4C)
Transfers (out) (Note 4C)
Proceeds from the sale of property
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES

Beginning of year

End of year

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Major Fund
Capital
Measure BB Improvement Non-Major
Special Revenue Capital Projects Governmental

General Fund Fund Funds Total
107,278,144 $ - $ - $ 494,301 $ 107,772,445
9,448,803 - - 613,314 10,062,117
1,229,094 - - 109,367 1,338,461
1,293,520 - 14,641 118,212 1,426,373
2,356,438 2,204,491 - 10,040,498 14,601,427
1,441,002 43,435 6 3,793,156 5,277,599
2,001,068 - - 2,001,068
661,881 83,600 - 330,368 1,075,849
125,709,950 2,331,526 14,647 15,499,216 143,555,339
14,745,469 - - - 14,745,469
65,236,510 - - 412,999 65,649,509
10,216,409 5,874,380 1,304,167 6,511,620 23,906,576
9,751,091 - - 318,288 10,069,379
6,417,240 - 8,517,038 2,832,966 17,767,244
2,161,915 - - 1,723,000 3,884,915
605,712 - - 1,651,256 2,256,968
109,134,346 5,874,380 9,821,205 13,450,129 138,280,060
16,575,604 (3,542,854) (9,806,558) 2,049,087 5,275,279
4,917,823 - 3,460,000 50,000 8,427,823
(3,510,000) - (4,917,823) (176,512) (8,604,335)
1,221,097 - - - 1,221,097
2,628,920 - (1,457,823) (126,512) 1,044,585
19,204,524 (3,542,854) (11,264,381) 1,922,575 6,319,864
64,514,352 373,863 44,370,391 19,728,437 128,987,043
83,718,876 $  (3,168,991) $ 33,106,010 $ 21,651,012 $ 135,306,907
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City of San Leandro

Reconciliation of the Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Government Funds with

the Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2021

The schedule below reconciles the Net Changes in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, which measures only changes in current assets and current
liabilities on the modified accrual basis, with the Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities reported in the

Statement of Activities, which is prepared on the full accrual basis.

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because of the following:

CAPITAL ASSET TRANSACTIONS

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those
assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital expenditures are therefore added back to fund balance

Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balance. The amount excludes the depreciation of $1,222,030,

which is reported in the Internal Service Funds.
Loss on disposal of capital assets is deducted from fund balance

LONG-TERM DEBT PROCEEDS AND PAYMENTS

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
in the Statement of Net Position the repayment reduces long-term liabilities.

Repayment of debt principal is added back to fund balance
Amortization of bond discount is deducted from fund balance
Amortization of bond premium is added back to fund balance

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or (require) the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in governmental funds (net change):

Unearned revenue
Interest payable
Compensated absences

Net pension liabilities, related deferred outflows and inflows of resources

Net OPEB liabilities, related deferred outflows and inflows of resources

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND ACTIVITY

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, 'such as equipment acquisition,
maintenance, and insurance to individual funds. The portion of the net revenue (expense) of these Internal Service Funds
arising out of their transactions with governmental funds is reported with governmental activities, because they service

those activities.
Change in Net Position - All Internal Service Funds

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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6,319,864

11,897,602

(15,692,588)
(88,334)

3,884,915
(10,119)
227,386

5,157,639
17,753
498,690

(7,311,281)

(156,885)

1,136,423

5,881,065






PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Water Pollution Control Plant - This fund accounts for the City’s sewers which protect public health and
preserve water quality through the collection, treatment and disposal of the community’s wastewater and
wastewater solids.

Shoreline - The City operates various recreational facilities which include golf and marina berthing as
well as providing food service facilities for the general public in an area connected to the San Francisco

Bay.

Internal Service Funds - These funds are used to account for special activities and services performed by
a designated City department for other departments on a cost reimbursement basis.
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City of San Leandro
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2021

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments (Note 2)
Cash and investments with fiscal agent (Note 2)
Receivables:
Accounts
Interest
Inventory and prepaids

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Advance to other fund (Note 4B)
Capital assets (Note 5)
Non-Depreciable
Depreciable
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Related to pension (Note 13)
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Due to other funds (Note 4A)
Other liabilities
Unearned revenue
Clams and judgments - due in 1 year (Note 11)
Compensated absences - due in 1 year (Note 7)
Long-term debt - due in 1 year (Note 6)

Total current liabilities
Non-current Liabilities:
Deposits payable
Advances from other funds (Note 4B)
Claims and judgments - due in more than 1 year (Note 11)
Compensated absences - due in more than 1 year (Note 7)

Net pension liability (Note 13)
Long-term debt - due in more than 1 year (Note 6)

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pension (Note 13)
NET POSITION (Note 9)

Net investment in capital asset
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Major Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Non- Major Activities-
Pollution Enterprise Internal Service
Control Plant Shoreline Funds Total Funds
$ 31,317,551 § 5,400,130 § 1,928,770 38,646,451  $ 19,165,964
7,624,924 - - 7,624,924 -
1,563,416 561,185 146,456 2,271,057 489,634
73,302 12,633 4,571 90,506 45,832
- 152,734 - 152,734 262,118
40,579,193 6,126,682 2,079,797 48,785,672 19,963,548
1,705,009 - - 1,705,009 -
4,303,277 3,577,810 - 7,881,087 -
86,930,874 5,929,364 20,569 92,880,807 18,612,034
(15,071,598) (3,888,292) (20,312) (18,980,202) (12,758,396)
76,162,553 5,618,882 257 81,781,692 5,853,638
77,867,562 5,618,882 257 83,486,701 5,853,638
118,446,755 11,745,564 2,080,054 132,272,373 25,817,186
2,146,732 - - 2,146,732 -
1,132,155 92,307 17,591 1,242,053 427,857
- 9,383 - 9,383 -
- - 1,405,558 1,405,558 -
- 6,884 - 6,884 1,029,609
- - - - 4,233,746
100,799 4,400 35,474 140,673 33,037
2,323,269 93,273 - 2,416,542 -
3,556,223 206,247 1,458,623 5,221,093 5,724,249
3,000 40,584 - 43,584 -
- 6,276,736 - 6,276,736 -
- - - - 2,817,888
403,195 17,599 141,899 562,693 187,204
17,225,544 - - 17,225,544 -
39,296,297 134,194 - 39,430,491 -
56,928,036 6,469,113 141,899 63,539,048 3,005,092
60,484,259 6,675,360 1,600,522 68,760,141 8,729,341
34,542,987 5,391,415 257 39,934,659 5,853,638
25,566,241 (321,211) 479,275 25,724,305 11,234,207
$ 60,109,228  $ 5,070,204 $ 479,532 65,658,964 $ 17,087,845
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City of San Leandro

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2021

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

Licenses and permits

Rents and concessions

Other operating revenues

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and benefits
Contractual and other services
Materials and supplies
Depreciation

Other operating costs

Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Property and other taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Interest expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:

Capital contributions
Transfers in (Note 4C)
Transfers out (Note 4C)

Total capital contributions and transfers

Change in net position

NET POSITION:
Net Position-Beginning of year

Net Position-Ending of year

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Major Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Non- Major Activities-
Pollution Enterprise Internal Service

Control Plant Shoreline Funds Total Funds
$  14366,510 $ 6,314,689 $ 1,327,637 22,008,836  $ 16,200,410
1,615,034 - 373,949 1,988,983 -
- 307,717 - 307,717 -
428,730 56,644 27,958 513,332 930,149
16,410,274 6,679,050 1,729,544 24,818,868 17,130,559
7,219,667 508,418 1,279,026 9,007,111 3,755,740
1,125,855 4,033,952 384,139 5,543,946 8,910,024
941,542 126,657 59,092 1,127,291 777,133
1,727,168 115,397 - 1,842,565 1,222,030
2,642,333 273,022 637,039 3,552,394 1,543,414
13,656,565 5,057,446 2,359,296 21,073,307 16,208,341
2,753,709 1,621,604 (629,752) 3,745,561 922,218
- 441,445 - 441,445 -
- 99,605 250,199 349,804 -
146,539 9,172 5,123 160,834 37,693
(931,553) (335,721) - (1,267,274) -
(785,014) 214,501 255,322 (315,191) 37,693
1,968,695 1,836,105 (374,430) 3,430,370 959,911
3,644,686 - - 3,644,686 -
- - 132,782 132,782 176,512
(132,782) - - (132,782) -
3,511,904 - 132,782 3,644,686 176,512
5,480,599 1,836,105 (241,648) 7,075,056 1,136,423
54,628,629 3,234,099 721,180 58,583,908 15,951,422
$ 60,109,228 $ 5,070,204 $ 479,532 65,658,964 $ 17,087,845
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City of San Leandro
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers

Cash received from other funds

Receipts from interfund charges

Cash payments to suppliers and service providers

Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property and other taxes received

Intergovernmental revenue received

Interfund loan

Transfers in from other funds

Transfer out to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal paid on capital debt

Lease proceeds

Acquisition of capital assets

Capital contributions

Interest payments on bonds and notes payable

Net cash provided (used) by capital and

related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Change in market values of investments
Interest income (expense)

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Cash and investments at beginning of year

Cash and investments at end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME/ (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities
(Decrease) increase due to other funds
(Decrease) increase in deposits payable
(Decrease) increase claims and judgments payable
(Decrease) increase in compensated absences
(Decrease) increase in unearned revenue
(Decrease) increase in deferred outflow
(Decrease) increase in deferred inflow
(Decrease) increase in net pension liability

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Major Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Non- Major Activities-
Pollution Enterprise Internal Service

Control Plant Shoreline Funds Total Funds

$ 15,712,405  $ 6,438,417 $ 1,699,177  $ 23,849,999 $ 440,515
- - 461,558 461,558 -

- - - - 16,173,923

(2,981,337) (4,510,836) (1,083,418) (8,575,591) (11,629,450)
(7,136,503) (503,194) (1,276,380) (8,916,077) (3,720,832)
5,594,565 1,424,387 (199,063) 6,819,889 1,264,156

- 441,445 - 441,445 -

- 99,605 250,199 349,804 -

535,556 (223,374) - 312,182 -

- - 132,782 132,782 176,512

(132,782) - (132,782) -
402,774 317,676 382,981 1,103,431 176,512
(1,834,312) (270,587) - (2,104,899) -
7,624,924 - - 7,624,924 -
(5,510,779) (141,112) (257) (5,652,148) (1,259,153)
3,644,686 - - 3,644,686 -
(931,553) (358,033) - (1,289,586) -
2,992,966 (769,732) (257) 2,222,977 (1,259,153)
(377,011) (69,144) (23,253) (469,408) (235,399)
538,297 80,858 29,296 648,451 282,312

161,286 11,714 6,043 179,043 46,913
9,151,591 984,045 189,704 10,325,340 228,428
29,790,884 4,416,085 1,739,066 35,946,035 18,937,536

$ 38,942,475 § 5,400,130 $ 1,928,770 $ 46,271,375 $ 19,165,964
$ 2,753,709  $ 1,621,604  $ (629,752) $ 3,745,561  $ 922,218
1,727,168 115,397 - 1,842,565 1,222,030
(697,869) (245,177) (30,367) (973,413) (489,634)
- (152,734) - (152,734) (24,810)
403,597 75,529 (3,148) 475,978 (277,854)

- 6,884 - 6,884 488,911

- - 461,558 461,558 -

- (2,340) - (2,340) -
(1,059) - - (1,059) (611,613)

83,164 5,224 2,646 91,034 34,908
(337,040) - - (337,040) -
(261,369) - - (261,369) -
1,924,264 - - 1,924,264 -
2,840,856 (197,217) 430,689 3,074,328 341,938

$ 5,594,565 $ 1,424,387 $ (199,063) § 6,819,880 $ 1,264,156
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FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Private Purpose Trust Funds are fiduciary fund types used to report all trust arrangements, other than
those properly reported in pension trust funds or investment trust funds, under which principal and
income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Custodial Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations. They are used to account for assets held in an agency capacity for others and
therefore cannot be used to support the City's programs.

Cherrywood — Accounts for monies accumulated for payments of special assessment bonds
which are financed by assessments placed on the Alameda County tax roll for the Cherrywood
housing development.
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City of San Leandro
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2021

Private-Purpose Cherrywood
Trust Fund Custodial Fund

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 16A) $ 3,244,064 $ 1,129,593
Investments (Notes 2 and 16A):
Mutual funds - -

Cash and investments with fiscal agents (Notes 2 and 16A) 21 448,989
Accounts receivable 23 -
Interest receivable 28,712 1,090

Total Current Assets 3,272,820 1,579,672

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (Note 16B)

Land 706,376 -

Depreciable assets, net 401,126 -

Total non-current assets 1,107,502 -

Total assets 4,380,322 1,579,672
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 9,400 1,579
Deposits payable - -
Interest payable 418,682 -
Long-term debt - due in less than one year (Note 16C) 1,755,394 -
Due to bondholders - -

Total current liabilities 2,183,476 1,579

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Long-term debt - due in more than one year (Note 16C) 31,004,490 -
Total non current liabilities 31,004,490 -
Total liabilities 33,187,966 1,579

NET POSITION
Restricted for bondholders - 1,578,093
Held in trust for private purposes (28,807,644) -
Total net position $ (28,807,644) $ 1,578,093

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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City of San Leandro
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Successor Agency
to the Redevelopment

Agency
Private-Purpose Cherrywood
Trust Fund Custodial Fund
Additions:
Property taxes $ 3,098,078 $ -
Special assessment - 468,110
Use of money and property (97,632) -
Investment income - 2,107
Total additions 3,000,446 470,217
Deductions:
Community development 409,353 -
Depreciation (Notel16B) 11,678 -
Payment to bondholders - 435,488
Debt service interest and fiscal agent fees 1,235,123 17,998
Total deductions 1,656,154 453,486
Change in net position 1,344,292 16,731
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST
Net position - beginning, as restated (Note 1P) (30,151,936) 1,561,362
Net position - end $ (28,807,644) $ 1,578,093

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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For the year ended June 30, 2021
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CITY OF SAN LEANDRO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES I

The basic financial statements of the City of San Leandro, California, (City) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental agencies in
the United States. The Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City of San Leandro, California (City) was incorporated in 1872 and is situated between the cities of
Oakland and Hayward in the East Bay of the San Francisco Bay Area. The City operates under the
Mayor-Council-Manager form of government and provides the following services: public safety (police,
fire, disaster preparedness and hazardous waste disposal), highways and streets, sanitation, health
services, public improvements, planning and zoning and general administration services.

The City is governed by a seven-member council elected by City residents. The City is legally separate
and fiscally independent, which means it can issue debt, set and modify budgets and fees and sue or be
sued. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements include the
financial activities of the City, the primary government, and its component units.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. In addition, component units can be other organizations for
which the primary government’s exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete.

The component units below are included in the City’s basic financial statements using the blended
method since the governing body of these component units are substantially the same as the governing
body of the City and these component units provide services entirely to the City.

The City of San Leandro Parking Authority (Parking Authority) was established to issue debt for
downtown parking structures and lots. There are no financial activities to be accounted for in the
Parking Authority Debt Service Fund in this fiscal year.

The San Leandro Public Financing Authority (Financing Authority) was formed to assist in the
financing and refinancing of capital projects and other community related financing programs. The
financial activities are accounted for in the San Leandro Public Financing Authority Debt Service
Fund in the accompanying basic financial statements.

B. Government—Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its
components units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements except in the case of interfund services provided and used, which are not eliminated in the
consolidation process. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.
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CITY OF SAN LEANDRO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Our policy is to allocate indirect costs to a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements or a particular function
or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government—wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. The City considers sales taxes and property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days
after year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Sales taxes, property taxes, licenses, and interest associated within the current period are all considered to
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the
portion of special assessment receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.
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CITY OF SAN LEANDRO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Measure BB Special Revenue Fund — This fund accounts for the City's share of revenues
earned and expenditure incurred under the City paratransit, streets and roads, and bike and
pedestrian programs.

Capital Improvement Projects Capital Projects Fund accounts monies for major capital
improvements projects not provided for in the other capital projects fund.

The Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34.

The City also reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Pollution Control Plant Fund accounts for the City’s sewers which protect public health
and preserve water quality.

Shoreline Fund accounts for various recreational facilities which include golf and marina berthing
as well as providing food service facilities for the general public in an area connected to the San
Francisco Bay.

A separate column representing internal service funds is also presented in these statements. However,
internal service balances and activities have been combined with the governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City’s Internal Service Funds account for Building
Maintenance, Information Management Systems, Self-Insurance, and Equipment Maintenance which
provides service to other departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on
the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total Net Position. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized
in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary
operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are
those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as
non-operating expenses.

The Fiduciary fund financial statements normally include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. The City's fiduciary funds represent a private purpose trust fund and a
custodial fund. The City’s Funds includes the Cherrywood Fund accounts for monies accumulated for
payments of special assessment bonds.
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CITY OF SAN LEANDRO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I

D. Recognition of Interest Liability

In the government-wide financial statements, interest payable of long-term debt is recognized as the
liability is incurred for governmental fund types as wells as proprietary fund types.

In the fund financial statements, the Governmental fund types do not recognize the interest payable when
the liability is incurred. Interest on long-term debt is recorded in the fund statement when payment is
made. Proprietary fund types recognize the interest payable when the liability is incurred.

E. Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are
available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted net position first.

F. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The City pools cash and investments from all sources, except the fiscal agent cash and investments, for
the purpose of increasing income through investment activities. Interest income on investments is
allocated on the basis of average month-end cash and investment balances in each fund. Cash and cash
equivalents represent cash and investments and restricted cash and investments with an original maturity
term of three months or less. Pooled cash and investments allocated to proprietary fund types are
considered cash and cash equivalents since specific investments held in the City’s pooled cash and
investments are not allocated to each fund.

The City invests in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is part of the Pooled
Money Investment Account operated by the California State Treasurer. LAIF funds are invested in high
quality money market securities and are managed to insure the safety of the portfolio. A portion of
LAIF’s investments are in structured notes and asset-backed securities. The remainder of the City’s
investment portfolio is managed by Chandler Asset Management.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, highly liquid money market investments with maturities of
one year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost.

G. Inventory

Inventory is held for consumption and is valued at average cost. Internal service fund supplies consist of
materials and supplies for the various City vehicles (tires, batteries, etc.) and building maintenance, which
are used for replacement parts for vehicle service and to maintain City buildings. Information
management service inventory consists of postage for department use and a monthly count is performed
to adjust this account to actual at the appropriate month-end.
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CITY OF SAN LEANDRO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I

H. Capital Assets

Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date contributed. Donated
capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service concession
arrangement are recorded at acquisition value. All other capital assets are valued at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. City policy has set the capitalization
threshold for reporting capital assets at $7,500. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5-15 years
Licensed Vehicles 3-15 years
Infrastructure 20-50 years

The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The assets
include streets, sewer, and park lands. Each major infrastructure system can be divided into subsystems.
For example the street system can be subdivided into pavement, curb and gutters, sidewalks, medians,
streetlights, landscaping and land. These subsystems were not delineated in the basic financial
statements. The appropriate operating department maintains information regarding the subsystems.

Interest accrued during capital assets construction, if any, is capitalized for the business-type and
proprietary funds as part of the asset cost.

For all infrastructure systems, the City elected to use the Basic Approach as defined by GASB Statement
No. 34 for infrastructure reporting. Original costs were developed in one of three ways: (1) historical
records; (2) standard unit costs appropriate for the construction/acquisition date; or (3) present cost
indexed by a reciprocal factor of the price increase from the construction/acquisition date to the current
date. The accumulated depreciation, defined as the total depreciation from the date of
construction/acquisition to the current date on a straight line, un-recovered cost method was computed
using industry accepted life expectancies for each infrastructure subsystem. The book value was then
computed by deducting the accumulated depreciation from the original cost.

1. Long-Term Debt

In Government-Wide Financial Statements, long-term debt and other financed obligations are reported as
liabilities in the appropriate activities.

Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds Payable are reported net of the applicable premium or discount.

In Fund Financial Statements long-term debt is not presented but is instead shown in the Reconciliation
of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.
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CITY OF SAN LEANDRO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I

J. Compensated Absences

Vested vacation, sick leave, compensatory time, and related benefits are accrued as appropriate. For
governmental funds, compensated absence obligations are recorded in the appropriate governmental funds
when due. The portion not currently due is recorded in the government-wide financial statements. For
enterprise funds, compensated absences are expensed when earned by employees. At year-end, the
accrued but unpaid compensated absence obligations are recorded as current and non-current liabilities in
the appropriate enterprise funds.

K. Property Taxes

Property taxes are placed on lien January 1 for the following fiscal year. Taxes are payable in two
installments, due on November 1 and February 1, becoming delinquent on December 10 (for November)
and April 10 (for February), respectively. The Alameda County Tax Collector bills and collects property
taxes and allocates a portion to the City. Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year, for
which the taxes have been levied, provided they become available. In January 1994, the City elected to
continue collection of interest and penalties on delinquent taxes and recognizes these revenues when
available. Available means when due or past due and collected within the current period, or expected to
be collected soon thereafter, and to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.

L. Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position or balance sheets reports a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position or balance sheet reports a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

M. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires City management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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N. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The City categorizes its fair
value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in
the market.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 inputs are inputs — other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair value
hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

O. Property Held for Resale

The City purchased property with the intent to resell the property to an income eligible first-time home
buyer. The carrying value of the property as of June 30, 2021 is $382,668.

P. Implementation of New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements

Management adopted the provisions of the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statements which became effective during the year ended June 30, 2021.

In January 2017, GASB issued GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement describes four
fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee benefit) trust
funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. Custodial funds
generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets
specific criteria. The provisions of this Statement were implemented during fiscal year 2021. As part of
the implementation of the Statement, it was determined that the Cherrywood Fund previously reported on
the City’s financial statements as Agency Funds should be reported as a Custodial Funds. In addition, it
was determined that the Deposit Fund should be recategorized as part of the General Fund, previously
reports as an Agency Fund. Furthermore the PARS OPEB Trust fund is no longer reported as of July 1,
2020. Beginning net position of the Cherrywood Custodial Fund was restated and increased by
$1,561,632.

In August 2018, GASB issued GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests — (an Amendment of
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61). The objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. The City
does not have any Majority Equity Interests that are within the scope of GASB Statement No. 90.
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The City maintains a cash and investment pool, which includes cash balances and authorized investments
of all funds, which the Finance Director invests to enhance interest earnings. The pooled interest earned
is allocated to the funds based on average daily cash and investment balance in these funds.

A. Cash Deposits

The carrying amount of the City’s cash deposits is $12,549,082 at June 30, 2021. Bank balances before
reconciling items were $14,230,982, at that date, the total amount of which was insured or collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institutions in the City’s name as discussed below.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure the
City’s cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in this
manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general
creditor. Thus, collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in the City's name.

The fair value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City's cash deposits. California law also
allows institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150%
of the City’s total cash deposits. The City may waive collateral requirements for cash deposits, which are
fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The City, however, has not
waived the collateralization requirements.

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds, except for funds required to be
held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled cash and
investments is allocated on an accounting period basis to the various funds based on the period-end cash and
investment balances. Interest income from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the
related fund.
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B. Investments

Under the provisions of the City’s investment policy, and in accordance with California Government
Code, the City’s Cash and investments as of June 30, 2021, are classified as follows:

Statement of net position:

Cash and investments
Cash and investments - restricted

Cash and investments held by fiscal agents

Fiduciary Funds:

Cash and investments

Cash and investments with fiscal agents

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2021, are classified as follows:

Total cash and investments

Deposits with financial institutions

Investments

Interest Rate Risk

Total cash and investments

§ 188,988,955
4,729,673
7,719,761

4,373,657
449,010

$ 206,261,056

$ 12,714,356
193,546,700

$ 206,261,056

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, there is a greater sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest
rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer-term investments and by timing cash
flow from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over
time as necessary to provide cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. In accordance with the Policy,
the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its
investment portfolio to 5 years or less. The City is in compliance with this provision of the Policy.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s Investments to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investment by

maturity:
12 Months or
Investment Type Fair Value Less 13 to0 24 Months 25 to 60 Months
Federal Agency Securities $ 44399,562  § 9,159,397  $ 9,016,368 $ 26,223,797
Money Market Fund 88,694 88,694 - -
U.S. Treasury Notes 37,668,393 11,314,203 10,472,452 15,881,738
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 74,557,857 74,557,857 - -
Medium-Term Notes 20,593,467 4,956,347 7,015,739 8,621,381
Asset Backed Securities 1,055,080 - - 1,055,080
Supranationals 2,816,956 808,496 2,008,460 -
Commercial Paper 4,197,870 4,197,870 - -
Held by fiscal agent:
U.S. Treasury Money Market Funds 8,168,821 8,168,821 - -
Total $ 193,546,700 § 113,251,685 $ 28,513,019 $§ 51,781,996
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Investments Authorized by the City’s Investment Policy and California Government Code

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the City’s Investment
Policy. The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code that address
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of
debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of the related bond documents.

Investment Type Maximum Maturity Maximum Percentage of *Portfolio
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None
Bankers Acceptances 180 days 40%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25%
Negotiable Certificate of Deposit 5 years 30%
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 20%
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20%
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30%
Mutual Funds N/A 20%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A $75 million per account
Passbook Accounts 5 years None
City Issued Securities N/A None
Supranational Securities 5 years 30%
Asset Backed Securities 5 years 20%
Mortgage Backed/Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20%
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 5 years 20%
Other investment pools N/A None

*excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions.

Investments in Local Agency Investment Fund

The City invests in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), a State of California external investment
pool.

The fair value is calculated by multiplying the account balance with LAIF times a fair value factor of
1.00008297 which is determined by LAIF. This fair value factor was determined by dividing all LAIF
participants’ total aggregate amortized cost by total aggregate fair value.

The City’s investments with Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) at June 30, 2021, included a portion of
the pool funds invested in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These investments included the
following:

e Structured Notes are debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash-flow

characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend on one or more
indices and/or that have embedded forwards or options.
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o Asset-backed Securities, the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their
purchasers to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest
repayments from a pool of mortgages (such as CMOs) or credit card receivables.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s Policy states that the investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a
rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with the City’s investment risk
constraints and the cash flow characteristic of the portfolio. Purchases of mutual funds must not exceed
20% of the value of the portfolio. Investments in U.S. agencies exceed 5% of total portfolio, and Federal
agency investments exhibited below exceeded 5% percent or more of the total investments in any one

issuer:
Percentage of

US Government Agency Securities Amount Inves ted Inves tments

Federal agency securities:

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC)  $ 14,260,930 19.52%

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 13,442,875 18.40%

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 8,348,048 11.43%

Fannie Mae 6,355,349 8.70%

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 1,992,360 2.73%
Total $ 44,399,562 60.77%

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the Entity’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end
for each investment type.

The City’s policy requires that mutual funds must have the highest rating provided by not less than two of
the three largest nationally recognized rating organizations.

Minimum
Fair Legal Exempt From
Investment Type Value Rating Disclosure Not Rated A-1 AAA AA+

Federal Agency Securities $ 44,399,562 N/A $ - 8 - $ - $ - $ 44,399,562
Money Market Fund 88,694 N/A 88,694
U.S. Treasury Notes 37,668,393 N/A 37,668,393
Local Agency Investment Fund 74,557,857 N/A 74,557,857
Medium-Term Notes 20,593,467 A 505,905 1,439,902
Asset Backed Securities 1,055,080 AAA 564,277 490,803
Supranationals 2,816,956 AA 808,496 2,008,460
Commercial Paper 4,197,870 A-1+ 4,197,870
Held by fiscal agent:

U.S. Treasury Money Market 8,168,821 A 8,168,821
Total $ 193,546,700 $ 37668393 $ 76,019,324 $ 4,197,870 $ 11,173,989 $ 45,839,464

AA AA- A+ A A-

Medium-Term Notes $ 1,682,068 $ 2,114,340 $ 1,921,295 $ 6,161,549 $ 6,768,408
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Fair Value Hierarchy

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value
of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of investments of the City as of
June 30, 2021:

Level 1 Level 2 Total
Investments By Fair Value Level:
Federal Agency Securities $ - $ 44399562 $ 44,399,562
U.S. Treasury Notes 37,668,393 37,668,393
Medium-Term Notes 20,593,467 20,593,467
Asset Backed Securities 1,055,080 1,055,080
Supranationals 2,816,956 2,816,956
Commercial Paper 4,197,870 4,197,870
Total Investments $ - $ 110,731,328 110,731,328
Investments Exempt from Fair Value Hierarchy:
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 74,557,857
Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:
Held by fiscal agent:
U.S. Treasury Money Market Funds 8,168,821
Money Market Fund 88,694
Total $ 193,546,700

Investments classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, are valued using matrix pricing techniques
maintained by various pricing vendors. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’
relationship to benchmark quoted prices. The California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is valued
based on the fair value factor provided by the Treasurer of the State of California, which is calculated as
fair value divided by the amortization cost of the investment pool and is exempt from the Fair Value
hierarchy. Fair value is defined as the quoted market value on the last trading day of the period. These
prices are obtained from various pricing sources by the custodian bank.
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At June 30, 2021, the City had loans receivable in the following funds:

Governmental Funds:

General Fund $ 1,349,968
Non M ajor Special Revenue Funds:
Affordable Housing Asset Special Revenue Fund 18,273,614
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 239,161
HOME Fund 4,536,036
Housing In-Lieu 737,000
Less allowance for uncollectible loans (23,138,826)

Total net loans receivable $ 1,996,953

At June 30, 2021, the City was owed in the General Fund, $506,441 for a loan made by the City to
Alameda County Industries Inc. (ACI). The loan is to refurbish ACI's Materials Recovery Facility in
order to expand operations to take in more solid waste, recyclable, and green waste tonnage. The loan is
evidenced by a promissory note with a term of 10 years and is to be repaid in full on July 1, 2025. The
interest rate is 2.5% per annum.

At June 30, 2021, the City was owed in the General Fund, $19,242 for loans made by the City to
employees as part of the Employee Computer Purchase Loan Program. The loans are to assist regular
full-time employees after completion of the one-year probationary period, “permanent” part-time
employees as defined in the relevant MOU and City Council Members with the purchase of a home
computer or laptop. The loans range from $500 to $3,000, are repaid over a 1 or 2 year period, and are
interest free. Payments on the loans are handled as standard payroll deduction.

At June 30, 2021, the City was owed in the General Fund, $70,139 for a loan made by the City to San
Leandro Improvement Agency. The loan is to fund Downtown San Leandro capital improvements. The
loan is evidenced by a promissory note with a term of 10 years. The interest rate is 3% per annum.

At June 30, 2021, the City was owed in the General Fund, $382,987 for a loan made by the City to the
Historic BAL Theatre. The loan is to promote the performing arts, music, and City's culture, which is vital
to the public health and economic vitality of the City. The loan is evidenced by a promissory note with a
term of 30 years. The interest rate is 3% per annum.

At June 30, 2021, the City was owed in the General Fund, $371,159 for a loan made by the City to
MTLG, LLC. The loan is for litigation costs between the City of San Leandro and MTLG, LLC for a
proposed wind energy conversion project. The loan is evidenced by a promissory note in the amount of
the loan and a deed of trust with a term of 10 years. The interest rate is 2% per annum.
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During fiscal year 2021, the City was owed in its Affordable Housing Asset Fund, $18,273,614 which
includes (1) loans made to the City property owners who meet the HUD requirements for financial
assistance for property improvements and first time home buyer loans; (2) a loan made to Ruth Rogers
and Sara Bagwell; (3) a loan made to Eden Housing, Inc.; (4) a loan made to San Leandro Senior
Housing; (5) a loan made to Citizens’ Housing Corporation for property improvements; and (6) a loan
made to Mercy Housing for the construction of the Casa Verde. The total loan receivable amount was
reduced by an allowance for uncollectible loans in the amount of $17,626,629 leaving a balance of
$646,985 as of June 30, 2021.

At June 30, 2021, the City was owed in its Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Special
Revenue Fund, $239,161 for various housing assistance loans made by the City. The terms of repayment
vary. All of the loans receivable was reduced by allowance for uncollectible loans.

At June 30, 2021, the City was owed in its HOME Special Revenue Fund, $4,536,036 which includes (1)
two housing assistance loans made by the City to Citizens’ Housing Corporation; (2) a loan made to
Estabrook Senior Housing for construction of senior housing facility; (3) a loan made to Hello Housing
for the rehabilitation of a single family home; (4) a housing assistance loan made to Allied Housing. The
terms of repayment vary. All of the loans receivable were reduced by allowance for uncollectible loans.

At June 30, 2021, the City was owed in its Housing In-Lieu Special Revenue Fund, $737,000 for a
housing assistance loan made by the City to the Estabrook Senior Housing for low-moderate housing
construction. The terms of repayment vary. The entire loan receivable was reduced by allowance for
uncollectible loans.

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS I

A. Interfund Receivables and Payables

At June 30, 2021, the City had the following short-term receivables and payables:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Non-Major Governmental Funds $ 589,519
Storm Water Utility Fund 1,405,558
Total $ 1,995,077

The City has recorded due to/due from all funds requiring cash at the end of June 30, 2021. The funds that
had deficit year-end balances will be repaid back to the General Fund during the 2021-22 fiscal year.
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B. Long-Term Advances

Long-term advances to be repaid out of future earnings or charges at June 30, 2021, consisted of:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Shoreline Enterprise Fund $ 6,276,736
Water Pollution Control Plant
Enterprise Fund General Fund 1,705,009
Total $ 7,981,745

The City Council authorized General Fund loans to the Shoreline Enterprise Fund for capital
improvements at the Marina and Golf Course. The loans are to be paid over 30 years with an annual
interest accrual rate of 5%. Principal payments are made annually provided the fund has sufficient
resources. The balance as of June 30, 2021, was $2,806,676 and $3,470,060 for the Marina and the Golf
Course, respectively, for a total of $6,276,736.

The City Council authorized a loan to the General Fund from the Water Pollution Control Plant in 2011
for the partial payment of the Public Safety Side Fund Obligation. The $6,000,000 loan was to pay-down

the CalPERS Public Safety Side Fund with a long-term adjustable rate of 4% or less annually for 13
years. As of June 30, 2021, the outstanding amount was $1,705,009.

C. Transfers

Transfers during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, comprised the following:

Transfers Out:

Capital Improvement Water Pollution
General Capital Projects Non-Major Control Plan
Transfers In Fund Fund Governmental Funds Enterprise Fund Total

General Fund $ - $ 4,917,823 $ - $ - $ 4,917,823
Capital Improvements

Capital Projects Fund 3,460,000 - - - 3,460,000
Non-major

Governmental Funds 50,000 - - - 50,000
Non-major

Enterprise Funds - - - 132,782 132,782
Internal Service Funds - - 176,512 - 176,512
Total $ 3,510,000 $ 4,917,823 $ 176,512 $ 132,782 $ 8737117

59



CITY OF SAN LEANDRO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 4 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued) |

The City Council authorized transfers from various funds for fiscal year 2020-21 to the following

accounts and projects:

Capital Improvement Fund
Capital Improvement Fund
Capital Improvement Fund
Capital Improvement Fund
Non-major Governmental Funds
General Fund

Environmental Services Fund
Equipment Maintenance Fund
Total

D. Internal Balances

2,450,000
300,000
475,000
235,000

50,000

4,917,823
132,782
176,512

8,737,117

Street Improvement Projects
Financial Software System
Parks Improvement Projects
Police Headquarters and others
Shuttle Improvements

Capital Improvements

Sewer Inspections

Vehicle Purchase

Internal balances are presented only in the government-wide financial statements. They represent the net
interfund receivables and payables remaining after the elimination of all such balances within government

and business-type activities.
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A. Government-Wide Financial Statements

At June 30, 2021, the City’s capital assets consisted of the following:

Non-depreciable assets:
Land

Construction in Progress
Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Licensed Vehicles
Infrastructure:
Park Irrigation Systems
Medians Irrigation
Park Structures
Roadway
Sidewalk
Curb and Gutter
Underground Piping and Storm Drain
Water Pollution Plant
Total depreciable assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable assets, net

Total capital assets

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
16,471,405 5,234,310 $ 21,705,715
22,486,170 2,646,777 25,132,947
38,957,575 7,881,087 46,838,662
82,705,552 68,496,577 151,202,129
10,704,873 113,416 10,818,289
12,902,859 8,589,825 21,492,684
16,089,801 152,989 16,242,790
4,668,420 - 4,668,420
10,145,502 - 10,145,502
2,861,454 - 2,861,454
255,287,912 - 255,287,912
74,895,578 - 74,895,578
37,447,790 - 37,447,790
242,722 10,059,007 10,301,729
- 5,468,993 5,468,993
507,952,463 92,880,807 600,833,270
(358,259,932) (18,980,202) (377,240,134)
149,692,531 73,900,605 223,593,136
188,650,106 81,781,692 $ 270,431,798

61




CITY OF SAN LEANDRO

For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

The following is a summary of capital assets for governmental activities:

Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land
Construction in progress

Total Non-Depreciable Assets

Depreciable Assets:
Buildings

Improvements

Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
Infrastructure

Total Depreciable Assets
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
Infrastructure

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciable Assets, Net

Total Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2020 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2021
16,550,305  $ -8 (78,900) $ -3 16,471,405
12,944,919 11,794,138 - (2,252,887) 22,486,170
29,495,224 11,794,138 (78,900) (2,252,887) 38,957,575
82,705,552 - - - 82,705,552
10,438,268 - - 266,605 10,704,873
12,890,027 221,169 (208,337) - 12,902,859
15,609,224 1,126,006 (645,429) - 16,089,801
383,577,664 15,442 (30,010) 1,986,282 385,549,378
505,220,735 1,362,617 (883,776) 2,252,887 507,952,463
(29,852,783) (1,525,608) - - (31,378,391)
(5,401,104) (203,146) - - (5,604,250)
(9,408,024) (440,772) 198,900 - (9,649,896)
(9,297,015) (1,428,652) 645,431 - (10,080,236)
(288,260,730) (13,316,440) 30,011 - (301,547,159)
(342,219,656) (16,914,618) 874,342 - (358,259,932)
163,001,079 (15,552,001) (9,434) 2,252,887 149,692,531
192,496,303  § (3,757,863) $ (88,334) $ - $ 188,650,106

Governmental activities depreciation expenses for capital assets for the year ended June

follows:

General Government

Public Safety
Engineering and Transportation
Recreation and Human services
Community Development
Subtotal
Capital assets held by the City's Internal Service Funds

Total Depreciation Expense
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470,777
627,704
12,554,070
1,569,259
470,778

15,692,588

1,222,030
16,914,618
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The following is a summary of capital assets for business-type activities:

Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land
Construction in progress

Total Non-Depreciable Assets

Depreciable Assets:
Buildings

Improvements

Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
Infrastructure

Total Depreciable Assets

Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings

Improvements

Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
Infrastructure

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net

B. Funds Financial Statements

Balance Balance
July 1, 2020 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2021
$ 5,234,310 $ - $ - $ - $ 5,234,310

1,148,155 2,522,852 - (1,024,230) 2,646,777
6,382,465 2,522,852 - (1,024,230) 7,881,087
67,353,755 118,592 - 1,024,230 68,496,577
113,416 - - - 113,416
8,574,732 53,079 (37,986) - 8,589,825
143,975 9,014 - - 152,989
12,578,705 2,957,136 (7,841) - 15,528,000
88,764,583 3,137,821 (45,827) 1,024,230 92,880,807
(11,600,439) (1,426,399) - - (13,026,838)
(113,416) - - - (113,416)
(3,649,293) (149,858) 37,302 - (3,761,849)
(94,898) (3,120) - - (98,018)
(1,716,893) (263,188) - - (1,980,081)
(17,174,939) (1,842,565) 37,302 - (18,980,202)
$ 77,972,109 $ 3,818,108 $ (8,525) $ - $ 81,781,692

The Funds Financial Statements do not present General Government Capital Assets but are shown in the
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net

Position.
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A. Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt

Summary of changes in governmental activities long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2021, follows:

Balance Balance Due within Due in more
Governmental Activity Debt: June 30, 2020 Retirements June 30, 2021 one year than one year
Pension Obligation Bonds:
2012 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds $ 8,405,000 $ (1,835,000) $ 6,570,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 4,570,000
Lease Revenue Bonds:
2013 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds
City portion 6,013,000 (661,000) 5,352,000 681,000 4,671,000
2016 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds 11,450,000 (930,000) 10,520,000 970,000 9,550,000
2018 Lease Revenue Bonds 18,905,000 - 18,905,000 - 18,905,000
Total Governmental Activity Debt 44,773,000 (3,426,000) 41,347,000 3,651,000 37,696,000
Direct Borrowings:
Capital Leases:
2016 Bank of America Equipment Lease 4,621,022 (326,915) 4,294,107 333,816 3,960,291
Total Capital Leases 4,621,022 (326,915) 4,294,107 333,816 3,960,291
Other Debt
HUD 108 Loan - Guarantee Loan -
Senior Center 1,320,000 (132,000) 1,188,000 132,000 1,056,000
Total Other Debt 1,320,000 (132,000) 1,188,000 132,000 1,056,000
Total Government Activity Debt 50,714,022 (3,884,915) 46,829,107 4,116,816 42,712,291
Plus unamortized:
Discount (2012 POB) (39,206) 10,119 (29,087) (10,119) (18,968)
Premium (2013 RLRB) 154,127 (19,888) 134,239 19,888 114,351
Premium (2016 RLRB) 1,474,680 (163,853) 1,310,827 163,853 1,146,974
Premium (2018 LRB) 1,222,061 (43,645) 1,178,416 43,645 1,134,771
Total General Long-term Obligations $ 53,525,684 $ (4,102,182) § 49,423,502 $ 4,334,083 $ 45,089,419
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2012 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds

In 2012, the City issued $18,305,000 principal amount of 2012 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds (2012
POB). The purpose of the 2012 POB is to refinance the “side fund” obligations of the City to CalPERS
with respect solely to the Public Safety Plan. Side funds with CalPERS are retired over a fixed term with
a fixed amortization schedule based on CalPERS actuarial earnings assumption rate (7.65%). 2012 POB
principal is due annually on December 1 and interest is due semi-annually on June 1 and December 1
through June 2024. Debt service is payable from available City resources.

The 2012 POB are general obligations of the City, payable solely from any legally available moneys or
funds of the City. The bond covenants contain events of default that require the revenue of the City to be
applied by the Trustee as specified in the terms of the agreement if any of the following conditions occur:
default on debt service payments; the failure of the City to observe or perform the conditions, covenants,
or agreement terms of the debt; bankruptcy filing by the City; or if any court or competent jurisdiction
shall assume custody or control of the City. There were no such events during the fiscal year ending June
30, 2021.

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the City’s portion of the 2012 POB follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 2,000,000 $ 350,516 $ 2,350,516
2023 2,185,000 247,716 2,432,716
2024 2,385,000 132,127 2,517,127

$ 6,570,000 $ 730,359 $ 7,300,359

2013 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds

In April 2013, the City issued $8,883,000 principal amount of 2013 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds
(2013 RLRB). The purpose of the 2013 RLRBs was to refund and retire the City’s 2003 COPs and 2001
COPs. The 2013 RLRBs bear interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00% and are payable semiannually
on each June 1 and December 1. Principal payments are payable annually on December 1.

The Refunding Bonds are general obligations of the City, payable solely from and secured by Revenues
and certain funds and accounts held under the Indenture. The bond covenants contain events of default
that may result in the termination of the lease, collection of rent due and other monetary charges but do
not terminate the City’s right to possession of the leased property as applied by the Trustee and specified
in the terms of the agreement if any of the following conditions occur: default on debt service payments;
the failure of the City to observe or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement terms of the debt;
bankruptcy filing by the City; or if any court or competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of
the City. There were no such events occurred during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.
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At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the City’s portion of the 2013 RLRB follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 681,000 $ 191,816 $ 872,816
2023 710,000 163,996 873,996
2024 736,000 137,836 873,836
2025 762,000 113,017 875,017
2026 789,000 86,351 875,351
2027 - 2028 1,674,000 75,588 1,749,588

$ 5,352,000 $ 768,604 $ 6,120,604

2016 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds

In fiscal year 2016-17, the San Leandro Public Financing Authority issued $14,125,000 principal amount of
2016 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds (2016 RLRB). The purpose of the 2016 RLRBs was to refinance the
City’s 2007 COPs. The 2016 RLRBs bear interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% and are payable
semiannually on each May 1 and November 1. Principal payments are payable annually on November 1.

The Refunding Bonds are general obligations of the City, payable solely from and secured by Revenues
and certain funds and accounts held under the Indenture. The bond covenants contain events of default
that may result in the termination of the lease or may retain the lease and hold the City liable for all
payments on an annual basis and still have the right to re-enter the leased property without effecting a
surrender of the lease. These may be applied by the Trustee as specified in the terms of the agreement if
any of the following conditions occur: default on debt service payments; the failure of the City to observe
or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement terms of the debt; bankruptcy filing by the City; or if
any court or competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the City. There were no such
events occurred during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the 2016 RLRBs follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 970,000 $ 459,600 $ 1,429,600
2023 1,015,000 409,975 1,424,975
2024 1,070,000 357,850 1,427,850
2025 1,120,000 303,100 1,423,100
2026 1,180,000 260,350 1,440,350
2027 - 2030 5,165,000 511,900 5,676,900

$ 10,520,000 § 2,302,775 $ 12,822,775
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2018 Lease Revenue Bonds

In fiscal year 2018-19, the San Leandro Public Financing Authority issued $18,905,000 principal amount of
2018 Lease Revenue Bonds (2018 LRB). The purpose of the 2018 LRBs was to finance the acquisition and
construction of certain capital improvement projects of the City, anticipated to consist of improvements to
the Police Headquarters and South Office Building, the Mulford-Marina Branch Library, Manor Park
Competition Pool, Farrelly Pool, and Casa Peralta. The 2018 LRBs bear interest rates ranging from 3.5% to
5.0% and are payable semiannually on each May 1 and November 1. Principal payments are payable
annually on November 1, beginning in 2030.

The 2018 Bonds are special obligations of the authority payable solely from and secured by a pledge of
Revenues and certain funds and accounts held under the indenture on a parity with the 2016 Bonds. The
bond covenants contain events of default that may result in the termination of the lease or may retain the
lease and hold the City liable for all payments on an annual basis and still have the right to re-enter the
leased property without effecting a surrender of the lease. These may be applied by the Trustee as
specified in the terms of the agreement if any of the following conditions occur: default on debt service
payments; the failure of the City to observe or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement terms of the
debt; bankruptcy filing by the City; or if any court or competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control
of the City. There were no such events occurred during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the 2018 LRBs are as follow:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ - $ 871,575 $ 871,575
2023 - 871,575 871,575
2024 - 871,575 871,575
2025 - 871,575 871,575
2026 - 871,575 871,575
2027 -2031 630,000 4,342,126 4,972,126
2032 - 2036 3,635,000 3,773,712 7,408,712
2037 - 2041 4,610,000 2,772,750 7,382,750
2042 - 2046 5,870,000 1,492,100 7,362,100
2047 - 2049 4,160,000 253,800 4,413,300

$ 18,905,000 $ 16,992,363 $ 35,897,363
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2016 Bank of America Equipment Lease

On July 21, 2016, the City entered into a direct borrowing Lease/Purchase Agreement with Bank of
America, LLC to Lease/Purchase Equipment in the amount of $5,409,045. The Equipment was for the
installation of energy efficiency improvements on various City-owned facilities. The interest is 2.10%
payable over 16 years.

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the 2016 equipment lease follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 333,816 $ 88,433 $ 422,249
2023 340,864 81,389 422,253
2024 348,059 74,190 422,249
2025 355,407 66,842 422,249
2026 362,909 59,340 422,249
2027 - 2031 1,932,752 178,499 2,111,251
2032 - 2033 620,300 13,067 633,367

$ 4,294,107 $ 561,760 $ 4,855,867

HUD 108 Guarantee Loan — Senior Center

In 2011, the City received a direct borrowing $2,500,000 20-year federal loan from HUD, at an interest rate
of 3% to finance the acquisition and construction of senior center facility within the City of San Leandro.
The loan is secured and payable from the Community Development Block Grant Fund.

The loan covenants contain events of default which include collection of any funds pledged under the
contract, withholding the guarantee of any or all obligations not yet disbursed to the City or the Loanee may
direct the City’s financial institution to refuse to release any loan funds held in loan accounts, repayment
accounts and investment accounts to the City. These events may be applied by the Loanee as specified in the
terms of the agreement if any of the following conditions occur: default on debt service payments; the
failure of the City to observe or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement terms of the debt;
bankruptcy filing by the City; or if any court or competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the
City. There were no such events occurred during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

At June 30, 2021 future debt service requirements for the HUD 108 Guarantee loan follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 132,000 $ 46,246 $ 178,246
2023 132,000 41,256 173,256
2024 132,000 36,135 168,135
2025 132,000 30,882 162,882
2026 132,000 25,496 157,496
2027 - 2030 528,000 45,983 573,983

$ 1,188,000 $ 225,998 $ 1,413,998
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B. Long-Term Debt of Business-Type and Proprietary Funds

Summary of changes in long-term debt of business-type and proprietary funds for the year ended June 30,
2021:

Due Due in
Balance Balance Within more than
Direct Borrowings June 30, 2020 Additions Retirements June 30, 2021 one year one year
State Water Resources
Control Board § 35828954 $ -8 (1,834312) $ 33994642 § 1,882,004 $ 32,112,638
Marina Note 498,054 - (270,587) 227,467 93,273 134,194
Climatec Lease - 7,624,924 - 7,624,924 441,265 7,183,659

Total _$ 36,327,008 $ 7,624,924 $ (2,104899) $§ 41,847,033 $ 2416542 § 39,430,491

State Water Resources Control Board

On August 4, 2011, the City entered into a direct borrowing Finance Agreement with the State Water
Resources Control Board in the total principal amount of $43,000,000, for the purpose of financing the
Wastewater System Expansion and Improvement Project. The loan bears an interest rate of 2.6%.
Principal and interest payments are payable annually on July 1. The debt is secured by the WPCP
Enterprise Fund operating revenues. The project was completed in fiscal year 2016-17.

Pursuant to the agreement, the City is expected to obtain net revenues of the Water system to be equal to
at least 1.20 times the total annual debt service in such fiscal year. In fiscal year 2020-21, net revenues
amounted to $6,336,849 which represented coverage of 229% under the $2,765,865 in debt service.
Future debt service is expected to average $3 million per year through fiscal year 2035-36 for a total of
$41.5 million. The City is authorized under prop 218 to increase up to 9.5% and in fiscal year 2021, we
requested a 7% increase. The City will evaluate its current financial situation and might propose another
hike to meet the coverage expectation. Cash and investments are sufficient to meet any debt service
requirement, until rates increased.

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the State Water Resources Control Board loan are
as follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 1,882,004 $ 883,861 $ 2,765,865
2023 1,930,936 834,929 2,765,865
2024 1,981,140 784,724 2,765,864
2025 2,032,650 733,215 2,765,865
2026 2,085,499 680,366 2,765,365
2027 - 2031 11,269,590 2,559,733 13,829,323
2032 - 2036 12,812,823 1,016,496 13,829,319

$33,994,642 $ 7493324 $41,487,966
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Marina Cal Boating Notes Payable

The City entered into various direct borrowing construction loan agreements with the California
Department of Boating and Waterways in the total principal amount of $5,331,032. The loans bear an
average interest rate of 4.50%. Principal and interest payments are payable annually on each August 1.
The debt is secured by Shoreline Enterprise Fund operating revenues.

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the Marina Cal Boating Notes Payable are as
follows:

For The Year
Ending Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 93,273 $ 10,236 $ 103,509
2023 45,334 6,039 51,373
2024 20,770 3,999 24,769
2025 21,705 3,064 24,769
2026 22,682 2,087 24,769
2027 23,703 1,067 24,770

$ 227467 $ 26,492 § 253,959

2020 Bank of America Equipment Lease

On January 22, 2021, the City entered into a direct borrowing Lease/Purchase Agreement with the Bank
of America, LLC to Lease/Purchase Equipment in the amount of $7,624,924. The Equipment was for the
installation of energy efficiency equipment. The loans bears an interest rate of 1.989% per annum.
Principal and interest payments are payable annually on each January 22. The debt is secured by Water
Pollution Control Plant Enterprise Fund’s operating revenues.

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the 2020 equipment lease as follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 441,265 $ 151,660 $ 592,925
2023 450,042 142,883 592,925
2024 458,993 133,932 592,925
2025 468,123 124,802 592,925
2026 477,434 115,491 592,925
2027 - 2031 2,533,446 431,179 2,964,625
2032 - 2036 2,795,621 169,005 2,964,626

§ 7,624,924 $ 1,268,952 § 8,893,876

C. Debt Covenants and Restrictions

For fiscal year 2020-21, the City complied with all general and specific covenants regarding debt
proceeds usage and debt repayment. In accordance with bond official statements, the City also
maintained adequate reserves for all debt issues.
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The City’s compensated absences consist of accrued vacation pay, sick leave, and accrued compensatory
time. The total amount of the accrued liability is recorded in the Government-wide Financial Statements
and charges for compensated absences expense is charged to the various program activities in the
Governmental funds, primarily General fund and Internal Service funds, and all Proprietary funds.

Summary of changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2021, follows:

Balance Balance Due within Due in more

July 1, 2020 Additions Retirements June 30, 2021 one year than one year
Governmental Activities $ 4,534,699 $ 1,107,319  $ 1,571,101  $ 4,070917 $ 610,638 $ 3,460,279
Business-type Activities 612,332 151,914 60,880 703,366 140,673 562,693
Total $ 5,147,031 § 1,259,233  § 1,631,981 § 4,774,283  § 751,311  § 4,022,972

NOTE 8 - UNEARNED REVENUE I

A. Governmental-Wide Financial Statements

Unearned revenue in the Government-Wide Financial Statements represents amounts for which revenues
have not been earned. At June 30, 2021, unearned revenue in the Government-Wide Financial Statements
was $13,169,170.

NOTE 9 - NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES I

A. Net Position

Net Position is the excess of all the City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources over all its liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources regardless of fund. Net Position is divided into three captions. These
captions apply only to Net Position, which is determined only at the Government-wide level, and are
described below:

Net investment in capital assets describes the portion of Net Position which is represented by the current
net book value of the City’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued to finance these
assets.

Restricted net position describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which
the City cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include capital projects, debt service requirements,
and special revenue programs restricted to special revenue purposes such as Measure B, Measure BB,
Measure F, special Gas Tax, Grant funds, and other special revenue funds.

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Position which is not restricted to use.
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B. Fund Balances

Governmental fund balances represent the net current assets of each fund. Net current assets generally
represent a fund’s cash and receivables, less its liabilities.

The City’s fund balances are classified in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement Number 54 (GASB 54), Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
which requires the City to classify its fund balances based on spending constraints imposed on the use of
resources. For programs with multiple funding sources, the City prioritizes and expends funds in the
following order: Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. Each category in the following
hierarchy is ranked according to the degree of spending constraint:

Nonspendable represents balances set aside to indicate items do not represent available, spendable
resources even though they are a component of assets. Fund balances required to be maintained intact,
such as Permanent Funds, and assets not expected to be converted to cash, such as prepaid, notes
receivable, and land held for redevelopment are included. However, if proceeds realized from the sale or
collection of nonspendable assets are restricted, committed or assigned, then Nonspendable amounts are
required to be presented as a component of the applicable category.

Restricted fund balances have external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws,
regulations, or enabling legislation which requires the resources to be used only for a specific purpose.
Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts subject to restrictions are included along with spendable
resources.

Committed fund balances have constraints imposed by formal action of the City’s highest level decision-
making authority. The City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City that can,
by adoption of a resolution prior to end if the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the
limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place until a similar action is taken to remove or revise
the limitation. Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts subject to council commitments are included
along with spendable resources. As of June 30, 2021, the City does not have committed fund balance.

Assigned fund balances are amounts constrained by the City’s intent to be used for a specific purpose, but
are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed through City Council resolution and/or budget
document or its designee (City Manager) and may be changed at the discretion of the City Council or its
designee. This category includes encumbrances; Nonspendable, when it is the City’s intent to use
proceeds or collections for a specific purpose, and residual fund balances, if any, of Special Revenue,
Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds which have not been restricted or committed.

Unassigned fund balance represents residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or

assigned. This includes the residual general fund balance and residual fund deficits, if any, of other
governmental funds.
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C. Encumbrances

The City uses an encumbrance system as an extension of normal budgetary accounting for governmental
funds. Under this system, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of
monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of applicable appropriations. Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are recorded as restricted, committed or assigned fund balance, depending on the
classification of the resources to be used to liquidate the encumbrance, since they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities. Outstanding encumbrances at year-end are automatically reappropriated for
the following year. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.

As of June 30, 2021, the General Fund had outstanding encumbrances of $1,787,750.
D. Contingency Arrangements

The City’s annual budget requires the City to implement and maintain fund balance to handle any
unforeseen contingencies in the future, rather than continued reliance on the City’s operating General
Fund reserves. These unforeseen contingencies include Economic Uncertainty, major Emergencies and
Contingencies. As of June 30, 2021, the following are reported within the unassigned fund balance of the
General Fund:

Compensated Absences $ 869,569
Major Emergencies 5,000,000
Economic Uncertainty 24,640,460
Other Remaining Unassigned 36,026,190

Total $ 66,536,219
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Detailed classifications of the City’s Fund Balances, as of June 30, 2021, are below:

Capital
Measure BB Improvement Non-Major
General Special Revenue Capital Project Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendables:
Advances to Other Funds $ 6,276,736 $ - $ - S - S 6,276,736
Loans receivable 1,349,968 - - - 1,349,968
Prepaids - - - 48,000 48,000
Property held for resale - - - 382,668 382,668
Total Nonspendable Fund Balances 7,626,704 430,668 8,057,372
Restricted for:
Internship 50,000 - - - 50,000
Capital Projects
Capital Improvement Projects - - 33,106,010 - 33,106,010
Subtotal 50,000 - 33,106,010 - 33,156,010
Non-Major Governmental Funds
Special Assessment District Debt Service - - - 121 121
San Leandro Public Financing Authority - - - 423,606 423,606
GHAD - - - 13,622 13,622
Affordable Housing - - - 2,602,345 2,602,345
Street/ Traffic Improvements - - - 1,939,661 1,939,661
Park Development Fees - - - 1,400,210 1,400,210
Underground Utility - - - 3,123,931 3,123,931
Parking - - - - -
Special Gas Tax - - - 1,588,588 1,588,588
Cherrywood Maintenance - - - 491,338 491,338
Measure B - Paratransit - - - 548,826 548,826
Asset Seizure - - - 1,104,192 1,104,192
Heron Bay - - - 454,777 454,777
Proposition 1B - Local Streets & Roads - - - 14,130 14,130
Special Grants - - - 703,921 703,921
Measure B - - - 2,709,773 2,709,773
Measure F - - - 1,587,389 1,587,389
CDBG - - - 166,592 166,592
HOME - - - 924,565 924,565
Housing In- Lieu - - - 263,508 263,508
Business Improvement District - - - 518,107 518,107
Public Education and Government - - - 673,534 673,534
Subtotal - - - 21,252,736 21,252,736
Total Restricted Fund Balances 50,000 - 33,106,010 21,252,736 54,408,746
Assigned to:
Departmental projects 1,787,750 - - - 1,787,750
Oakland Airport Access Agreement 500,000 - - - 500,000
ACFD OPEB 7,218,203 - - - 7,218,203
Total Assigned Fund Balances 9,505,953 - - - 9,505,953
Unassigned:
General fund - Compensated Absences 869,569 - - - 869,569
General fund - Major Emergencies 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
General fund - Economic Uncertainty 24,640,460 - - - 24,640,460
General fund - Other 36,026,190 - - - 36,026,190
Deficit balance:
Measure BB - (3,168,991) - (32,392) (3,201,383)
Total Unassigned Fund Balances 66,536,219 (3,168,991) - (32,392) 63,334,836
Total Fund Balances $ 83,718,876 $ (3,168,991) $ 33,106,010 $ 21,651,012 $ 135,306,907
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A. Fund Deficits

At June 30, 2021, the Measure BB Special Revenue Fund, the Parking Special Revenue Fund, and the
Storm Water Utility Enterprise Fund had a net position deficits of $3,168,991, $32,392, and $1,452,398,
respectively.

B. Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations

Excess of expenditures over appropriations approved by the City Council occurred in individual funds
during the fiscal year 2020-21 as follows:

Fund/Department Expenditure Appropriation Excess
Special Revenue Funds
Cherrywood Maintenance District $ 452 $ - $ (452)
HOME 13,986 13,664 (322)
San Leandro Public Financing Authority
Debt Service Fund 3,187,884 3,184,859 (3,025)

NOTE 11 — INSURANCE |

The City provides workers’ compensation benefits under self-insurance programs. Claims outstanding,
including claims incurred but not reported, are estimated and recorded as liabilities in the Self Insurance
Internal Service Fund. The City’s self-insured retention limit for workers’ compensation is $250,000 per
claim. The City is a member of the Local Agency Workers’ Compensation Excess Joint Powers
Authority (LAWCX). This coverage includes a limit of $45 million for excess workers compensation, $5
million for employer’s liability, and a statutory excess layer of $50 million.

The City is a member of California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA), which
provides annual general liability coverage in an aggregate up to $40 million. The City is self-insured for
the first $500,000 for liability losses. The City has had no settlements that exceed the self-insured
retention coverage in the last five fiscal years.

The City’s deposits in the CIPRMA equal the ratio of the City’s payroll to the total payrolls of all entities
participating in the same layer of each program in each program year. Actual surpluses or losses are
shared according to a formula developed from overall loss costs and spread to member entities on a
percentage basis after a retrospective rating. Estimated claims liabilities, as shown below, are presented
on a basis of actuarial value as determined by the City’s actuary, who determines the expected value of
the overall claim based upon certain criteria of the claim.

The following provides a reconciliation of claims and judgments:

Current Year Claims for
Liability Claims and Payments in Liability Liability
Balance Changes in Current and Prior Balance Due in
July 1 Estimates Fiscal Years June 30 One Year
2018-2019  $ 6,598,344 $ 2,256,449 $ (2,029,097) $ 6,825,696 $ 1,170,645
2019-2020 6,825,696 3,302,409 (2,464,858) 7,663,247 1,170,645
2020-2021 7,663,247 1,304,621 (1,916,234) 7,051,634 4,233,746
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NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES I

The City participates in several Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been audited by
the City’s independent accountants in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Single Audit Act as
amended and applicable State requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a result of these
audits. However, these programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors and the amount, if
any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time.
The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits which have arisen in the normal course of business.
While substantial damages are alleged in some of these actions, their outcome cannot be predicted with
certainty. In the opinion of the City Attorney, these actions when finally adjudicated will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial position of the City. As discussed in Note 11 to the Financial
Statements, the City maintains a Self-Insurance Fund which has reserves of $3,941,870 at the end of June
30, 2021. These reserves are available to satisfy any future liability.

A. Sales Tax Reimbursement Agreement

The City has entered into a sales tax reimbursement agreement in order to encourage construction and
improvement of property sites within the City. In return, the City is expected to make annual
reimbursement payments until the full amount of assistance has been remitted or over a twenty (20) year
period, whichever comes sooner. The annual cost of each reimbursement payment commitment is equal
to 50% of the net sales tax generated and received by the City above a base amount of $277,000 as
stipulated in the approved agreements.

For financial reporting purposes, GASB Statement No. 77 defines a tax abatement as resulting from an
agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo
tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes
to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. According to GASB
Statement No. 77, the substance of this sales-tax reimbursement agreement meets the definition of “tax
abatements.”

Pursuant to the Sales and Use Tax law (chapter 8 — Article 1 — section 7056), in order to protect the
confidential information of the sales taxes collected and abatements provided to each of the specific
agencies, the City has presented the aggregate amount abated during the current fiscal year.

NOTE 13 — PENSIONS PLAN |

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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NOTE 13 — PENSIONS PLAN (Continued) I

A. Plan Descriptions and Summary of Balances by Plan

All qualified permanent employees are eligible to participate in the City’s defined benefit pension plans:
e Miscellaneous (all other) agent multiple-employer plan
e Safety cost-sharing multiple-employer plan

These plans are administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), which
acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers. Benefit
provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Below is a summary of the deferred outflows of resources, net pension liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources by Plan for the year ended June 30, 2021:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Net Pension Inflows
of Resources Liability of Resources
Miscellaneous $ 12,983,754 $ 104,182,640 $ -
Safety 20,841,210 99,877,170 4,315,497
Total $ 33,824,964 $ 204,059,810 $ 4,315,497

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The cost of living
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. The
Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), Assembly Bill 340, is applicable to employees new to CalPERS
and hired after December 31, 2012.

During the fiscal year 2019, the City adopted amendments with CalPERS that allows sharing of
additional employer costs passed to the employees. The City implemented a cost sharing within the
pension plans among San Leandro Police Officers' Association (SLPOA). This included SLPOA staff
picking up the employers CalPERS share of 3%. These are the maximum under CalPERS law for the
passing on of costs of the employer’s share. These were amendment changes to the contract between the
Board of Administration California Public Employees’ Retirement System and the City as proposed
changes in Section 20516 (Employees Sharing Additional Costs). Increase in employee contribution rates
result in a respective decrease in employer contribution rates.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows:
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Hire date

Benefit formula

Benefit vesting schedule

Benefit payments

Retirement age

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates

Required employer contribution rates, (blended)

Hire date

Benefit formula

Benefit vesting schedule

Benefit payments

Retirement age

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates

Required employer contribution rates

Miscellaneous
On or after May 6,
Prior to 2010 to On or after
May 6, 2010 January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
2.5% @ 55 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
50 to 55 50to 55 52 to 62
2.000% - 2.500% 1.426% - 2.418% 1.000% - 2.500%
8.000% 7.000% 6.750%
10.967% 10.967% 10.967%
Safety
Prior to On or after
January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
3% @ 50 2.7% @ 57
5 years service 5 years service
monthly for life monthly for life
50 50 to 57
3.000% 2.000% - 2.700%
9.000% 13.750%
25.540% 13.884%

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage of
payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for contributions
toward the unfunded accrued liability (UAL). The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly basis. The
City’s required contribution for the UAL in the Miscellanecous and Safety Plans were for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021, $7,226,133 and $6,423,608 respectively.

Employees Covered — The following employees were covered by the benefit terms for the Miscellaneous
Plan as of the most recent actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2019 and measurement date of June 30,

2020:
Miscellaneous
Active employees 254
Inactive employees entitled
but not yet receiving benefits 336
Inactive employees or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 652
Total 1,242

* All Tiers of the Miscellaneous plan were combined together on GASB 68

report by CalPERS

Contributions — Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both Plans

are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS
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The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of
employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the Plan
were as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety Total
Contributions - employer $ 9,717,634 $ 9,219,375 $ 18,937,009

B. Information Common to the Miscellaneous and Safety Plans

The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of each of the Plan is measured as of June 30,
2020, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 using
standard update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net
pension liability is shown below.

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

All Plans

Valuation Date 6/30/2019

Measurement Date 6/30/2020

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll Growth 1)

Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service

Investment Rate of Return 7.15% (2)

Mortality Derived using CalPERS Membership Data for all Funds (3)

Purchasing Power

Protection Allowance floor on purchasing

Post Retirement Benefit Increase power applies, 2.5% thereafter

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, includes inflation

(3) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The probabilities of mortality are based on
the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality
rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement using 90% of Scale M P-2016 published by the Society of
Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial
Assumptions report from December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS website.
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Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for each Plan was 7.15%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate for each Plan assumed that contributions
from all plan members in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF) will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required
rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, each Plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members for all
plans in the PERF. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for each Plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound geometric returns were calculated over the
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (114 years) using a building-block approach. Using the
expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term
and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class (a) Allocation Years 1-10 (b) Years 11+ (¢)
Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Assets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.0%

(a) In the CalPERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fixed Income is include

in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-term Investments;

Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities.
(b) An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period
(c) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period
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C. Miscellaneous (All Other) Agents Multiple-Employer Plan
The changes in the Net Pension Liability for the City’s Miscellaneous Plan are as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 309,423,413 $ 212,824,426 $ 96,598,987
Changes in the year:
Service cost 3,874,755 - 3,874,755
Interest on the total pension liability 21,804,805 - 21,804,805
Changes of benefit terms
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected and actual 2,724,076 - 2,724,076
experience
Plan to plan resource movement
Contributions - employer - 8,774,417 (8,774,417)
Contributions - employees - 1,750,192 (1,750,192)
Net investment income - 10,595,404 (10,595,404)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions (18,245,091) (18,245,091) -
Administrative expense - (300,030) 300,030
Other Miscellaneous Income/(Expense) - - -
Net changes 10,158,545 2,574,892 7,583,653
Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 319,581,958 $ 215,399,318 $ 104,182,640

D. Safety Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan

As of June 30, 2021, the Safety cost-sharing plan reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate
shares of the net pension liability at $99,877,170.

The Safety Plan net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability in
the State-wide pool. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. The City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability for the Safety Plan as of June 30, 2019 and 2020 was as follows:

Safety
Proportion - June 30, 2019 0.899285%
Proportion - June 30, 2020 0.917952%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.018667%
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E. Other Information

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following presents the
net pension liability of the City for the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as
what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous Safety
1% Decrease 6.15% 6.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 143,430,554 $ 142,947,853
Current Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 104,182,640 $ 99,877,170
1% Increase 8.15% 8.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 71,567,822 $ 64,533,599

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions — For the year
ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized total pension expense of $14,119,300 and $13,481,844 for
Miscellaneous and Safety, respectively. At June 30, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Agent-Multiple Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Miscellaneous of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 9,717,634 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience 1,932,094 -
Changes in assumptions - -
Change in employer's proportion and differences between

the employer’s contributions and the employer’s

proportionate share of contributions - -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments 1,334,026 -

Total $ 12,983,754 $ -

Cost-Sharing Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Safety of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 9,219,375 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience 7,744,969 -
Changes in assumptions - (332,693)
Change in employer's proportion and differences between

the employer’s contributions and the employer’s

proportionate share of contributions 1,706,115 (3,982,804)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments 2,170,751 -

Total $ 20,841,210 $ (4,315,497)
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The $9,717,634 and $9,219,375 for Miscellaneous and Safety, respectively, will be reported as deferred
outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized
as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as
pension expense as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety
Plan Plan Total
Year Ended Annual Annual Annual
June 30 Amortization Amorttization Amortization
2022 $ 641,334 $ 1,140,764 $ 1,782,098
2023 715,341 2,883,541 3,598,882
2024 1,045,101 2,194,365 3,239,466
2025 864,344 1,087,668 1,952,012

$§ 3266120 § 7,306,338 $ 10,572,458

NOTE 14 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS I

OPERB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB - For
purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s
OPEB Plan and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PARS. For this purpose, benefit payments are
recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

A. Plan Description

The City administers a multiple-employer defined-benefit post-employment healthcare plan. Dependents
are eligible to enroll, and benefits continue to surviving spouses. The plan was established by City
Council in fiscal year 2009-10 and provides reimbursements to retirees for qualified expenses. Retirees
who have between five and fifteen years of service and meet certain criterion based upon retirement date,
household income in the most recent calendar year, and age are entitled to reimbursements for qualified
expenses.

Benefits Provided - Eligibility for retiree health benefits requires retirement from the City. Retirees may
receive up to $360 monthly medical and $115.74 monthly dental reimbursement prior to age 65. Some
retirees may receive $200 monthly medical reimbursement from age 65 to age 70. With the exception of
certain retirces who are eligible for the $200 payment as discussed, after age 65, the retirees receive the
PEMHCA minimum amount only.

Amendments to benefit provisions are negotiated by various bargaining units at the City and must be
approved by Council. In fiscal year 2008-09, the City established an irrevocable exclusive agent multi-
employer benefit trust which is administered by Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS). The trust
will be used to accumulate and invest assets necessary to reimburse retirees. No separate financial reports
are issued by PARS for the OPEB plan.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms — Membership in the plan consisted of the following at the
measurement date of June 30, 2021:

Active employees 318

Inactives currently receiving benefit payments 293

Inactive entitled to but not yet

receiving benefit payments 208

Total

B. Net OPEB Liability

819

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — The City’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021
and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined on actuarial valuation
date that was rolled forward using standard update procedures to determine the total OPEB liability as of the
measurement date, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Assumptions June 30, 2021 Measurement Date
Valuation Date * June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method * Entry Age Normal Level Percentage of Payroll

Funding Policy » City contributes full Actuarial Determined Contribution
Discount Rate *5.25%

General Inflation * 2.75% annually

Termination

Mortality, Retirement, Disability,

* MCERA 1997-2015 Experience Study

Salary Increases

*3.0%
» Additional merit-based on CallPERS merit 1997 - 2015 Experience Study

Healthcare Cost Trend

* Non-Medicare - 7.25% for 2021, decreasing to an ultimate rate of4.0% in 2076
* Medicare - 6.30% for 2021, decreasing to an ultimate rate of4.0% in 2076

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments (comprised of capital appreciation and
reinvestment of dividends, interest, and other distributions) is determined through a combination of
historical rates of returns, valuation projections, and economic expectations. The expected return is then
calculated by weighting the returns for each asset class according to the exposure as determined by
HighMark’s current strategic allocation. Expected returns are developed and annually reviewed. The target
allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the

following table:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 29.00% 4.82%
Fixed Income 65.00% 1.47%
REITs 1.00% 3.76%
Cash 5.00% 0.06%

Total 100.0%
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Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability is 5.25%. This is the expected
long-term rate of return on City assets using a Moderately Conservative Highmark PLUS fund within the
Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS). The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount
rate assumed that the City contribution will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution
rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is projected to cover all future
OPEB payments. Therefore, the discount rate was set equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

C. Changes in Net OPEB Liability

The changes in the net OPEB liability follows:

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)
(@) (b) (@ -
Balance at June 30, 2020 Measurement Date $ 23,752,824 $ 19,149,376 $ 4,603,448
Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:
Service Cost 868,358 - 868,358
Interest on the total OPEB liability 1,257,969 - 1,257,969
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Employer contributions - City - 1,319,716 (1,319,716)
Employer contributions - Implicit subsidy
Net investment income - 2,700,965 (2,700,965)
Benefit payments (1,319,716) (1,319,716) -
Implicit rate subsidy fulfilled
Administrative expenses - (43,249) 43,249
Net changes 806,611 2,657,716 (1,851,105)
Balance at June 20, 2021 Measurement Date $ 24,559,435 $ 21,807,092 $ 2,752,343
Plan fiduciary net position as percentage of the total OPEB liability 88.79%

D. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend

Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point

higher than the current discount rate:

Net OPEB Liability/(Asset)

Discount Rate -1% Current Discount Rate
(4.25%) (5.25%)

Discount Rate +1%

(6.25%)

$ 5,970,773 $ 2,752,343
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The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-

percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates (6.3% in 2021, trending down to 4.0% in
2076):

Net OPEB Liability/(Asset)

1% Decrease Current Healthcare Cost 1% Increase
Trend Rates
$ (512,329) §$ 2,752,343 $ 6,848,414

E. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized OPEB expense of $1,476,601. At June 30, 2021, the
City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Changes of assumptions $ 1,140,543 $ -
Differences between expected and actual experience 645,449 -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments - (1,290,507)
Total $ 1,785,992 §  (1,290,507)

The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as
part of OPEB expense as follows:

Year Annual
Ended June 30 Amortization
2022 $ 311,234
2023 247,757
2024 222,637
2025 (286,143)
Total $ 495,485

NOTE 15 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS I

The City of San Leandro participates in the East Bay Dischargers Authority established on February 15,
1974. The Agency Members of the Joint Powers are the City of Hayward, City of San Leandro, Oro
Loma Sanitary District, Castro Valley Sanitary District, and Union Sanity District. The authority has the
powers to plan for, acquire, construct, manage, maintain, operate, and control facilities for the collection,
transmission, treatment, reclamation, sale and disposal of waste water. No debt, liability, or obligation of
the Authority shall constitute a debt, liability or obligation of any Agency.
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The Authority is governed by the East Bay Dischargers Commission (Commission). The Commission
consists of five members, one from each Agency. The ownership of the Joint Facilities is as follows:
13.74%, City of San Leandro; 29.44% Oro Loma/Castro Valley; 14.72% City of Hayward; and 42.10%
Union Sanitary District. The City’s share of the expenses are recorded as expenses of the Water Pollution
Control Fund.

NOTE 16 - SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES I

A. Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments at June 30, 2021, consisted of the following:

Statement of net position:

Cash and Investments $ 3,244,064
Cash and Investments held by fiscal agents 21
Total cash and investments $ 3,244,085

The Successor Agency pools its cash and investment with the City in order to achieve a higher return on
investment. Certain restricted funds, which are held and invested by independent custodians through
contractual agreements, are not pooled. These restricted funds include cash with fiscal agents.

B. Capital Assets

The Successor Agency assumed the capital assets of the former Redevelopment Agency as of February 1,
2012. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is
not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
contributed. The Successor Agency’s policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding certain
minimum thresholds and with useful lives exceeding two years.

All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The purpose
of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life of these assets.
The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year’s pro rata share of the cost of
capital assets.
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NOTE 16 - SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES (Continued) I

Depreciation of all capital assets is charged as an expense against operations each year and the total
amount of depreciation taken over the years, called accumulated depreciation, is reported on the balance
sheet as a reduction in the book value of capital assets.

Non-depreciable Assets:
Land

Depreciable Assets:
Buildings and Improvements

Total Depreciable Assets

Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciable Assets, Net

Total Private Purpose
Trust Fund Activity

Capital Assets, Net

C. Long-Term Debt Obligations

Balance Balance
June 30, 2020 Additions June 30, 2021
$ 706,376 $ - $ 706,376

711,792 - 711,792

711,792 - 711,792
(298,988) (11,678) (310,666)
(298,988) (11,678) (310,666)

412,804 (11,678) 401,126

$ 1,119,180 (11,678) $ 1,107,502

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the Successor Agency were as follows:

Balance Balance Current Long-Term
June 30, 2020 Retirements June 30, 2021 Portion Portion

2013 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds

Successor Agency Portion $ 1,747,000 $  (224,000) $ 1,523,000 $ 234,000 $ 1,289,000
2014 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

Successor Agency Portion 10,830,000 (485,000) 10,345,000 675,000 9,670,000
2018 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series A

Successor Agency Portion 16,845,000 - 16,845,000 - 16,845,000
2018 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series B

Successor Agency Portion 1,580,000 (650,000) 930,000 670,000 260,000

Direct Borrowings:

Owner Participation Agreements 533,530 (119,360) 414,170 - 414,170

Total 31,535,530 (1,478,360) 30,057,170 1,579,000 28,478,170
Plus (Less) unamortized:
Premium (2013 LRB) 57,800 (8,562) 49,238 8,562 40,676
Premium (2014 TARB) 1,184,125 (81,664) 1,102,461 81,664 1,020,797
Premium (2018 TARB) 1,637,183 (86,168) 1,551,015 86,168 1,464,847
Total Debt $ 34,414,638 $ (1,654,754) $ 32,759,884 $ 1,755,394 $ 31,004,490
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NOTE 16 - SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES (Continued) I

2013 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds

In 2013, the City issued $11,995,000 principal amount of 2013 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds (2013
RLRB) was issued. The purpose of the 2013 RLRBs was to refund the 2003 COPs and 2001 COPs. The
2013 RLRBs bear interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.00% and are payable semiannually on each June 1
and December 1. Principal payments are payable annually on December 1.

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the Successor Agency’s portion of the 2013
Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds were as follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 234,000 $ 54,190 $ 288,190
2023 240,000 44,710 284,710
2024 249,000 35,864 284,864
2025 258,000 27,464 285,464
2026 266,000 18,455 284,455
2027 276,000 6,900 282,900

$ 1,523,000 $ 187,583 $ 1,710,583

2014 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

On September 30, 2014, the Successor Agency issued $11,235,000 of Tax Allocation Bonds (2014 TABs)
to prepay the 2002 and 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds and to pay issuance costs. The 2014 TABs are payable
and secured by a pledge of tax revenues from tax increment generated in the Plaza Project Area and the
West San Leandro/MacArthur Boulevard Project Area. The 2014 TABs bear interest rates ranging from
3.5% to 5.00% and are payable semiannually on each Marsh 1st and September 1st. Principal payments are
payable on September 1st.

Proceeds were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide funds to fully redeem, on
October 30, 2014, the principal and accrued interest of the 2002 and 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds. As a
result, the 2002 and 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds are considered redeemed (current refunding) and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the statement of fiduciary net position.

&9




CITY OF SAN LEANDRO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 16 - SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES (Continued) I

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the 2014 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds are as
follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 675,000 $ 476,450 $ 1,151,450
2023 720,000 441,575 1,161,575
2024 740,000 405,075 1,145,075
2025 765,000 367,450 1,132,450
2026 785,000 328,700 1,113,700
2027 -2031 4,235,000 1,026,750 5,261,750
2032 - 2035 2,425,000 144,038 2,569,038

$ 10,345,000 $ 3,190,038 $ 13,535,038

2018 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series A

On May 8, 2018, the Successor Agency issued Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (2018A TABs) in the
amount of $16,845,000. The proceeds of the bonds will be used to refund the 2008 Tax Allocation Bonds,
Series 2008. Principal payments of the 2018A TABs are due annually on September from 2023 to 2039 in
amounts ranging from $430,000 to $1,370,000 and bear interest at rates ranging from 3.375% to 5.000%.
Interest is payable semiannually March 1 and September 1. The Bonds are payable solely from tax
increment revenue generated in the Alameda County — City of San Leandro Redevelopment Project Area.
Total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the Bonds was $24,560,636 as of June 30, 2021.

The bonds were issued at a premium of $1,809,519 which is being amortized over the 21-year life of the
bonds resulting in an annual amortization of $86,168.

On the date of issuance of the 2018 A TABs, the Successor Agency deposited into the reserve account for
the 2018 A TABs a municipal bond debt service insurance policy in the amount of $1,431,438, which is
equal to the “Reserve Requirement” for the 2018A TABs.

Proceeds from the 2018A TABs were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide

funds to fully redeem, on June 5, 2018, the outstanding principal and accrued interest of the 2008 Tax
Allocation Bonds.
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NOTE 16 - SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES (Continued) I

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the 2018 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series A
are as follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ - $ 718,888 $ 718,888
2023 430,000 710,288 1,140,288
2024 710,000 687,488 1,397,488
2025 740,000 654,788 1,394,788
2026 775,000 616,912 1,391,912
2027 - 2031 4,510,000 2,446,438 6,956,438
2032 -2036 5,700,000 1,308,589 7,008,589
2037 -2039 3,980,000 212,806 4,192,806

$ 16,845,000 $ 7356197 § 24201,197

2018 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series B

On May 8, 2018, the Successor Agency issued Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (2018B TABs) in the
amount of $2,215,000. The proceeds of the bonds will be used to refund the 2008 Tax Allocation Bonds,
Series 2008. The bonds mature annually each March and September from 2019 to 2022 in amounts ranging
from $260,000 to $670,000 and bear interest at rates ranging from 2.700% to 3.210%. Interest is payable
semiannually March 1 and September 1. The Bonds are payable solely from tax increment revenue
generated in the Alameda County — City of San Leandro Redevelopment Project Area. Total principal and
interest remaining to be paid on the Bonds was $952,904 as of June 30, 2021.

Proceeds from the 2018B TABs were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide
funds to fully redeem, on June 5, 2018, the principal and accrued interest of the 2008 Tax Allocation Bonds.

At June 30, 2021, future debt service requirements for the 2018 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series B
are as follows:

For The Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 670,000 $ 18,731 $ 688,731
2023 260,000 4,173 264,173

$ 930,000 $ 22,904 $ 952,904
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NOTE 16 - SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES (Continued) I

Direct Borrowings

The Agency entered into the following agreements which represent contingency liabilities for the Agency:
Ford Motor Company Owner Participation Agreement

The agreement required the Agency to make annual payment equivalent to 50% of the sales tax
generated above a base of $277,000 by the sale of vehicles as part of the Ford Store San Leandro
development. The amount due is paid over several years depending on the volume of auto sales at
no interest.

NOTE 17 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT |

Reduction of CalPERS Discount Rate

In July 2021, CalPERS reported a preliminary 21.3% net return on investments for the 12-month period that
ended June 30, 2021. Under the Funding Risk Mitigation Policy, approved by the CalPERS Board of
Administration in 2015, the 21.3% net return will trigger a reduction in the discount rate used to calculate
employer and Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) member contributions. The Funding Risk
Mitigation Policy seeks to reduce CalPERS funding risk over time, in which CalPERS investment
performance that significantly outperforms the discount rate will trigger adjustments to the discount rate,
expected investment return, and strategic asset allocation targets. This is the first time it has been
triggered. The discount rate, or assumed rate of return, will drop to 6.8%, from its current level of 7%.

Based on these preliminary fiscal year returns, the CalPERS has announced the funded status of the overall
Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF) is an estimated 82%. This estimate is based on a 7% discount
rate. Under the new 6.8% discount rate, however, CalPERS indicated the funded status of the overall PERF
drops to 80%. This is because existing assets are assumed to grow at a slightly slower rate annually into the
future. As intended under the Funding Risk Mitigation Policy, the lower discount rate increases the
likelihood that CalPERS can reach its target over the longer term. The CalPERS Board of Administration
will continue to review the discount rate through its Asset Liability Management process during the rest of
the calendar year.
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City of San Leandro
Agent Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Retirement Plan - Miscellaneous Plan
As of June 30,
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Last 10 Years*

Measurement Date 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost N 3,921,445 $ 3,570,669 $ 3,522,248 $ 4,044,169 $ 4,095,987 N 4,005,467 $ 3,874,755
Differences between expected and actual

experience - (8,034,544) 593,697 (1,248,019) (596.425) 4,908,580 2,724,076
Changes in assumptions - (4,335,946) - 15,476,760 (1,768,314) - -
Interest 18,796,998 18,867,111 19,495,753 19,808,061 20,204,782 21,089,806 21,804,805
Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions (13.777,288) (14,563,306) (15,016,152) (15,620,511) (16,309,242) (17,262,935) (18,245,091)
Net change in total pension liability 8,941,155 (4,496,016) 8,595,546 22,460,460 5,626,788 12,740,918 10,158,545
Total pension liability - beginning 255,554,562 264.495.717 259.999.701 268.595.247 291,055,707 296,682,495 309.423.413
Total pension liability - ending (a) S 264,495,717 S 259,999,701 $ 268,595,247 $ 291,055,707 $ 296,682,495 $ 309,423,413 $ 319,581,958
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 4,594,523 $ 5,043,060 $ 5,638,865 $ 6,399,288 $ 6,873,684 $ 7,676,172 $ 8,774,417
Contributions - employee 2,010,061 1,672,356 1,618,186 1,695,139 1,762,858 1,826,595 1,750,192
Net investment income 29,807,971 4,385,312 994,580 20,564,284 16,783,894 13,606,328 10,595,404
Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions (13,777,288) (14,563,306) (15,016,152) (15,620,511) (16,309,242) (17,262,935) (18,245,091)
Plan to Plan Resource Movement - (572) - - (1,934) - -
Administrative Expense - (217,263) (117.644) (274,840) (309,964) (147,809) (300,030)
Other Miscellaneous Income/(Expense) - - - - (588,627) 483 -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 22,635,267 (3,680,413) (6,882,165) 12,763,360 8,210,669 5,698,834 2,574,892
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 174,078,874 196,714,141 193,033,728 186,151,563 198.914.923 207,125,592 212.824.426
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) S 196,714,141 S 193,033,728 $ 186,151,563 $ 198,914,923 $ 207,125,592 $ 212,824,426 $ 215,399,318
Net pension liability - ending (a)-(b) S 67,781,576 _§ 66,965,973 $ 82,443,684 $ 92,140,784 $ 89,556,903 $ 96,598,987 $ 104,182,640
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability 25.63% 25.76% 30.69% 31.66% 30.19% 31.22% 32.60%
Covered payroll N 20,167,441 $ 19,979,507 $ 21,037,041 $ 21,903,698 $ 22,864,060 $ 22,638,587 $ 23,100,009
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of covered
payroll 336.09% 335.17% 391.90% 420.66% 391.69% 426.70% 451.01%

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit changes - The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which occurred after the June 30. This applies for voluntary
benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes).

Changes in assumptions - Changes in ions - In 2017, the ing discount rate reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. In 2016, 2018, 2019, and 2020, there were no

changes. In 2015, amounts reported reflect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent (without a reduction for pension plan
administrative expense.) In 2014, amounts reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation.
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Fiscal Year

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contributions

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Notes to Schedule
Valuation date:

City of San Leandro

Agent Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Retirement Plan - Miscellaneous Plan

As of fiscal year ending June 30,

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Last 10 Years*

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$ 5,043,060 $ 5,638,865 $ 6,387,063 $ 6,873,205 $ 7,688,583 $ 8,747,418 $ 9,717,634
(5,043,060) (5,638,865) (6,387,063) (6,873,205) (7,688,583) (8,747.418) (9,717,634)
S - S - S N $ - $ = $ - S N
$ 19,979,507 $ 21,037,041 $ 21,903,698 $ 22,864,060 $ 22,638,587 $ 23,100,009 $ 22,919,363
25.24% 26.80% 29.16% 30.06% 33.96% 37.87% 42.40%
6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Asset valuation method
Inflation

Salary increases
Payroll growth

Investment rate of return

Retirement age
Mortality

Entry age normal
Level percentage of payroll
Market Value of Assets

2.75% for 2015 to 2019, 2.625% for 2020, and 2.50% for 2021.

Varies by entry age and service

2.75%

7.50% for 2015 to 2018, 7.375% for 2019, 7.25% for 2020, and 7.00% for 2021, net of pension plan

expense and

ive expenses, includes inflation
The probabilities of retirement are based on the CalPERS Experience Study.

The probabilities of mortality are based on the CalPERS Experience Study. Pre-retirement and Post-
retirement mortality rates include 20 years of projected mortality improvement using Scale AA
published by the Society of Actuaries for 2015 to 2018. For 2019, 2020, and 2021, pre-retirement and
post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement using 90% of

Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.
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City of San Leandro
Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Pension Plan - Safety Plan
SCHEDULE OF THE PLAN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS AS OF THE MEASUREMENT DATE
Last 10 Years*

Measurement Date 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019 6/30/2020
Plan's proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 0.77754% 0.84138% 0.85648% 0.85168% 0.88976% 0.89929% 0.91795%
Plan's proportion share of the Net Pension Liability
(Asset) $ 48,381,880 $ 57,751,630 $ 74,111,802 $ 84,462,824 $ 85,739,175 $ 92,150,076 $ 99,870,170
Plan's Covered Payroll $ 10,789,007 $ 10,794,582 $ 11,439,904 $ 11,316,753 $ 12,841,859 $ 13,169,196 $ 13,692,447

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 450.15% 535.01% 647.84% 746.35% 667.65% 699.74% 729.38%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position
as a Percentage of the Plan’s Total Pension Liability 79.82% 78.40% 74.06% 73.31% 75.26% 75.26% 75.10%

* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation.
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City of San Leandro
Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Pension Plan - Safety Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Last 10 Years*

Fiscal Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actuarially determined contribution $ 2,992,821 $ 5,482,854 $ 5,233,646 $ 6,062,560 $ 7,027,678 $ 8,187,368 $ 9,219,375
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions (2,992,821) (5,482,854) (5,233,646) (6,062,560) (7,027,678) (8,187,368) (9,219,375)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered payroll $ 10,794,582 $ 11,439,904 $ 11,316,753 $ 12,841,859 $ 13,169,196 $ 13,692,447 $ 13,470,710
Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll 27.73% 47.93% 46.25% 47.21% 53.36% 59.79% 68.44%

* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation.
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City of San Leandro

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan - Multiple Employer Plan

Schedule of Changes in the
Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

For the Measurement Period Ended June 30 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 709979 $ 673,551 $§ 692916 § 843,066 $ 868,358
Interest 1,027,370 1,054,962 1,067,353 1,216,539 1,257,969
Changes of benefit terms - - - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience - - 1,270,076.00 - -
Changes of assumptions - 440,394 1,975,353 - -
Implicit rate subsidy fulfilled - (733,337) - - -
Benefit Payments (1,538,260) (802,834)  (1,508460)  (1,271,770)  (1,319,716)
Net change in Total OPEB Liability 199,089 632,236 3,497,238 787,835 806,611
Total OPEB Liability at beginning of year 18,636,426 18,835,515 19,467,751 22,964,989 23,752,824
Total OPEB Liability at end of year $ 18,835,515  $19,467,751  $22,964,989  § 23,752,824 _$ 24,559,435
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 8,488260 $ 1,552,834 $2,508,460 $ 2,771,770 $ 1,319,716
Contributions - employer for implicit subsidy - 733,837 - - -
Contributions - member - - - - -
Net investment income 640,483 528,900 1,047,583 801,925 2,700,965
Benefit payments (1,538,260) (802,834)  (1,508,460)  (1,271,770)  (1,319,716)
Implicit subsidy fulfilled - (733,837) - - -
Administrative expenses (40,605) (67,811) (36,472) (40,057) (43,249)
Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 7,549,878 1,211,089 2,011,111 2,261,868 2,657,716
Plan Fiduciary Net Position at beginning of year 6,115,430 13,665,308 14,876,397 16,887,508 19,149,376
Plan Fiduciary Net Position at end of year $ 13,665,308  $ 14,876,397 $ 16,887,508 $19,149376 $ 21,807,092
Authority's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) at end of year $ 5,170,207 $ 4,591,354 $ 6,077,481 $ 4,603,448 § 2,752,343
Plan's Fiduciary Net Position as percentage of Total OPEB
Liability 72.6% 76.4% 73.5% 80.6% 88.8%
Covered employee payroll $34,267,955 $33,357,709 $42,275,248 $41,120,591 $41,613,491
Net OPEB Liability as percentage of covered payroll 15.09% 13.76% 14.38% 11.19% 6.61%
Notes:

(1) Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation for GASB 75
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Other Postemployment Benefits - Multiple-Employer Plan

Schedule of Contributions
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 2018 2019
Actuarially determined contribution $ 892,618 $ 1,121,087  § 1,027,403
Contributions in relation to the

actuarially determined contribution (7,788,327) (2,286,671) (2,508,460)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (6,895,709) $ (1,165,584) $  (1,481,057)
Covered-employee payroll $ 34,267,955 $ 33,357,709 $§ 42275248

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 22.73% 6.86%

Notes:
(1) Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation for GASB 75
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BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund

REVENUES:
Property taxes and other taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Services charges
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Interdepartmental charges
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Engineering and transportation
Recreation and culture
Community development
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Proceeds from the sale of property

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive

Adopted Final Actual (Negative)
$ 96,348,209 $ 97,105,704 $ 107,278,144 § 10,172,440
10,612,800 10,348,144 9,448,803 (899,341)
1,596,457 1,346,883 1,229,094 (117,789)
3,156,463 1,296,500 1,293,520 (2,980)
774,025 1,899,025 2,356,438 457,413
1,531,506 2,817,600 1,441,002 (1,376,598)
2,000,000 2,000,000 2,001,068 1,068
2,026,000 339,000 661,881 322,881
118,045,460 117,152,856 125,709,950 8,557,094
17,255,580 13,444,406 14,745,469 (1,301,063)
68,515,900 68,119,126 65,236,510 2,882,616
11,233,785 11,558,113 10,216,409 1,341,704
11,441,961 11,799,757 9,751,091 2,048,666
6,552,189 8,302,244 6,417,240 1,885,004
2,697,471 2,697,471 2,161,915 535,556
605,712 605,712 605,712 -
118,302,598 116,526,829 109,134,346 7,392,483
(257,138) 626,027 16,575,604 15,949,577

- 4,917,823 4,917,823 -
(5,350,000) (3,510,000) (3,510,000) -
- - 1,221,097 1,221,097
(5,350,000) 1,407,823 2,628,920 1,221,097
$ (5,607,138) $§ 2,033,850 19,204,524 $ 17,170,674

64514352
S 83718876
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BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Measure BB Special Revenue Fund

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Adopted Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 8,684,000 $ 6,535,379 2,204,491 $ (4,330,888)
Use of money and property - 5,000 43,435 38,435
Other - - 83,600 83,600
Total revenues 8,684,000 6,540,379 2,331,526 (4,208,853)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Engineering and transportation 8,520,000 22,348,109 5,874,380 16,473,729
Total expenditures 8,520,000 22,348,109 5,874,380 16,473,729
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 164,000 $ (15,807,730) (3,542,854)  § 12,264,876
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 373,863
End of year (3,168,991)
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Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City adopts a biennial budget annually for all governmental fund types. This budget is effective July
1 through June 30 for each of the ensuing fiscal years. The second year of the biennial budget is amended
during the mid-biennial budget cycle process. From the effective date of the budget, which is adopted
and controlled at the department level, the amounts stated therein as proposed expenditures become
appropriations to the various City departments. The City Council may amend the budget by resolution
during the fiscal year. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments
and line items within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must
be approved by the City Council. Transfers between funds must be approved by the City Council. All
appropriations lapse at year-end, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council and the City Manager,
except for capital improvement funds for which appropriations may be carried over for not more than five
(5) fiscal years as per the City of San Leandro Charter, Section 520. The City did not budget Proposition
1B — Local Streets and Roads Fund and Housing In Lieu Fund.

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles except for
capital projects funds, which are adopted on a project length basis, which means budgets, are used until
the project’s completion, not to exceed five fiscal years, for the entire project amount.

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditures
of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation. Encumbrance
accounting is employed as an extension of the formal budgetary process. Encumbrances outstanding at
year-end are carried over to the next fiscal year as part of that year’s budget resolution.

GAAP serves as the budgetary basis of accounting.
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Major Governmental Fund
Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Service charges
Use of money and property

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Engineering and transportation
Recreation and culture
Community development
Total expenditures
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfer in
Transfer out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 70,500 14,641 $ (55,859)
100 6 (94)
70,600 14,647 (55,953)
13,936,286 1,304,167 12,632,119
2,500,000 - 2,500,000
26,884,145 8,517,038 18,367,107
43,320,431 9,821,205 33,499,226
(43,249,831) (9,806,558) 33,443,273
3,460,000 3,460,000 -
(4,917,823) (4,917,823) -
$ (44,707,654) (11,264,381) § 33,443,273
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Affordable Housing Asset Fund — This fund accounts for assets received from affordable housing
activities from the former Redevelopment Agency’s Low/Moderate Housing Fund and acts as its
Successor Agency.

Street/Traffic Improvements — This fund accounts for development fee assessments levied to provide for
partial funding of street and traffic improvements associated with commercial and residential growth.

Park Development Fee — This fund accounts for park development fee assessments levied to provide for
partial funding for park development needs associated with residential growth.

Underground Utilities Fees — This fund accounts for utility conversion project assessments levied to
provide for the placement of overhead facilities underground. Assessment shall be expended only for
expansion of, maintenance of or construction of Underground Utility Districts and facilities.

Parking — This fund accounts for parking meter and parking lot collections for maintenance of downtown
parking facilities and other public parking locations.

Special Gas Tax — This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures received from the State of California
under Street and Highways Code. The allocations must be spent for street maintenance and construction
and a limited amount for engineering.

Cherrywood Maintenance District — This fund is used to account for the special assessment funding for
the on-going maintenance of public facilities at the Cherrywood development.

Measure B Paratransit — This fund accounts for the City’s share of proceeds of a one-half cent sales tax
increase originally approved by the voters in November 1986. The program is administered by the
Alameda County Transportation Authority. The tax provides funds for AC transit and paratransit
operations.

Asset Seizure — This fund accounts for funds received from asset forfeiture and used for public safety
purposes.

Heron Bay — This fund accounts for maintenance assessments to fund ongoing maintenance of wetlands
impacted by residential growth.

Proposition IB Local Streets & Roads — This fund accounts for Proposition IB funds for safety
improvements and repairs to local streets and roads.

Special Grants — This fund accounts for various grants from the State of California and the Federal
Government to be expended for a specific purpose, activity or facility.

Measure B — This fund accounts for the City's share of proceeds on a one-half cent sales tax increase
originally approved by the voters in November 1986. The program is administered by the Alameda
County Transportation Authority. The tax provides funds for eight specific projects within Alameda
County including major freeway improvements and a major rail extension.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Measure F — This fund accounts for the City's share of proceeds on a $10 increase in Vehicle
Registration fees originally approved by the voters in November 2010. The program is administered by
the Alameda County Transportation Authority. The tax provides funds for projects to reduce traffic
congestion and vehicle related pollution.

C.D.B.G. — This fund accounts for federally funded grants through the Community Development Block
Grant Program from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

HOME - This fund accounts for federally funded grants from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development to provide for community housing renovation programs.

Housing In-Lieu — This fund accounts for Housing In-Lieu assessments levied to provide for partial
funding of low/moderate housing projects.

Business Improvement District — This fund accounts for service fees charged to business owners to
provide a shuttle service from BART to the downtown business district.

Public Education & Government (PEG) Fund — This fund accounts for the Digital Infrastructure and
Video Competition Act (DIVCA) of 2006, collecting 1% of gross revenues from state franchise holders.
The fund accounts for user fees charged to cable television customers to provide public education on
government programs.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Special Assessment District — This fund accumulates monies for payments of special assessment bonds
which are financed by assessments placed on the Alameda County tax roll.

San Leandro Public Financing Authority Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for the Certificates of
Participation issued for the library and fire stations seismic retrofit. These Certificates of Participation
were refunded by the issuance of the 2016 Lease Revenue Bonds. The debt will be paid back pursuant to
lease agreements between the City of San Leandro and the San Leandro Public Finance Authority.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

San Leandro Hillside Geological Hazardous Abatement District (GHAD) — This fund is used to account
for the finances of the collaborative between the City of San Leandro and the Geological Hazardous
Abatement.
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City of San Leandro
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021
Special Revenue Funds
Affordable Park Underground
Housing Street/ Traftic Development Utility
Asset Fund Improvements Fee Fee
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,948,466 $ 1,942,431 $ 1,398,261 $ 3,115,958
Receivables:
Accounts 2,644 - - -
Federal, State, and local grants - - - -
Interest 4,994 4,942 1,949 7,973
Special assessments - - - -
Loans 646,985 - - -
Prepaids - - - -
Property held for resale 382,668 - - -
Total Assets $ 2,985,757 $ 1,947,373 $ 1,400,210 $ 3,123,931
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 744 $ 7,712 $ - $ -
Due to other funds - - - -
Total Liabilities 744 7,712 - -
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - grants receivable - - - -
Total Deferred Inflow of resources - - - -
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable 382,668 - - -
Restricted 2,602,345 1,939,661 1,400,210 3,123,931
Unassigned - - - -
Total Fund Balances 2,985,013 1,939,661 1,400,210 3,123,931
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of
Resources and Fund Balances $ 2,985,757 $ 1,947,373 $ 1,400,210 $ 3,123,931
(Continued)
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Special Revenue Funds

Cherrywood Proposition 1B
Special Maintenance Measure B Asset Local Streets
Parking Gas Tax District Paratransit Seizure Heron Bay & Roads
$ 56,137  $ 1,933,143  § 490,150 S 482,204  § 1,103,215  $ 499,046 $ 14,093
11,371 297,049 - 74,377 - 493 -
512 3,318 1,188 742 3,477 1,985 37
$ 68,020 § 2,233,510  $ 491,338 § 557,323 § 1,106,692 $ 501,524  § 14,130
$ 100,412 § 116,190 $ - 8 8497  § 2,500 § 46,747  $ -
- 528,732 - - - - -
100,412 644,922 - 8,497 2,500 46,747 -
- 1,588,588 491,338 548,826 1,104,192 454,777 14,130
(32,392) - - - - - -
(32,392) 1,588,588 491,338 548,826 1,104,192 454,777 14,130
$ 68,020 $ 2,233,510 $ 491,338  § 557,323 § 1,106,692 $ 501,524 § 14,130
(Continued)
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City of San Leandro
Combining Balance Sheet

Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

Cash and investments

Receivables:
Accounts

Federal, State, and local grants

Interest

Special assessments

Loans
Prepaids

Property held for resale

Total Assets

Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - grants receivable

Total Deferred Inflow of resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of
Resources and Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds

LIABILITIES

Special

Grants Measure B Measure F C.D.B.G.
$ 645,611 $ 2,304,621 1,502,010 $ -
89,743 9,541 82,645 405,768
3,006,992 411,338 - -
- 3,708 2,734 -
48,000 - - -
$ 3,790,346  $ 2,729,208 1,587,389 $ 405,768
$ 122,293 $ 19,435 - $ 178,389
- - - 60,787
122,293 19,435 - 239,176
2,916,132 - - -
2,916,132 - - -
48,000 - - -
703,921 2,709,773 1,587,389 166,592
751,921 2,709,773 1,587,389 166,592
$ 3,790,346  $ 2,729,208 1,587,389 $ 405,768

(Continued)
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Capital Projects

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds Fund
Total
Business Public Special San Leandro Non-Major
Housing Improvement  Education and  Assessment  Public Financing Governmental
HOME In-Lieu District Government District Authority GHAD Funds

§ 313,141 $ 630,000 $20,001,493

204,286 40,647 1,218,564

- - 3,418,330

584 2,887 43,446

96 - 96

- - 646,985

- - 48,000

- - 382,668

$ 518,107 $§ 673,534 $25,759,582

$ - $ - $ 602,919

- - 589,519

- - - - - - - 1,192,438

- - - - - - - 2,916,132

- - - - - - - 2,916,132

- - - - - - - 430,668
924,565 263,508 518,107 673,534 121 423,606 13,622 21,252,736
- - - - - - - (32,392)
924,565 263,508 518,107 673,534 121 423,606 13,622 21,651,012
$ 924,565 $§ 263,508 $ 518,107 $§ 673,534 $ 121 $ 423,606 $ 13,622 $25,759,582
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City of San Leandro
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Special Revenue Funds

Affordable Park
Housing Street/Traffic Development
Asset Fund Improvements Fee

Underground
Utility
Fee

REVENUES:

Property and other taxes $ - $ -
Licenses and permits - 43,983
Service charges - -
Fines and forfeitures - -
Intergovernmental

Use of money and property 513,112 8,302 16,587
Other 15,000 - 159,945

$ -

118,212

10,200

Total Revenues 528,112 52,285 176,532

128,412

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public safety - -
Engineering and transportation - 96,949
Recreation and culture -
Community development 4,486 -
Debt service:
Principal - -
Interest and fees - -

Total Expenditures 4,486 96,949 17,951

30,786

REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 523,626 (44,664) 158,581

97,626

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfer in - -
Transfer out - -

Total Other Financing Sources - -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 523,626 (44,664) 158,581

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 2,461,387 1,984,325 1,241,629

97,626

3,026,305

End of year $ 2,985,013 $ 1,939,661 $ 1,400,210

$ 3,123,931
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Special Revenue Funds

Cherrywood Proposition IB
Special Maintenance Measure B Asset Local Streets
Parking Gas Tax District Paratransit Seizure Heron Bay & Roads
$ - $ - $ 27,134 $ - $ - $ 307,383 $ -
161,829 - - - - - -
109,367 - - - - - -
- 3,536,769 - 365,184 1,321 - -
(260) 13,280 1,797 6,281 79 (403) 37
- 169 - - - - -
270,936 3,550,218 28,931 371,465 1,400 306,980 37
- - - - 310,767 - -
569,753 2,692,636 452 413,344 - 670,035 -
- - - - - 3,400 -
569,753 2,692,636 452 413,344 310,767 673,435 -
(298,817) 857,582 28,479 (41,879) (309,367) (366,455) 37
- (176,512) - - - - -
- (176,512) - - - - -
(298,817) 681,070 28,479 (41,879) (309,367) (366,455) 37
266,425 907,518 462,859 590,705 1,413,559 821,232 14,093
$ (32,392) § 1,588,588 $ 491,338 $ 548,826 $ 1,104,192 $ 454,777 $ 14,130
(Continued)
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City of San Leandro

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Property and other taxes
Licenses and permits
Service charges

Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental

Use of money and property
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public safety
Engineering and transportation
Recreation and culture
Community development
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees

Total Expenditures

REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfer in
Transfer out
Total Other Financing Sources
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year

End of year

Special Revenue Funds

Special

Grants Measure B Measure F C.D.B.G.
- - - $ -
1,088,143 2,019,638 484,708 1,966,735
17,255 21,709 8,901 -
- 3,995 - -
1,105,398 2,045,342 493,609 1,966,735
102,232 - - -
637,522 1,371,443 28,700 -
300,337 - - -
124,838 - - 1,688,386
- - - 132,000
- - - 50,972
1,164,929 1,371,443 28,700 1,871,358
(59,531) 673,899 464,909 95,377
(59,531) 673,899 464,909 95,377
811,452 2,035,874 1,122,480 71,215
751,921 2,709,773 1,587,389 $ 166,592

(Continued)
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Capital Projects

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds Fund
Total
Business Public Special San Leandro Nonmajor
Housing Improvement  Education and Assessment  Public Financing Governmental
HOME In-Lieu District Government District Authority GHAD Funds

- - $ - $ 159,784 $ - $ - $ - § 494,301

- - 407,502 - - - - 613,314

- - - - - - - 118,212

- - - - - - - 109,367

- - 578,000 - - - - 10,040,498

5,706 690 516 (6,810) - 3,176,177 - 3,793,156
151,259 - - - - - - 330,368
156,965 690 986,018 152,974 - 3,176,177 - 15,499,216
- - - - - - - 412,999

- - - - - - - 6,511,620

- - - - - - - 318,288
13,986 - 685,000 316,270 - - - 2,832,966

- - - - - 1,591,000 - 1,723,000

- - - - - 1,596,884 - 1,651,256

13,986 - 685,000 316,270 - 3,187,884 - 13,450,129
142,979 690 301,018 (163,296) - (11,707) - 2,049,087
- - 50,000 - - - - 50,000
- - - - - - - (176,512)
- - 50,000 - - - - (126,512)
142,979 690 351,018 (163,296) - (11,707) - 1,922,575
781,586 262,818 167,089 836,830 121 435,313 13,622 19,728,437
924,565 263,508 $ 518,107 $ 673,534 $ 121 $ 423,606 $ 13,622 $21,651,012
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Affordable Housing Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Other

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Community development

Total Expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 55,000 513,112 $ 458,112
140,000 15,000 (125,000)
195,000 528,112 333,112
417,999 4,486 413,513
417,999 4,486 413,513
$ (222,999) 523,626 $ 746,625
2,461,387
2,985,013
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -
Non Major Governmental Fund

Street/Traffic Improvements Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits $ 192,359 $ 43,983 $ (148,376)
Use of money and property - 8,302 8,302
Total Revenues 192,359 52,285 (140,074)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Engineering and transportation 1,257,447 96,949 1,160,498
Total Expenditures 1,257,447 96,949 1,160,498
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (1,065,088) (44,664) $ 1,020,424
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 1,984,325
End of year $ 1,939,661
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Park Development Fee Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ - 16,587 $ 16,587
Other 300,000 159,945 (140,055)
Total Revenues 300,000 176,532 (123,468)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Recreation and culture 4,743,785 17,951 4,725,834
Total Expenditures 4,743,785 17,951 4,725,834
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (4,443,785) 158,581 $ 4,602,366
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 1,241,629
End of year 1,400,210
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund

Underground Utility Fees Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Service charges

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Engineering and transportation

Total Expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance

Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
25,000 10,200 $ (14,800)
300,000 118,212 (181,788)
325,000 128,412 (196,588)
1,840,936 30,786 1,810,150
1,840,936 30,786 1,810,150
(1,515,936) 97,626 $ 1,613,562
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Parking Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

Use of money and property
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Engineering and transportation

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 295,000 161,829 $ (133,171)
109,367 109,367
350,000 (260) (350,260)
645,000 270,936 (374,064)
775,105 569,753 205,352
775,105 569,753 205,352
$ (130,105) (298,817)  $ (168,712)
266,425
(32,392)
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Special Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Engineering and transportation

Total expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers out

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 3,164,793 3,536,769 $ 371,976
7,500 13,280 5,780
- 169 169
3,172,293 3,550,218 377,925
5,961,471 2,692,636 3,268,835
5,961,471 2,692,636 3,268,835
(176,512) (176,512) -
(176,512) (176,512) -
$ (2,965,690) 681,070 $ 3,646,760
907,518
1,588,588
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Cherrywood Maintenance District Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property and other taxes $ - 27,134 27,134
Use of money and property 4,000 1,797 (2,203)
Total revenues 4,000 28,931 24931
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Engineering and transportation - 452 (452)
Total expenditures - 452 (452)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 4,000 28,479 24,479
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 462,859
End of year 491,338
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund

Measure B - Paratransit Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
Use of money and property

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Engineering and transportation

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 377,200 365,184 $ (12,016)
6,281 6,281
377,200 371,465 (5,735)
981,527 413,344 568,183
981,527 413,344 568,183
(604,327) (48,160) (580,199)
$ (604,327) 41,879) $ 562,448
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -
Non Major Governmental Fund

Asset Seizure Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 150,000 1,321 $ (148,679)
Use of money and property 10,000 79 (9,921)
Total revenues 160,000 1,400 (158,600)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety 833,024 310,767 522,257
Total expenditures 833,024 310,767 522,257
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (673,024) (309,367) _$ 363,657
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 1,413,559
End of year 1,104,192
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Heron Bay Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Property and other taxes
Use of money and property

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Engineering and transportation
Debt service:
Interest and fees
Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 370,000 307,383 $ (62,617)
5,000 (403) (5,403)
375,000 306,980 (68,020)
946,395 670,035 276,360
3,400 3,400 -
949,795 673,435 276,360
$ (574,795) (366,455)  $ (208,340)
821,232
454,777
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Proposition IB - Local Streets & Roads Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ - $ 37 37
Total revenues - 37 37
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Engineering and transportation - - -
Total expenditures - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ - 37 37
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 14,093
End of year $ 14,130
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Special Grants Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
Use of money and property

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety
Engineering and transportation
Community development

Recreation and culture

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 2,627,562 $ 1,088,143 $ (1,539,419)
- 17,255 17,255
2,627,562 1,105,398 (1,522,164)
264,966 102,232 162,734
5,027,707 637,522 4,390,185
267,608 124,838 142,770
1,239,370 300,337 939,033
6,799,651 1,164,929 5,634,722
(4,172,089) (59,531) 4,112,558
$ (4,172,089) (59,531) $ 4,112,558
811,452
$ 751,921
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Measure B Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Engineering and transportation

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,734,307 2,019,638 $ 285,331
10,000 21,709 11,709
230,000 3,995 (226,005)
1,974,307 2,045,342 71,035
8,172,309 1,371,443 6,800,866
8,172,309 1,371,443 6,800,866
$ (6,198,002) 673,899 $ 6,871,901
2,035,874
2,709,773
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Measure F - (Vehicle Registration Fees) Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
Use of money and property

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Engineering and transportation

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 448,000 484,708 $ 36,708
6,000 8,901 2,901
454,000 493,609 39,609
1,617,368 28,700 1,588,668
1,617,368 28,700 1,588,668
$ (1,163,368) 464,909 $ 1,628,277
1,122,480
1,587,389

129




City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
C.D.B.G Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees
Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 2,549,060 1,966,735 $ (582,325)
2,549,060 1,966,735 (582,325)
2,101,315 1,688,386 412,929
132,000 132,000 -
50,972 50,972 -
2,284,287 1,871,358 412,929
$ 264,773 95,377 $ (169,396)
71,215
166,592
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
HOME Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 13,600 - $ (13,600)
Use of money and property 4,000 5,706 1,706
Other 50,000 151,259 101,259
Total revenues 67,600 156,965 89,365
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development 13,664 13,986 (322)
Total expenditures 13,664 13,986 (322)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 53,936 142,979 $ 89,043
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 781,586
End of year 924,565
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
Housing In-Lieu Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
License and permits

Total revenues

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,000 690 (310)
2,000 - -
3,000 690 (310)
$ 3,000 690 (2,310)
262,818
263,508
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -
Non Major Governmental Fund

Business Improvement District Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits $ 400,000 $ 407,502 $ 7,502
Intergovernmental 200,000 578,000 378,000
Use of money and property 1,000 516 (484)
Total revenues 601,000 986,018 385,018
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development 695,530 685,000 10,530
Total expenditures 695,530 685,000 10,530
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 50,000 50,000 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (44,530) 351,018 $ 395,548
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 167,089
End of year $ 518,107
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund

Public Education and Government Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Property and other taxes
Use of money and property

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Community development

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 225,000 159,784 $ (65,216)
7,000 (6,810) (13,810)
232,000 152,974 (79,026)
396,706 316,270 80,436
396,706 316,270 80,436
$ (164,706) (163,296)  $ 1,410
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -
Non Major Governmental Fund

Special Assessment District Debt Service Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property and other taxes $ - S -3

Use of money and property - -

Total revenues - -

EXPENDITURES:

Debt service:
Interest and fees - -

Total expenditures - -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ - - $
FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 121

End of year $ 121

135



City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -

Non Major Governmental Fund
San Leandro Public Financing Authority Debt Service Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 3,180,376 $ 3,176,177 $ (4,199)
Total revenues 3,180,376 3,176,177 (4,199)
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:
Principal 1,591,000 1,591,000 -
Interest and fees 1,593,859 1,596,884 (3,025)
Total expenditures 3,184,859 3,187,884 (3,025)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers out - - -
Proceeds from issuance of debt - - -
Premium on issuance of debt - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (4,483) (11,707)  $ (7,224)
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 435,313
End of year $ 423,606
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City of San Leandro

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -
Non Major Governmental Fund

San Leandro Hillside Geological Abatement Fund (GHAD) Capital Projects Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Engineering and transportation $ 14,265 $ - $ 14,265
Total expenditures 14,265 - 14,265
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (14,265) - $ 14,265
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 13,622
End of year $ 13,622
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NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Storm Water Utility — Provides for the City’s storm water program in conjunction with the National
Pollutant Discharge and Emissions Services Act.

Environmental Services — Accounts for the regulation of hazardous materials, wastewater discharge,
storm water runoff, solid waste and recycling, and the landfill at the Marina.
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City of San Leandro

Combining Statement of Net Position
Non-Major Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Interest
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Depreciable
Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Compensated absences - due in one year

Total current liabilities

Non-current Liabilities:
Compensated absences - due in more than one year

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital asset
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total
Non-Major
Storm Water Environmental Enterprise
Utility Services Funds
- 1,928,770 1,928,770
7,490 138,966 146,456
- 4,571 4,571
7,490 2,072,307 2,079,797
15,696 4,873 20,569
(15,439) (4,873) (20,312)
257 - 257
7,747 2,072,307 2,080,054
10,034 7,557 17,591
1,405,558 - 1,405,558
8,911 26,563 35,474
1,424,503 34,120 1,458,623
35,642 106,257 141,899
1,460,145 140,377 1,600,522
257 - 257
(1,452,655) 1,931,930 479,275
(1,452,398) 1,931,930 479,532
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City of San Leandro
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Non-Major Enterprise Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Total
Non-Major
Storm Water Environmental Enterprise
Utility Services Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,068,439 $ 259,198 $ 1,327,637
Licenses and permits - 373,949 373,949
Other operating revenue 3,435 24,523 27,958
Total operating revenues 1,071,874 657,670 1,729,544
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 814,648 464,378 1,279,026
Contractual and other services 306,048 78,091 384,139
Material and supplies 30,271 28,821 59,092
Other operating costs 400,699 236,340 637,039
Total operating expenses 1,551,666 807,630 2,359,296
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (479,792) (149,960) (629,752)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income - 5,123 5,123
Intergovernmental - 250,199 250,199
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) - 255,322 255,322
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS: (479,792) 105,362 (374,430)
Transfers in - 132,782 132,782
Change in net position (479,792) 238,144 (241,648)
NET POSITION:
Beginning of year (972,606) 1,693,786 721,180
End of year $ (1,452,398)  $ 1,931,930 $ 479,532
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City of San Leandro

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Non-Major Enterprise Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Total
Non-Major
Storm Water Environmental Enterprise
Utility Services Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 1,068,975 $ 630,202 $ 1,699,177
Cash received from other funds 461,558 - 461,558
Cash payments to suppliers and service providers (733,868) (349,550) (1,083.,418)
Cash payments to employees for services (796,782) (479,598) (1,276,380)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (117) (198,946) (199,063)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Intergovernmental revenue received - 250,199 250,199
Transfers in from other funds - 132,782 132,782
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities - 382,981 382,981
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets (257) - (257)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (257) - (257)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Change in market values of investments - (23,253) (23,253)
Interest income - 29,296 29,296
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities - 6,043 6,043
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (374) 190,078 189,704
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of year 374 1,738,692 1,739,066
End of year $ - $ 1,928,770 $ 1,928,770
RECONCILIATION OR OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ (479,792) $ (149,960) $ (629,752)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (2,899) (27,468) (30,367)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable 3,150 (6,298) (3,148)
(Decrease) increase due to other funds 461,558 - 461,558
(Decrease) increase in compensated absences 17,866 (15,220) 2,646
Total adjustments 479,675 (48,986) 430,689
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 117  $ (198,946) $ (199,063)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for special activities and services performed by a designated
City department for other departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

Building Maintenance — This fund accounts for the City’s custodial maintenance and minor building
modifications performed on various City complexes. The source of revenue is reimbursement of costs for
services performed to the departments.

Information Management Services — The fund accounts for centralized data processing and the
maintenance, acquisition and replacement of computerized systems. Sources of revenue for this fund are
reimbursement of costs for services and equipment purchased by other departments.

Self Insurance — This fund accounts for the administration of the City’s self-insurance programs,
payment of worker’s compensation and liability claims payments.

Equipment Maintenance — This fund accounts for the maintenance and replacement of vehicles and

equipment used by all City departments. Source of revenues for this fund is reimbursement of costs for
services and supplies purchased by other departments.
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City of San Leandro

Combining Statement of Net Position

Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2021
Information
Building Management Self - Equipment
Maintenance Services Insurance Maintenance Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments 1,110,843 $ 2,167,835 $ 11,645,027 $ 4,242,259 19,165,964
Receivables:
Accounts - - 489,634 - 489,634
Interest 5,495 5,472 25,243 9,622 45,832
Inventory and prepaids 11,881 $84,749 - 165,488 262,118
Total current assets 1,128,219 2,258,056 12,159,904 4,417,369 19,963,548
Capital assets:
Depreciable 80,353 5,808,895 - 12,722,786 18,612,034
Less accumulated depreciation (33,060) (5,727,149) - (6,998,187) (12,758,396)
Total Net capital assets 47,293 81,746 - 5,724,599 5,853,638
Total noncurrent assets 47,293 81,746 - 5,724,599 5,853,638
Total Assets 1,175,512 2,339,802 12,159,904 10,141,968 25,817,186
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 164,989 87,413 124,554 50,901 427,857
Other liabilities - - 1,029,609 - 1,029,609
Claims and judgments - due in one year - - 4,233,746 - 4,233,746
Compensated absences payable - due in one year 2,422 22,450 1,836 6,329 33,037
Total current liabilities 167,411 109,863 5,389,745 57,230 5,724,249
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Claims and judgments - due in more than one year - - 2,817,888 - 2,817,888
Compensated absences - due in more than one year 13,722 127,217 10,401 35,864 187,204
Total noncurrent liabilities 13,722 127,217 2,828,289 35,864 3,005,092
Total Liabilities 181,133 237,080 8,218,034 93,094 8,729,341
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 47,293 81,746 - 5,724,599 5,853,638
Unrestricted 947,086 2,020,976 3,941,870 4,324,275 11,234,207
Total Net Position $ 994,379 $ 2,102,722 $ 3.941.870 $ 10,048.874 17,087.845
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City of San Leandro

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Internal Service Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

OPERATING REVENUES:
Service charges
Other operating revenues

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and benefits
Contractual and other services
Materials and supplies
Depreciation
Other operating costs

Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS:

Transfers in
Change in net position

NET POSITION:
Beginning of the year

End of the year

Information
Building Management Self - Equipment

Maintenance Services Insurance Maintenance Total
$ 3,278,214 $ 4,269,472 $ 5,433,474 $ 3,219,250 $ 16,200,410
43 250 879,856 50,000 930,149
3,278,257 4,269,722 6,313,330 3,269,250 17,130,559
1,198,816 1,722,060 264,125 570,739 3,755,740
1,873,693 1,850,409 4,756,776 429,146 8,910,024
226,789 39,763 - 510,581 777,133
6,447 23,614 - 1,191,969 1,222,030
619,977 537,596 91,133 294,708 1,543,414
3,925,722 4,173,442 5,112,034 2,997,143 16,208,341
(647,465) 96,280 1,201,296 272,107 922,218
(15,209) (1,251) 46,768 7,385 37,693
(15,209) (1,251) 46,768 7,385 37,693
(662,674) 95,029 1,248,064 279,492 959,911
- - - 176,512 176,512
(662,674) 95,029 1,248,064 456,004 1,136,423
1,657,053 2,007,693 2,693,806 9,592,870 15,951,422
$ 994,379 $ 2,102,722 $ 3,941,870 $ 10,048,874 $ 17,087,845

145



City of San Leandro

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers

Receipts from interfund charges

Cash payments to suppliers and service providers

Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in from other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Change in market values of investments
Interest income

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net Cash Flows

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash and investments at beginning of year

Cash and investments at end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities
(Decrease) increase in claims and judgments payable
(Decreased) increase in compensated absences

Total cash provided (used) by operating activities

Information
Building Management Self - Equipment

Maintenance Services Insurance Maintenance Total
43 $ 250 $ 390,222 $ 50,000 $ 440,515
3,278,214 4,242,985 5,433,474 3,219,250 16,173,923
(2,721,549) (2,426,764) (4,958,727) (1,522,410) (11,629,450)
(1,196,688) (1,706,890) (258,407) (558,847) (3,720,832)
(639,980) 109,581 606,562 1,187,993 1,264,156
- - - 176,512 176,512
- - - 176,512 176,512
(1) (63,209) - (1,195,943) (1,259,153)
(1) (63,209) - (1,195,943) (1,259,153)
(34,615) (29,826) (121,346) (49,612) (235,399)
20,511 29,676 173,192 58,933 282,312
(14,104) (150) 51,846 9,321 46,913
(654,085) 46,222 658,408 177,883 228,428
1,764,928 2,121,613 10,986,619 4,064,376 18,937,536
$ 1,110,843 $ 2,167,835 $ 11,645,027 $ 4,242,259 $ 19,165,964
$ (647,465) $ 96,280 $ 1,201,296 $ 272,107 $ 922,218
6,447 23,614 - 1,191,969 1,222,030
- - (489,634) - (489,634)
- (26,487) - 1,677 (24,810)
(1,090) 1,004 11,884 (289,652) (277,854)
- - 488911 - 488911
(611,613) (611,613)
2,128 15,170 5,718 11,892 34,908
$ (639,980) $ 109,581 $ 606,562 $ 1,187,993 $ 1,264,156
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This section of the City of San Leandro's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the city's overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 149

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the city's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 157
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city's most significant

local revenue sources, sales tax and property tax.

Debt Capacity 169

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the city's
current levels of outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information 177
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the city's financial activities take place.
Operating Information 181

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how
the information in the city's financial report relates to the services the city provides and the
activities it performs.
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FINANCIAL TRENDS

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the city's financial performance
and well-being have changed over time.

Net Position by Component Unit - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Changes in Net Position - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Program Revenues by Function / Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years
General Fund Revenue by Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years

149






'89 SVD Jo uonejuawaldwr ayy 03 anp st g1 ul junowe dANe3au o31e (1) 190N

uonisoq 10N Jo Juawaels - (YD) Hodoy [eroueur] [enuuy dAIsuayordwo)) oIpues UeS Jo A1) :99In0§

STE'EEI'E6l  § _YOTLLI'O8T § _TTH096'S8T § _60€GSI'061 § _9¥0°TEE90T § _+80°6¥6'¥61 § _98K'€€€081 § _€81°009°02€ 8IE€0LESTE  § _STTOTY'SSE
(STELI9vY) (100°LLT'EL) (S10°€0£°89) (¥8L°666°99) (LO6°LT69Y) (6$8°STL6S) (S8€°9¥€98) PoEVIE 6 OLT°LTS'8Y ¥19T89°SS
1€0°88S°TS 169°TLY Y9 £5Y°6L0°€9 TEOVOT T T99°LY9° 1€ SEP089°€T 979°90T°1T 0 TLE YT 9I1T9TPT 999°Lb6°L1
609°T91°981  §  PISI86'88T §  ¥8G6'E8I'T6L  §  190°1S0°9IT §  16TTIONCT §  80SH66°0€C  §  SHTELY'SYT S SKLPI6°9ST TE0'I89°TST  $  SH6'686°18T
120 020T 610T 810T L10T 910T S10T ¥10T €10 T10T
79685969 § 806°¢8S'8S  §  HLOTSL'BS  § _600°SE8TS  § _8ESTLOTS §  VIOWSKBY $§  96LPITSK $§ _TI¥PKSTS 096°186'LY  § _pLO'VES'EY
SOEVTL'ST L088€6°91 09L°060°0T T0LTI6LT STP919°0T 0L1°0S0°81 L9T°609°T1 LESTE0TT STLTO0'ST 900°L60°€T
659°7E6'6E  $ T0I'SHO'TY  $ PI6T99°8E  §  LOSTLSYE  §  €IT9SOTE  §  PEPPEROE  §  6T9°S0STE  §  SL8TISTIE SET6L6'TE S 890°LELOE
1202 020T 610T 810T L10T 910T S10T ¥10T €107 T10T
19€'PLY'LTI  §  _96T°€6S'ITl  §  _8KLLOTLTL § _00€0TELEL § _80S°6S9'¥ST § _OLY'¥OV'OpI  § _069°8ITSEl  § _1LL°650°89¢C 8S€'88ELLT  § _IS1°98L°TIE
(0T9° T7E0L) (808°S1Z°06) (SLL €6£°88) (987°296°+8) (TEEvrs'L9) (620°9LL*LL) (2$5°556°86) LS8°T8T8T SPPrTsiee 809°S85°TY
1€0°88S°TS 169°TLY$9 £S1°6L0°€9 TEOHOT T T99°Ly9°TE SEP089°€T 979°90T°1T 0 TLE YT 911T91'PT 999°LY6°L1
0S6°LTTIPT  §  EI¥9EELYT  §  0L0°TTS'TST $  pSL'QLI'T8T  §  8LI'9SS061 §  $90°095°00T §  919°L96'TIT §  €L8°T0V'STT L6L'TOL'6TT §  LL8'TSTIST
20T 020T 610T 810T L10T 910T S10T ¥10T £10T T10T
palLISAIUND]  PaIOIISOY M SI9sse [eyded ul JuawWisaAul 19N |
T20T 0zot 6T0C 8T0¢ LT0T 910C STOC ¥10¢ €10C f4x014
000°000°00T-
000°000°05-
000°000°0S
000°000°00T
000°000°0ST
000°000°00T
000000052
000°000°00€
000°000°0S€E
000000001

OISO JIN SINIANIY [EJUIUWILIIAOY) [B)O,
pajoLsoIun
paroLsay
sjosse
Tendes ur JusunsoAur JON
JUAWUIIA0S ArewiLig

uonIsod 39N SINIANIY ddA I -ssouisng [e)0],
PpajoLisarun)
PAadInsay
sjosse
[endes ur juounsaAul JON
$aNIARIY adA | -ssauisng

uonISO JAN SAWIANIY [BJUIUILIIAOL) [€)O,
pajoLgsarun)
paroLISY
sjosse
Teydes ur JusunsoAur JON
SINIANIY [EJUIUWULIIA0D)

(SununoddV jo siseq [BNINDY)
SIBIX [BISI UI [, Iser]

juq) yuduoduro)) Aq uonisod PN
o.apued| ues jo L)1)

151



SONIAIOY JO JUAWANRIS - (YAVD) Hoday [eroueul] [ENUUY 9AISUIYAIdWO) 0IPULIT UBS JO A)1) :90IN0S

0T1°9S6°TL _§  (81T°€8L'S) $§  (L88'v61F) § (6L87188°T) § T96T8ELL $  86SSI9FI § 06£TE8L § (SLI'OLLY) $§ (LO6G'ELLS) § 90¥'9€TT  § (sosuadxa) saNUAADI JOU [EIO,
9S0°SL0°L (99L°891) S99°L16°S [N YT6'L8I°E 818°69¢°C LIFY9T'S TSYTSY 988°Ly 1Y €05°898°T sanAnoe ad4)-ssaursng
790°188°S (Tsr'r19°6) (zsszrron (0SE¥H0'Y) 8€0°S61°8 08L'SYT'T1 €L6°L9S°T (LT9°TEE6) (€88°126°6) £06°L9¢€ SOUIATIOY [EJUSWUIDAOD)
s9suadxa) sanuAdL JON
- - - - - - - - - SLECTI'IT Swo)] ATeurpioenxyg
TIL'6YE6LT 679 18T F9T 760°$85°9S T 6T€018°IST 78S S¥8 0V 0TESIT LY €TS €T 6T LO6'0TOLTT 19€°7LO'60T 9SL6TLTIT sonudAdI weigord
Juouruionos Arewrtid ejof,
LEISTH 6T LTEBSY'61 697°8L8°1T 9T9°0¥9°L1 TI9016°LT LTFOYTIT SSEPSSLI S0€'895°91 950°€99°S T YOISSTYI sonuaAdr wreigord
SONIALOR ssaulsng [L10],
- (LE6'TTT) 000°9LY (126°L81) - (000°52) - - SEITL (6v€7ET) SIOJSUeL],
- - - - - - - - - (0LF06T°1) $19SSE JO d[BS UO SSO[ 10 Ureny
- - - - - 0ETvETY 689897 SLLOST S6L°LOT 696811 SNOQUE[[20ST
Y€8°091 S90°S1T1 TWETITT 61T48T TEV6LI YE8STY YTL'6ST Y0649T 659°60C 086°T¢1 SSUILIRE JUSWISIAU]
Saditzd £68°099 TEE9E8 T6€°908 114629 12€°0TS 061°LLY 1€T°LTY 9pT09€ 0€v° €T SOXE} YO
P08°67€ SELTLY 665°89C - - - - - - - SuUONNqLIU0d pue sjueis Funesndo
989°v19°¢ 985°85T SITT86 L80°69€ YOEEPT - - - - - suonnquuo) pue sjueln) [ende)
898°818%C S86T9T°LI 186°TS0°81 678°89€°91 S9Y°858°91 TWIT166°S1 TSL'RLII S6£°5E9°S1 TITEI8 1 $09°568°F1 SOOIAIDS 10§ SABIEYD)
:son1Anoe adA)-ssoursng
SLOYE6 6V TTEETSPYT ST990LYET €0L69THET TL6'PE6TTL €68°810°9C1 89T°6YS'TIT 209°THr 001 SIETIV'E6 T6SVLY'86 sonuaAax weiSo1d SANIANOR [EJUSUILIDAOD [0,
0S0°TESST 16L°TES'L 906°'L68°9 STT6LS9 SS6°EEES 0T9°LSS°S 676'8€0°8 6£5°6TSY 6T6'TLY'S 19%°586°S suonnqLIuod pue syueis funesndo
THTSLY'L Y8SVLLLL S0T866°L £8876£°6 9L6°9St°6 I8LTTH 1T 16591501 Tr8°600°01 PITOIT'L 9SE9TH 1 SuonNqLIUOd pue spueld [ende))
T0€88S°S1 018°598°L1 €61°S1€°61 SS67L981 06695691 80€°TSS 91 9LT'€90°91 L98°686F1 9$LSELET 9TL00T°TI Q0IAIDS 10 SaBIRY)
- LEGTTT (000°9Lt) 126°L81 - 000°5T - - (ser'eL) 6¥EvET SIoJsuel],
L60°TTT'T 8LS'T 0L9°€SS 0L6°020°T 700°€ 090°L 2069 961°91 I7L°€6€ £5¢€°¢ §19SSE JO 9[es U0 uren
6¥6°69L $60°8L8 L6LES8 798°9Tt°S 10S°TOL°T €TISTTY 780°528 18IS 9$€°796 971886 SNOOUE[[20SIA
- - - - - - - - - - JuswesINquIIRY oedur] Ajrunwwo))
095°€0t° 1 615°€8Yy 6LE98TY TL6'T69T LLT09S°T Y9LT88T £68°161°1 £Y0°SST T €IT616 90%°860°T JUSUNSIAU]
- - - - - - 9€6°S€ 89L°9¢ (48824 Y6T Ty §99,{ ASUAIIT AIIYDA SIOJON
S6E°EI8T G88°1T8°1 OpL0EY' T STI°800°T 159°L06 619118 L98°€EL 998°CS9 910165 886°SSS SoxXe) Y10
8LISST'E SsIeeTI'e SOT0IT°E 9$T°5€0°¢ T0€°068°C €66°L16'T EIEPLO'T 181°408°C SSTETLT 165789°C $900Y UONEUINWWIO)) [[6
769°855°6 6€7°88L°C TILTLE'S [UATARY 9IE6SH'S 89509t 0€0°TITY 920°78T°€¢ 61%°956°C $89°186°C xe], Jopsues], Kpadoid
688°0€8°01 106°62S°01 I71°281°01 SIE6ILOT YETSLE'0T 185°L08°01 0S0°6S€°01 TILLST 0T €21°888°6 9758966 Xe], s10s0) AN
690°v18°S 006°849°S 8EITOIS 16£°69T°S Y06°201°S ¥19°896% 980°S18Y 076185 ISTHPh'y 0TH 1€TY §93,] ASIYOUEL]
L6V rLS 6 €L87S9'PY Y0L'S98°SY €2T°066°Ty SES'LTL'TY £79°9€€°Ty SSI'8K6°TE 719°L60°6T €85 40€°9T SOT°9TI'¥T Soxe) SO
£51499°97 §S8°L0E°9T SL8ETI'PT TITY66°TT LT08S8°0T 61Tv10°0T 8€0°868°81 LTI 8L T8STEY'LI 981°LSETT soxe) Kodorg
JUSUILLIOAOS [RIOUAD)
1SONIATOR [BJUSUWILLIDAOD)
HENLEYER QI AHIRE |
T65°€6€°991 L98796°691 186°6LL°091 80T°T69FS1 TT9TIr 6Tl TTL6YSTEL €EI°T09°1TI T80 18L°ITI 8SEBYSPI1 0S€E€6Y 01T sosuadxa JuowusdA03 Arewid (€101,
185°0Y€°TT £60°LT8°61 708°096°S 1 SST'8LY9T 889°CTLY1 609°9LL°LT 8E6°619°TI £68°500°C1 091°GISTI 199°98€°C1 sosuadxd sanIANOE dA)-ssaursnq [el0,
0€9°L08 YL T80T 0LET90T TETS60°T $88°590°T $86°681°1 88€°020°1 $S0°LTO°T LSTSLI'T €PSTTTl SOOIAIRG [BJUSUILOIIAUT
999°T6S°T 9IF LI 8LO'LOY'T LSTTIY'T 110°901°1 69%°TIT'T 7S0°S01°T TSTBLO'T 9188L6 866°616 Ann e wolg
L9T°E6E°S 99T°460°C 968°LLYT €61°98L°1 TH8SLT L99°6€8°T TE6°'169°T 687°CT6°1 TES 1981 8TH8Y8'1 aurfoIoyg
811885 Y1 LEL'EET'ST 09F 71811 €LY P81°TI 0S6°S6L°01 88K PES EI 7957088 850°8L6°L SSS°661°L 769°56€°8 [o1u0D uonnjjod 1K\
:saniAnoe adKy-ssaursng
T10°€S0Fh T YLLLETOST LLT6I8 Y] €50FI1T8ET YE66EL YL CITELLYIT S61°186°801 6TTSLL60T 861°€€€°€01 689°901°86 $05UQdX SOIATIOE [EJUSWIUIDAOS [€J0 ],
TTS10TT €88°LT8'1 9TS 6L 9IELLYT ST0781TT TTEPIL'T 007°9S1°T LSTL60T 611°8YST €SLLIET 199p wiId)-3uo[ U0 JsarAN]
T06°6Y8°L1 PITLLEST LL6°06E°0T YE8°91T°01 S68°7E1°8 £6£°0¥8°9 LO6VOL'S 18€°68¢€°S 0¥ 106y LLESLT'S uowdo[aAd(T Ayrunutio))
€S9°EIT T LTTLEE T €SY°L80Y1 LLT9SLY1 162°8TT°€1 S8EPTYEL 8S1°L99°T1 L8L9SLTI €TT98S° 11 S10768°6 2N % UOHEIIONY
LLY08€°€T 191°765°CE 0LT0SL'SE 09T°€€6°CE TSTHTI'8T 08T9LY 1€ $76995°0€ 9LITILTE S0€£T99°5T 9PL E06°€T uonepodsuel], % SuLauISuy
YITTISSL 166°120°€L Y8TTYL'89 T8LIL6YY r61°01S TS £EVIY6'TS 9T1°686°LYy LETO81°LY Y6T'S9Y' Sy 110°7LS €y Kioyes o1qng
EPTS69°0T  $ S6E6LE'ET §  L99°€SOVT  $ ¥8S'GSYEL §  LLEPTS'S  §  00€°€TEL  $ 6L9°968°01 §  I6£609°TT §  SS899IEl $  L8L'YETOI § JUOWILIOAOS [RI0USD)
”wm.z_\r:om ~&u:®EED>OO
120T 020C 610C 810C L10T 910T S10T v10T €107 [0 :sosuadxy

(Supunodde Jo siseq [ENnIdIE)
SABIX [BISI] UI T, Ise]
uonIsod AN ul saguey)
oJpued ues jo A)1)

152



SONIADY JO JUBWaIEIS - (YAVD) Hodoy [eroueur] [enuuy dAlsudyaidwo)) oIpuea ueg jo A1) :0omog

TS6°118°L9 $ 16¥°L90°19 660°S15°€S 66698€°1S 069°678°8 1$8°TTS 6F 89S L6V 1S F9V91°SY 0108 1+ 006°S1¥°9% $ yuowrurdA03 Krewad [ejo,

85€°€18°8¢C $  _90EW68°LL S6LE0E 61 9€6°LELI] 69L101°LT TrI166'S1 TSL'8L891 S6E°5€9°S1 LITEI8yl $09°568 71 $ sonIAnoE ddA)-ssaulsnq [ejoiqng
698°L06 ¥S8°LE6 0ELEI0T 0€5°020°1 920'%S6 LST°LTL SYLELL S6S°€LY €ITY19 816859 SOJIAISS [eJUStUIUOIIAUY
PLS'TLO' €1S°€L0°T 718°890°1 80L950°T T80T 09%°€60°1 PS10L0°1 9P1TLOT 0L0°980°1 SSY'8LO°T A 1o wiolg
SS9°8LLY OPLOIL'T 9LEOLE T SL6°S80°T 9661 SS6°TOL 88€°8€0°C 0878261 0SLOPS‘ 6£8°896°1 aurpaIoys
096°750°0C $  661°TLIYI SL80STSI €TLYLSTI 6L6°890°C1 0LSLIY'TL S91°966°C1 YLETI6'TT 8L199T°11 T9€°681°T1 $ JuB[ [01UOD) UOHN[[O] e

$aNIAROY AdA I -ssouisng

¥65°866°8€ S _SSI'eLl'sy FOE 11T HE £90°69°vE 16°LYL1E 60L°1€5°€€ 918819°F€ 8¥T°6T5°6T 66L479°9T 962028 1€ $ SONIAIOE [EJUOWIUIOAOS [210IqNS
- - - - - - - - - €SLLIET 19op wLId)-Suo] Uuo JsaIAu|
98S¥6°9 96€8LL'S €68°09€°S 990°L0¥'S 608°6SSY 08€Y20y €€9°St6'6 TEO'LYLE 081°656°¢ TT69£0°T JuawidojoAdp Ajunurwoy)
PEF08T'E T9L°068°C 165°65S°€ €8L°509°€ €990t 9LESSE Y 916°€6V'Yy YTSYIL'S wSYT0'Y L191SSY AIm[Nd pue UoKHELAIdY
6L1°T0FST ¥6L°092°0T 6¥9°979°11 SEE'STS Il LLY'TLLOT €78°L68°01 L6S°899°8 L8EL09'6 €06°€TL9 €5T°199°01 uonenodsuen pue SuLourSug
€85 Y91°€ LTS'T8S'E 98LLLS'E 081°62F'Y ¥16°108°C 895°L68°C ¥61°€79°c P186YL'E IvE T8y 100°$8S‘t Kyages orjqng
T1890T°01 S 90,0996 STY'98L6 669°18€°6 8760558 795°9z€°01 9LY'L8SL 16v°01€L 8169¢HL 0SLL9EL $ JUSWIUIIAOD) [BISUSD)

$SANIANIY [BJUIUIUIIA0D)

uonduny / wieisorq

120T 0202 610T 8102 L10T 9102 S10T ¥10T €10 (4014

Aw_._::.ooﬁ\ JO siseq [enIdIY)

SIBIX [BISI] U, Ise]

wea30.1d /uonduny Aq SINUIANY Wweasoaq
0.apued| ues jo A1)

153



"Pa1LISAT JOU dIOM [ () TedK [eos1y 0) JoLid Sooue[eq pun, "SPIEMUO Pue [ (7 1edK [edsIy Ul pajuswe[dul sem 5 gSYD) 010N
109U dduE[Rg SPUN,] [BIUSWUIIACD) - (Y JVD) Hoday [eroueur,] [enuuy dAISudyaIdwo)) oipued ues Jo K1) :90mog

LO6'90E'SEL  $  €H0L868TT  $  LITOLOETI §  6TE9LTH6 $  SSS'609T8  §  188°989°0L $  TSIBIN9S §  L6EC66'Er $  SE6'890°IYy S €IFIPI'Ty  §
1€0°88S° IS §  169TLYY9  §  €SY6L0'E9  §  TEOVOI'TY §  TO9LYO'IE §  SEP'089°€T $  979°90T° 1T §  IVO'ILEYI  §  9S90LL'ST S 1€6'9L9°LT §
(€8€°10T°¢) - (169°9t9) - (PIT°LIL) (0L1°TTET) (899°€8€°1) (FS9°TIL'T) (065°9¥9°1) (109°C€D)
9bLBSE S 169°TLY Y9 Pr1°9TL €9 €001 1+ 9LL'YIETE §09°C00°ST ¥67°065°CC $69°€80°91 T LIVLI TE€S608°LT
899°0€t - - - - - - - - -
- § - $ - $ - $ - $§ - $ - $ - $ - s - $
9L8'BILEY §  TSEPISHY §  +9L°066'6S §  L6TTLI'ES §  €68196°0S §  9FH900'Ly §  9SS'II8YE $  9SETTI6T §  6LTB6TST §  T8F69YHT §
612°9€5°99 99L°999°9t 91T L TH $89°CSS°9€ 9EF I8LEE S6L'8LE6T 9TTSTI'61 €TTTIL'SI Pr8°9€8F1 CIELILOT
£56°505°6 1¥9°66L°6 L06°96T°9 LO6T0ES 1€8°LLS Y LL6'8TI'E 00L99L°T €L6°799 SLTH9T 600°GSS°€
000°0S 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S
$0L'9TY°L SY6°L66°L 1%LT06°01 90L'LIT'T1 979°TSS Tl L' SPY Y1 0€9°618°€1 091°L¥1°01 091°L¥1°01 091°L¥1°01
- $ - § - § - § - $ - § - § - $ - § - $
120T 0202 610 810C L10T 9102 S10T ¥10T €10T 710t

spun,j [BJUSWIUIIAOD) [[V [€I0],
SpunNy [EJUSUIUIOA0T JOYI0 [[E [e)0],

paugisseun)
paudissy
PIIOLNSIY
d1qepuadsuoN
spunj sjo0foxd [eyde)
Spunj onuoAal [eroodg
:ur paytodal ‘pareudisapun ‘paAIISIUN
PaYRUBISOp ‘POAISSAIUN
poAIasay
SpUNJ [BIUSWUIIA0S II0 [V

pun, [BIoUSD) [BI0],
paugisseun)
pausissy
PaIoLNSTY
d1qepuadsuoN
poAIdsaIun)
POAIISY

puny [BIoUID)

(SUNUN0JIE JO SISE] [ENIDE PoLyIpour)
SIBI X [BISL] UD, Ise|

SpUNJ [EJUIUILLIIA0Y) JO ddUE[eg pung
oapued| ues jo A1)

154



SeOUR[RE PUN,] UI SOFURYD) Puk SAINJIPUSdXT ‘SONUIASY JO JUSWDIE)S SPUN,] [EJUIWUIDAOD) - (Y VD) Hoday [eroueur] [enuuy dAIsudyaIduwio)) 0Ipues] ues Jo A1) :00mog

1LTHSS THI 618°SLO°T 66S°LLT'S LTF'T09°FT €LEITY'T T9¥°8€€°T LTT°T90°0T SPYTLL'LOT 1202
S8E IV PhT TTHTS9E 620°TL6 L $$9°T$S 0T Y0¥ 66€°C 168°56H°T 661°6vCTI $78°680°96 0202
STOT8I SET 16¥°S¥0y 910°8L8°9 600°796°TT €18°765°¢ €€S°6L9°T 9T8°6TH 11 L06°965°S6 610T
T8LI86°€EET 91H'8€1°6 106°Sy 1Yy 201°€H8°CT S86°06L°C 1S€°889°T SIS9TL 01 TIS'8H9°16 810T
TL6'YE6TTI 067°T88°Y 066°LTTY 999°8LO°TT L9S €S E 868°TLS T S6T1°8HE6 99¢°T16€°88 L10T
6LL'LI6TTI L8¥°L8S9 LES €20 98 161°CI SLY'660°€ 860°689°T 1€L°V6S°8 S09°5€L98 910T
180°9S€TTT 615°99T°S 667°TEEE 90€°9LY P T 890°68%°¢ 0LS¥TST S00°‘T+0°8 $IT1°9TTSL S10¢
$99°L8€°001 011°61T°€E €I¥°T8S°E 0T8°0¥9°11 STTTOY'E P1820€°1 0L¥*00L‘L €I18°€SH 69 ¥10¢T
0S¥°99€°C6 LSL'TI0Y YOI°SHh'e 0TI°€ET6 6v9°0€8°C YSELETT 2067879 $95°$T1°59 €102
$09°0¥8°66 $  61S9SHL $  LT8SP9E $  6S89PT0T  $  ¥80ISO'E  $  699°0IT°T $  8L90F69 $  896°88£°L9 $ 404
[e10L, ANUIAYY YO Kaodoig [eIuaw S931BY)) 99IAIOS SAINIISJIO SHULIdJ Soxe], RCEJN

29 AQUOIA JO 9s) -UI9A03I0)U] 29 saulj 29 SASUII'T 120 % Aradoig [eostq

onuoasy 100D AModoid 29 AQUOIN JO OSNE  [BIUOWI -UIOAOSIUI [  SOSIEY)) 90IAIOSE  SQIMISJIO] 29 SAULJ[E  SHULIDJ 29 SOSURITE  SAXe] JoyQ 2 Airodorgm

0%

000°000°01$

000°000°0Z$

000°000°0€$

000°000°0%$

000°000°0S$

000°000°09$

000°000°0L$

4 000°000°08$

4 000°000°06$

000°000°001$

SIBIX [BISL] UI, ISe]

sad£ 1, punj JudwIuIdA09) [[V

92.1N0§ A SINUIAIY [BIUIWUIIA0L) [BIIUID)
0.1pued| ues jo 1)

155



SONIATIY JO JUSW)BIS Y} YIIM SPUN,] JUSWUISAOL) [BJO], - Sadue[eq pun,j ur oSuey)) JON ) JO Uonerjouoddy - (Y1) Hoday [eroueur [enuuy dA1suayaidwo)) orpuea| ues jo A1)

sooue[eq puny ur soSuey)) pue sormIpuddxy ‘SoNUSAY JO JUILAIE)S SPUN,] [EJUIWIISA0D) - (YAVD) Hodoy [erdueur] [enuuy oA1suayaIduwo)) oxpuea ueg Jo L)1) :S0IN0S

%09y %8L'y %I1TY %01°0T %Eh'y %90°S %LLYy %Ly %819 saxmpuadxa [ejrdesuou
Jo o8eju0o1ad e Se SE9IAIRS 19
978°916°S  $  888°C6L'8T $  YLL99YIT $  YLOTTETIT $  669°899%1 §  LLICLTTIL $  Tov'veeT $ (BLY'LLO'T) $ (£56°01) $ SoduE[eq puny ur oFuLYd N
- - - - - - - - - Juawale)sal porrad J0Lg
(060°011) $20°59€°81 686°6€1 LET'YOY'ST (000°0SL°T) - - (£02'769) 67€655°81 (sosn) s0o.mos Furoueuly 19Y)0 [2J0],
- 1SE%1T°0T - LETH99°1T - - - SOF'TST'0T 000°S0€"81 193 JO douenss|
- - - - - - - - - SPa3d0I1 3sed T
- - - - - - - - - S$padd0Id uBO]
- - - - - - - - - Spaddoig spuog
- - - - - - - - - spasoold Apodoid
(060°5€5°9) (099°Lv0°08)  (688°50°01)  (000°€SH°01)  (L10°LTY°S) (9S1°409°0) (000°9LL) (665°909°T) (I1T9°SLL'S) M0 SIoJsuBL],
000°STt'9 €€€°861°8C 8L8°SHE0T 000°€61'% LTO°LLY'E 9$T°%09°C 000°9LL 000°LLS 0L6°620°9 Ul SIQJSUBL],
- - - - - - - - - SJuaTe SMOIOSd SPUOQ PApUNJal 0) JudWAe
- - - - - - - (600°L18°6) - Spuoq Jo Surpunjar woij spaedoid
- - - - - - - - - ase9] [en1ded Jo oouenss|
:(sasn) se21n0g Juroueuly YO
9169209 $98°8TH 01 S8L9TS' 1 (€9t 18%°€) 66981191 LLI'ELT'TT Y 1T6'T (SLT'€8¢) (20€°009°81) somypuadxo
(Jopun) J9A0 SONUAAJI JO AOUQIOIJOP) SSOIXT
691 8 8ET 19L€SL YT L66'7SY'TTL SEP9IH'9TT 080°661"901 #06°780°001 €0T°€9t°L6 STL'6VL'T6 906°0F1'STT sampuadxa [ejo],
SSLLIY'T 1+8°L0T°C T80 PPL T LST'961°C 6LL'E96T 98T°662°C S68°€91°C 19L°509°C 0L0°€r0°€ $39J pUE 1S01IU]
951°899°€ LES 08Y'E 0€£°90T°€ T9L°096'81 L6E'6YS'T €€8°7TST 8T8°1LT'T 1SO°LLST 998°T1S°€ [edoutid
190TAISS 199
- - - - - - - - 9T8°€9L'S AepnQ rende)
LOY 66971 01€CEL'6 950'7¥T'8 8ST°00LL STI08%°9 SH6'80L’S 9LEBET'S oI TIEY €LL9ET6 JuewdojeAsp Arunuro?)
18€°666°01 788°101°T1 12€°868°T1 986°SH8°11 99€Y1T°T1 8TS18+°01 659'7¥T01 967 7LT 01 LTY'ELE'S SIM[ND PUB UOHERIIOIY
€€9°18L°8C 666°TE1I VT €LL'8Y9°ST L66°L8Y'61 LS9'G81°61 968°S06°L1 687°01€°61 $80°0SS Y1 1TH'8LL'6 uonenodsuen pue SulLouISuyg
SYL'80LY9 9EH T6ETY €9€°7£0°09 LIT'TELYS 768°85T°CS T Ir6h 8€8°€86°0F 096°LEY 9T 759°68L'89 AKjoyes orjqng
T6E°60T°ET 9$L°S0€°TT TLO'6LY'TT 80T'€6H 11 798°918°T1 $66°0TLTT 8IT°0SE'TT 8LI'E66°TT 1L8°€76°6 JUSWUIDA0T [RISUID)
Juaxmy)
:saanypuadxyg
SSE 1Y Tl ST9TISEL T8L186°¢E] TL6YE6'TTL 6LL'L16TT] 180°9S€ 111 $99°L8€E°001 0S7°99€°76 #09°078°66 SANUDARI [BIO],
7S TSl £19°570°C 8ES'EIL T1¥°T88°C 609°L8SYy 908°L00°¢ 1L6TIT1 678°600°C 0594S0°S LYo
8L8°666°1 8L8°666°1 8.8°666°1 8L8°666°1 8L8°666°1 992°0ST°T 6€1°700°C 876°100°C 698°10%°C [E)USWILIOAOS IONU]
620°TL6'L 9%0°8L8°9 106°St1'y 066°LTTY LES'ETO0Y 96°0rE'E €17°785°€ YO1°Shr'e LT8'SH9°E Arodoxd pue Louour jo o)
§$9°TsS 0T 600°796°T1 20T°EH8°TT 999°8L0°TT 98 I61°TI 90€°9LY V1 0Z8°0¥9°TT 0T1°€€T6 658°9¥T°01 [BIUOWUIDAOT IO U]
PO 66T €18°265°€ S86°06L°€ LIS EVS'E SLY'660°C 890°681°€ STTT6Y'E 6¥9°0€8°C 780°150°€ SOZIRYD 20IAIDS
1685611 €€6°6LY°T 15€°889°1 868°TLS'T 860°589°1 0LSYTST P18°T0E T PSELETT 699°011°1 SOINIOJI0) PUB SAUL]
661°6vT°T1 978°6TH 11 S1S°9TL°0T S61°8KE°6 TELV6S'8 S00°T#0°8 0LV 00L L 20689 8L9°0¥6°9 syruiad pue sosuddIT
S78°680°96 $  L06'96S'S6 $  TIS'8YOI6 $  99€°16£88 §  S09°SEL98 §  ¥IIOTTSL $§  €IS'ESH69 §  #9S'STISY $  896'88E°LY § soxe) 1oyo pue Aodorg
ISONUIAY
020t 610 810C L10T 910 S10z $10T €10C [414

SIBIX [BISL] UD ], ISe|
Spun [EJUIUILIIAOL) JO ddue[eq pun, ur saduey)
oapued| ues jo 1)

156



REVENUE CAPACITY

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city's most significant local revenue sources,
sales tax and property tax.

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Assessed Value of Taxable Property - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net Assessed Value of Property by Use Code, Citywide - Last Three Fiscal Year

Principal Property Tax Payers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Property Tax Levies and Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Historical Sales Tax Amount by Benchmark Year - Last Nine Calendar Years at Quarter 1 (Q1)
Principal Sales Tax Producers - Last Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago

Sewer Rates - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Number of Permits and Valuation of Taxable Transactions - Last Ten Calendar Years
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City of San Leandro
Number of Permits and Valuation of Taxable Transactions
Last Ten Calendar Years

Retail Stores Total All Outlets
Taxable Taxable
Calendar Number Transactions Number Transactions
Year of Permits (in thousands) of Permits (in thousands)
2012 1,341 $ 1,273,883 2,322 § 1,867,865
2013 1,304 1,348,729 2,273 2,026,119
2014 1,290 1,378,120 2,258 2,246,508
2015 1,309 1,478,697 2,425 2,483,400
2016 1,362 1,598,459 2,508 2,584,669
2017 1,374 1,662,454 2,513 2,650,938
2018 1,373 1,688,378 2,555 2,665,437
2019 1,379 1,702,666 2,618 2,718,393
2020 1,379 1,580,927 2,618 2,573,889
2021 1,455 1,709,464 2,766 2,784,599

Note: Data 2015 and beyond is provided by California Dept. of Tax and Fee Administration

Note for 2020: The Number of Permits for Retail Stores and for All Outlets was not available for disclosure at the time
of Financial Reporting and the 2019 year amounts were used for the number of permits.

Prior to 2015, data provided by State Board of Equalization (BOE), Taxable Sales in California (Sales and Use Tax).
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DEBT CAPACITY

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the city's current levels of
outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Direct and Overlapping Debt - As of June 30, 2021
Pledged-Revenue Coverage - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Computation of Legal Debt Margin - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding - Last Ten Fiscal Years
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City of San Leandro
Direct and Overlapping Debt

As of June 30, 2021
2020-21 Assessed Valuation $ 14,848,484,619
Total Debt City's Share of
OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: 6/30/2021 % Applicable (1) Debt 6/30/21
Alameda County $ 191,300,000 4.480% $ 8,570,240
Bay Area Rapid Transit District 1,871,890,000 1.734% 32,458,573
Chabot-Las Positas Community College District 593,290,000 10.568% 62,698,887
San Leandro Unified School District 316,756,547 90.285% 285,983,648
San Lorenzo Unified School District 188,970,000 21.949% 41,477,025
East Bay Regional Park District 133,170,000 2.774% 3,694,136
City of San Leandro Cherrywood Community Facilities District 1,855,000 100% 1,855,000
HUD 108 Loan - Guarantee Loan 1,188,000 100% 1,188,000
TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT $ 437,925,509
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:
Alameda County General Fund Obligations $ 790,122,500 4.480% $ 35,397,488
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Certificates of Participation 11,655,000 5.305% 618,298
San Lorenzo Unified School District Certificates of Participation 9,060,000 21.949% 1,988,579
City of San Leandro General Fund Obligations 48,625,983 100% 48,625,983
City of San Leandro Pension Obligation Bonds 6,570,000 100% 6,570,000
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT $ 93,200,348
OVERLAPPING TAX INCREMENT DEBT (Successor Agencies):
San Leandro Tax Allocation Bonds $ 11,868,000 100% $ 11,868,000
Alameda County — San Leandro Tax Allocation Bonds 17,775,000 56.173% $ 9,984,751
TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX INCREMENT DEBT $21,852,751
TOTAL DIRECT DEBT $ 55,195,983
TOTAL OVERLAPPING DEBT $ 497,782,625
COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $ 552,978,608 (2)

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the city is estimated using taxable assessed property value. Applicable percentages
were estimated by determining the portion of the overlapping district's assessed value that is within the boundaries of the city divided by the
district's total taxable assessed value.

(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease obligations.

Ratios to 2020-21 Assessed Valuation:

Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 2.95%
Total Direct Debt ($55,195,983) 0.37%
Combined Total Debt 3.72%

Ratios to Redevelopment Successor Agency Incremental Valuation ($3.070.201,724):
Total Overlapping Tax Increment Debt 0.71%
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the city's financial activities take place.

Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Principal Employers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago
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City of San Leandro
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2020-21 2011-12
Percent of Percent of
Number of Total Number of Total
Employer Employees Rank Employment  Employees Rank Employment
Kaiser Permanente 3,600 1 7.96%
Alameda Health System* 1,591 2 3.52% 1,119 1 3.98%
San Leandro Unified School District** 1,227 3 2.71%
Acco Engineered Systems 951 4 2.10% 2.14%
Walmart (2 locations) 835 5 1.85% 601 2
Safeway (4 locations) 612 6 1.35% 409 4 1.33%
Ghirardelli Chocolate Co. 525 7 1.16% 375 6 1.46%
City of San Leandro* 495 8 1.10%
Costco Wholesale 475 9 1.05% 264 8 0.94%
Peterson Cat 446 10 0.99%
OSI Soft, Inc. 253 9 0.90%
American Medical Response West 468 3 1.67%
North Face, Inc 395 5 1.41%
Kindred Hospital - SF Bay Area 268 7 0.95%
Total Top Employers 10,757 23.80% 4,152 14.78%
Total City Employment (1) 45,200 28,100

Source: Avenu Insights & Analytics

Source: 2011-12, previously published ACFR. Walmart locations are combined to show comparison.

Notes:
*Includes full and part-time
**Includes part-time and substitutes

(1) Total City Labor Force provided by EDD Labor Force Data
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OPERATING INFORMATION

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
city's financial report relates to the services the city provides and the activities it performs.

Full-Time and Part-Time City Employees by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Operating Indicators by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Capital Assets by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years
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